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To our Stockholders,

2003 was an outstanding year for SanDisk: Revenues nearly doubled to $1.1 billion, earnings per share
increased 198% to $2.03, and megabytes sold grew by 235%. With industry sales of flash cards exceeding
$3 billion in 2003, SanDisk is the clear global market leader, accounting for approximately one in every three
cards sold. Our three largest markets for cards — digital cameras, multi-media cell phones and USB
flashdrives are growing at a rapid pace, and the use of flash storage continues to proliferate in numerous new
markets including mobile/wireless consumer and industrial applications. 2003 was also a year where we began
to see considerably higher revenues from licenses and royalties; a direct result of the success of our unique IP
strategy. With flash storage markets projected to grow to $12 billion in the next five years, we believe that
SanDisk is attractively positioned to be a major beneficiary of these exciting opportunities and we plan to
invest aggressively in leading edge flash technology, advanced low-cost manufacturing capacity, accelerated
product introductions, and new global sales channels.

Financial Highlights Revenue growth was exceptionally strong in the retail and OEM channels, in all
geographies and in our licensing and royalty revenues. Demand was fueled by the rapid growth in our target
markets, aided in part through lower pricing for flash memory. Retail sales in 2003 represented approximately
64% of total product sales and much of the growth was derived from new products introduced during the year.
OEM sales grew 110% during the year. In 2003, our licensing and royalty income increased to $97 million,
compared to $48 million in 2002. Product gross margins increased to 35% from 29% in 2002, despite a year-
over-year decline of 40% in the price per megabyte sold, due primarily to our technology-driven aggressive cost
reduction programs. Operating income was 23% of revenue. Cash from operations grew by over $270 million
during the year and we completed a follow-on offering netting $522 million, resulting in cash and short-term
investments in excess of $1.2 billion at year-end.

Marker Leadership We expanded our global retail reach to more than 60,000 worldwide retail outlets
and over 50% of our total revenues came from outside North America. We are continuing to expand into new
channels and new geographies, including China, India, Europe and Asia. Our product line breadth and depth
and strong retail relationships have enabled us to be the worldwide leader in flash cards. You will soon see in
magazines and on television the start of our new branding campaign under the tagline — “Store Your World
in Ours”. In the first quarter of 2004 we introduced a number of new and important products. SanDisk Shoot
and Store™ cards are positioned as the first “consumable” flash film cards and will be sold globally through
supermarkets, drugstores and convenience stores. TransFlash is positioned as a new concept for semi-
embedded/semi-removable modules for multimedia cell phones. Memory Stick PRO and PRO Duo were
introduced spanning capacities from 32 megabytes to 2 gigabytes, with Standard, Ultra® and Extreme™
versions, representing the broadest offering for this card format. Qur Cruzer® USB flashdrive lineup now
includes Mini, Micro and Titanium versions and has been well received in the market.

Intelleciual Property SanDisk has 339 patents issued and more patents pending in the areas of flash chip
design, process, device, controllers, MLC and system architecture for cards and hosts. Income from royalties
is expected to continue to grow in 2004. In addition to contributing substantially to our profitability, these
patents have been key to securing preferential long-term flash supply agreements. With new competitors
announcing plans to enter our markets, we intend to continue to leverage our growing IP, and where necessary,
to vigorously pursue infringers.

Technology and Manufacturing Excellence We invented flash cards in 1988 and have been an
unrelenting innovator ever since. Our vertical integration strategy, as well as our philosophy for partnering with
other industry leaders provides us with valuable scalability in up cycles and flexibility in down cycles. In 2003
and through most of 2004, our production technology is based primarily on .13 micron NAND and NAND/
MLC (Multilevel Cell). We are currently on track to complete development and begin volume production of
the next generation 90-nanometer NAND flash technology starting in the second half of 2004. With our
partner Toshiba, we are well along in the development of 70-nanometer NAND flash, which we expect to
become our workhorse production technology in 2006.

A New Fab Anticipating strong growth in demand for flash memory in the coming years, we have
announced plans to make substantial new investments over the next three years, with Toshiba, in our
FlashVision Joint Venture, to build a new fabrication facility, Fab 3. This planned fab will be a 300 millimeter
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advanced NAND wafer fab in Yokkaichi, Japan and the investment is expected to be funded from a
combination of leases, bank loans and cash assets.

In conclusion, I am proud of our excellent execution, unrelenting innovation, and our employees whose
passion and hard work have made us the global leader in our markets. We are exceptionally well positioned to
benefit from future growth in these young mega markets with our leading products, strong retail presence,
broad OEM customer reach, a successful vertical integration business model, and a proven IP strategy.

We very much appreciate the continuing support and confidence of our customers, employees and
stockholders,

The Future of Flash is Everywhere.

Store Your World in Qurs!

Eli Harari
President and Chief Executive Officer

This letter contains forward looking statements that are based on our current expectations and beliefs. These
forward looking statements are subject to many risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to
differ materially, including those discussed in our 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 28, 2003 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and included with this letter.
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PARTI

Item 1. Business

Statements in this report, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws. These statements may contain words such as “expects,” “anticipates,”
“intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or other wording indicating future results or expectations.
Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially
Jrom the results discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our actual results to
differ materially include, but are not limited to, those discussed under “Factors That May Affect Future
Results” under Item 7 below, and elsewhere in this report. Our business, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these factors. We undertake no obligation to revise
or update any forward-looking statements to reflect any event or circumstance that may arise after the date of
this report. References in this annual report on Form 10-K to “SanDisk,” “‘we,” “our,” and “us” collectively
refer to SanDisk Corporation, a Delaware corporation, its subsidiaries and SunDisk Corporation, its
predecessor. :

Overview

SanDisk, the worldwide leader in flash storage card products, designs, develops, manufactures and
markets flash storage card products used in a wide variety of electronic systems. Flash storage cards allow data
to be stored in a compact, removable format. Our flash storage card products help enable mass market
adoption of digital cameras, multimedia cellular phones, USB flash drives and other digital consumer devices.
We are the only company that has rights to manufacture and sell every major flash card format, including
Compact Flash, or CF, Secure Digital, or SD, miniSD, SmartMedia, FlashDisk, MultiMediaCards, or MMC,
MemoryStick Pro and other Memory Stick products, xD-Picture cards, and USB flash drives. We do not
operate fabrication facilities, but do control a significant portion of our flash memory wafer manufacturing
through our FlashVision, Ltd., or FlashVision, joint venture, contracts with fabrication facility owners and
contractual supply rights from other partners. OQur supply arrangements consist of components produced
through our FlashVision joint venture with Toshiba Corporation, or Toshiba, and through foundry arrange-
ments with Toshiba, Samsung, Renesas, United Microelectronic Inc., or UMC, and Tower Semiconductor
Lid., or Tower. This multiple sourcing strategy enables us to fluctuate our supply with changes in demand. We
receive a majority of our flash storage card product revenues from sales to retailers with the balance principally
attributable to sales to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs.

Our products include CF cards, SD cards, USB Flash Drives (Cruzer mini), miniSD cards, the Memory
Stick family of products, Ultra 11/Extreme lines of product cards for professional photographers and xD cards.
Storage capacities for our cards and USB drives range from 16 megabytes to 4 gigabytes. In fiscal 2003, our
customers included Arrow Electronics, Inc., Avnet Electronics, AVS Technologies, Inc., Bell Microproducts,
Inc., Best Buy Company, Inc., Canon, Inc., Circuit City Stores, Inc., Costco Wholesale Corporation,
CompUSA Inc., DayMen Photo Marketing Ltd., Flextronics International Ltd., Eastman Kodak Company,
Ericsson Inc.,, Hama Corporation, Hewlett-Packard Company, Holst Import BV, Ingram Micro, Inc.,
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., Mitsubishi Plastic Co. Ltd., Nikon Corporation, Office Depot, Inc,,
Siemens AG, Staples, Inc., Techni-Cine Photography, and Wynit, Inc., among others. In addition, we
currently license our technologies to several companies including Intel Corporation, Lexar Media, Incorpo-
rated, Matsushita Electronics Corporation, Renesas, Samsung Electronics Company Ltd., Sharp Electronics
Corporation, SmartDisk Corporation, Silicon Storage Technologies, Incorporated, Sony Corporation, TDK
Corporation and Toshiba.

Additional Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in June 1988 under the name SunDisk Corporation and changed our
name to SanDisk Corporation in August 1995. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on

Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to ..

Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge
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through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

“SanDisk” is a registered trademark of SanDisk Corporation. All other trade names used in this report
are trademarks of their respective holders. Our website address is www.sandisk.com. Our principal executive
offices are located at 140 Caspian Court, Sunnyvale, California 94089 and our telephone number is (408) 542-
0500.

Recent Developments

On January 21, 2004 we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a two-for-one stock split of
our common stock to be effected in the form of a stock dividend. The stock split entitled each stockholder of
record at the close of business on February 3, 2004 (record date) to receive one additional share for every
share of SanDisk common stock held on that date. Our transfer agent distributed shares resulting from the
split on February 18, 2004 (payment date). Shares, share price, per share amounts, commen stock at par value
and capital in excess of par value have been restated to reflect the effect of the stock split for all periods
presented in the Form 10-K.

In February 2004, we committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund
additional 200-millimeter fabrication capacity, through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan is secured by the
equipment purchased by FlashVision using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in
several tranches through the first quarter of 2006. In addition, we are currently in discussions with Toshiba
regarding cooperating in the construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at
Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. The total investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost of building construction, is
currently estimated at $2.5 billion through the end of 2006, of which our share is estimated to be
approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We and Toshiba
have not yet agreed to the terms of this potential new venture.

Industry Background

In recent years, digital computing and processing have expanded beyond the boundaries of desktop
computer systems to include a broader array of consumer electronic, industrial and communications products.
These new devices include digital cameras, advanced mobile phones that incorporate digital cameras, PDAs,
highly portable computers, portable digital music players, digital video recorders, wireless base stations,
network computers, communication routers and switches, handheld data collection terminals, medical
monitors and other electronic systems. The storage requirements of these applications include small form
factor size, high reliability and storage capacity, low power consumption and the capability to withstand high
levels of shock and vibration and extreme temperature fluctuations. Because storage products based on flash
semiconductor technology can meet these requirements, these devices and systems represent market
opportunities for flash storage systems. The flash memory market is primarily comprised of NOR and NAND
technologies. NOR is traditionally used as an embedded memory for code storage and is characterized by fast
read speeds. The NAND flash memory produced by SanDisk is traditionally used for both embedded and
removable data storage and is characterized by fast write speeds, high capacity and lower manufacturing cost.

The SanDisk Solution

We are focused primarily on three digital consumer markets: digital cameras and other consumer
electronics, multimedia cellular phones and USB flash drives. Each of these markets is currently experiencing
significant growth:

« Digital Cameras. Shipments of digital cameras exceeded shipments of traditional film cameras in
© 2003. Digital cameras have increased in terms of resolution quality, requiring flash cards with greater
- capacity. We make and sell flash cards that are used as digital film in all the major brands of digital

cameras. Our cards are also used to store music in MP3 players, video in solid-state digital camcorders,
personal data in PDA’s and maps in GPS devices.
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» Multimedia Cellular Phones. The multimedia cellular phone market is experiencing growth driven by
demand for new capabilities such as camera functionality, audio/ MP3, games, video, internet access
and other multimedia features. These features require increasing storage capacity in the phone. We are
the leading supplier of miniSD and SD cards for removable storage in some of these multimedia
cellular phones.

« USB Flash Drives. USB flash drive solutions allow consumers to store computer files on keychain-
sized devices and then quickly and easily transfer these files between laptops, desktops and other
devices. We believe USB flash drives will be the successor to floppy disk drives and Zip drives in
personal computers and laptops.

We also sell our products to industrial, telecom, automotive and numerous other customers. For example,
our cards are used in many of the new electronic voting machines to store votes for ballots that have been cast.

Semico Research Corp. has estimated the 2003 flash storage card market to be equivalent to $3.3 billion
in revenues and also estimates these markets will grow to $12.0 billion in revenues by 2006.

Our strategy is to identify mass consumer markets for flash storage and to manufacture in high volumes
and sell all major flash storage card formats for our target markets, enabling us to be a one-stop-shop for our
retail and OEM customers. We have partnerships and agreements with leading technology companies to
continue to expand our universal flash storage card format strategy. For example, we have an agreement with
Sony for co-development of MemoryStick Pro, an agreement with Matsushita and Toshiba for joint
development of SD and miniSD cards, and agreements with Olympus and Fuji providing us the right to
manufacture xD-Picture cards, which Olympus and Fuji require for their digital cameras. For 2003, our largest
customers included Best Buy, Canon, Circuit City, Costco, Hama, Ingram Micro, Kaga, Nikon, Princeton
Technology and Wynit. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, no customer individually represented more than 10% of our
total revenues.

We have leveraged our intellectual property and leading market position to establish global industry
standard card formats as well as manufacturing partnerships and relationships that provide us with access to
leading edge semiconductor capacity, allowing us to share the costs of fabrication capacity with our partners
while retaining access to advanced process technology. Our FlashVision joint venture with Toshiba, operating
from Toshiba’s Yokkaichi semiconductor fabrication facility, is our principal source of memory wafer supply
and provides us with captive capacity at a favorable cost. We also have purchase agreements with Toshiba,
Samsung and Renesas providing additional guaranteed supply under favorable terms.

Our broad-based inteliectual property also differentiates our products from those of our competitors,
improves our manufacturing efficiency and generates royalty revenue. For example, our multi-level cell, or
MLC, technology can substantially reduce manufacturing costs per megabyte and has been licensed to some
of our manufacturing partners in return for royalties and a guaranteed portion of their output.

To enhance our position as the leading global supplier of flash storage card products in the rapidly
growing markets that we address, we intend to pursue the following business strategies:

Expand Retail Distribution Network. We intend to continue to expand our retail customer base to
more geographic regions as well as to new outlets such as supermarkets and drug stores. We also seek to
strengthen our current retailer relationships and establish exclusive arrangements where practical.

Enable New Digital Consumer Markets. We intend to develop further product segmentation
solutions for the digital camera market, as well as for the multimedia cellular phone, USB flash drive, and
other digital consumer markets. Other digital consumer markets may include devices such as digital
camcorders, compressed audio players, handheld computers and personal data assistants.

Expand Our Supply Base and Maintain Our Focus on Low-Cost Production and Global Distribution.
We intend to continue to partner with suppliers to procure a large portion of our supply from captive
sources, such as FlashVision, and a smaller portion from other sources. Qur objective is to control our
access to high-volume, low-cost supply of leading-edge flash memory wafers to meet demand, while
delivering solid returns on our invested capital over time.
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Continue to Expand Our Intellectual Property Portfolio and Lead Technological Innovation. We
intend to enhance our market position by continuing to invest aggressively in research and development,
advanced process technology and intellectual property, focusing on leading-edge NAND flash, MLC
NAND flash and high-performance, low-cost microcontrollers for our flash storage card products.

In the fiscal years ended December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, product sales
to our top L0 customers accounted for approximately 50%, 48% and 49% of our product revenues, respectively.
In 2003, 2002 and 2001, no single customer accounted for greater than 10% of our total revenues. However,
seven of the top ten customers for 2003 were also part of our top ten customers in 2002 and 2001. We expect
that sales of our products to a limited number of customers will continue to account for a substantial portion of
our revenues for the foreseeable future. We have also experienced changes in the composition of our major
customer base from year to year and expect this pattern to continue as certain customers increase or decrease
their purchases of our products as a result of fluctuations in market demand for their products and the
development of new product categories. Sales to our customers are generally made pursuant to standard
purchase orders rather than long-term contracts. The loss of, or significant reduction in, purchases by any of
our major customers, could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our products offer the following features:

- Small Form Factor. Our CF card products weigh about half an ounce and are approximately the
size of a matchbook. Our MultiMediaCard and SD card products are approximately the size of a postage
stamp and weigh less than two grams. Pioneered for multimedia phones, the miniSD card is about the
size of a thumbnail. Our USB FlashDrives are approximately the size of a small pack of gum.

Non-volatility. Our products store information in non-volatile memory cells that do not require
power to retain information.

High Degree of Ruggedness. QOur devices have an operating shock rating of up to 2,000 Gs for the
Extreme line of products. This is equivalent to being able to withstand eight-foot to ten-foot drops onto
concrete. Our products are also designed to tolerate extensive fluctuations in temperature and humidity.

Low Power Consumption. During read and write operations, our products use less power than the
rotating disk drives found in many portable computers. At all other times during system operation, our
products require virtually no power. Depending upon the end product making use of our flash data
storage, this can translate into longer battery life.

" High Reliability. Our products utilize sophisticated error detection and correction algorithms and
dynamic defect management techniques to provide high data reliability and endurance.

High Performance. We believe that the read and write data rates of our products meet or exceed
the read and write data rates required today by the majority of consumer and industrial/communications
applications.

The flash process and flash memory chip designs developed by us in cooperation with our partners make
our products scaleable over several generations of semiconductor fabrication processes. This feature has
allowed us to significantly reduce our cost per megabyte of capacity with each new generation of our products.
By maintaining the same basic design parameters, each generation of our flash memory products maintains
full compatibility with prior generations. This chip architecture has allowed us to significantly reduce cell size
and thereby chip size. This has allowed us to increase storage capacity and lower the cost of our flash memory
products.

_ SanDisk’s Products

Our storage products are high capacity, solid-state, non-volatile flash memory devices that comply with
industry standards, including the PC Card ATA and/or IDE, MultiMediaCard, SD cards, miniSD cards, and
Memory Stick standards. We offer a broad line of flash data storage products in terms of capacities, form
factors, operating voltage and temperature ranges. Our current product families include removable Compact-
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Flash cards, Ultra CompactFlash cards, Wi-Fi CompactFlash cards, SD cards, SD Ultra cards, Wi-Fi SD
cards, the Memory Stick product line, SmartMedia cards, xD-Picture cards, FlashDisk cards, the Cruzer USB
Flash Drive product line, MultiMediaCards, and embedded Flash ChipSets, embedded TriFlash and the
semi-removable T-Flash module that we announced in late February 2004. Our products are compatible with
the majority of today’s computing and communications systems that are based on industry standards. Our
principal products, are listed in the following table:

Product Family Form Factor Uncompressed Capacity
CompactFlash......... 36.4 mm x 42.8 mm x 3.3 mm 32 megabytes to 4 gigabytes
Ultra IT CompactFlash 36.4 mm x 42.8 mm x 3.3 mm 256 megabytes to 2 gigabytes
Memory+Wi-Fi CF.... 62,0 mm x 42.8 mm x 3.3 mm 128 megabytes
SD ... 32.0 mm x 24.0 mm x 2.1 mm 32 megabytes to | gigabyte
SDUltrall........... 32.0 mm x 24.0 mm x 2.1 mm 256 to 512 megabytes
Wi-FiSD ............. 53.0 mm x 24.0 mm x 2.1 mm Non-memory
Memory+Wi-Fi SD.... 57.0 mm x 24.0 mm x 2.1 mm 256 megabytes
miniSD ..... .. ..., 21.5 mm x 20.0 mm x 1.4 mm 16 to 128 megabytes
Memory Stick......... 50.0 mm x 21.5 mm x 2.8 mm 64 to 128 megabytes
Memory Stick Duo .... 31.0 mm x 20.0 mm x 1.6 mm 64 to 128 megabytes
Memory Stick PRO.... 50.0 mm x 21.5 mm x 2.8 mm 128 megabytes to 2 gigabytes
Memory Stick PRO

Duo ............... 31.0 mm x 20.0 mm 1.6 mm 128 to 512 megabytes
Cruzer USB Flash

Drives ............. Various depending on family 128 megabytes to 1 gigabyte
SmartMedia .......... 45.0 mm x 37.0 mm x 0.76 mm 128 megabytes
xD-Picture............ 25.0 mm x 20.0 mm x 1.7 mm 64 to 512 megabytes
TriFlash (embedded). .. 16 to 64 megabytes
T-Flash .............. 11.0 mm x 15.0 mm x 1.0 mm 16 to 128 megabytes

CompactFlash. QOur CompactFlash, or CF, products provide full PC Card ATA functionality but are
only one-fourth the size of a standard PC Card. CF’s compact size, ruggedness, low-power requirements and
its ability to operate at either 3.3V or 5V make it well-suited for a range of current and next-generation, small
form factor consumer applications such as digital cameras, PDAs, personal communicators and audio
recorders. CF products provide interoperability with systems based upon the PC Card ATA standard by using
a low-cost passive Type I adapter. CF cards are available in capacities ranging from 32 megabytes to 4
gigabytes in Type [ form factor. CF memory+Wi-Fi is available in 128MB capacity.

SD Card. The SD Card provides advanced security and copyright protection features for the emerging
markets for the electronic distribution of music, video and other copyrighted works. This form factor is being
designed into many of the digital cameras, PDAs and MP3 players found in the consumer electronics
marketplace today. We offer SD Cards in storage capacities of 32 megabytes to 1 gigabyte.

SanDisk Ultra H Products. SanDisk Ultra 11 products are a line of high speed CompactFlash, SD and
Memory Stick PRO cards specifically designed for use in the rapidly growing market for high-performance
digital cameras. This product line is targeted at advanced photographers who require high-speed cards to
quickly shoot many high resolution images. The Ultra IT CompactFlash cards have a sustained write speed of
up to 9 megabytes per second and are offered in capacities ranging from 256 megabytes to 2 gigabytes. The SD
Ultra IT and Memory Stick Pro Ultra cards have sustained write speeds of up to 9 megabytes per second, or
three times the speed of current SD and Memory Stick PRO cards, respectively, and are being offered in
capacities ranging from 256 megabytes to 512 megabytes.

miniSD Card. A smaller version of the SD card, known as miniSD, was introduced in March 2003. The
miniSD c¢ard leverages the industry momentum and feature-set of the standard SD card but is designed into a
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format targeted at very small multimedia cellular phones. An optional full-size SD card adapter allows
miniSD to be used in full size SD card applications thereby acting as a bridge media between the large range
of consumer and telecommunications SD based devices. Capacities range from 16 to 128 megabytes.

SanDisk Extreme Products. We have a comprehensive line of high-performance CompactFlash and SD
cards, announced in March 2003, and Memory Stick PRO, announced in February 2004, designed to meet
performance levels dictated by professional and consumer digital photographers, including the ability to
withstand a wide range of temperature extremes. The SanDisk CompactFlash Extreme cards deliver a
sustained write speed of up to 6 megabytes per second and a sustained read speed of 9 megabytes per second.
SanDisk SD Extreme cards provide sustained write speeds of up to 2.5 megabytes per second. SanDisk
Memory Stick PRO Extreme cards provide a minimum write speed of 9 megabytes per second and minimum
read speed of 10 megabytes per second. Extreme cards are designed to operate in a wide temperature range
from minus 25 to 85 degrees Celsius, making them ideal for harsh shooting conditions. All SanDisk Extreme
products are also bundled with RescuePRO, a software to help recover photos/files that are accidentally
deleted.

Memory Stick/Memory Stick Duo. The SanDisk Memory Stick family is a popular, small-size flash
memory card targeted at a wide variety of electronic products. It is sold in capacities ranging between
64 megabytes to 128 megabytes depending on the format and is used primarily in Sony’s consumer electronics
products. Memory Stick Duo was introduced in 2003 to offer improved performance with higher write speeds
and the addition of the MagicGate technology for copyright protection. It is about half the size of a standard
Memory Stick card, so it is targeted for small format digital cameras, audio players, and cell phone
applications.

Memory Stick PRO/Memory Stick PRO Duo. The Memory Stick PRO product line was introduced in
mid-2003 and was co-developed with Sony. It is sold in capacities ranging between 128 megabytes to 2
gigabytes depending on the format and is used in digital cameras, digital video camcorders, PDA’s and TV’s.
The Memory Stick PRO and Memory Stick Pro Duo media offer substantially improved performance in
higher write speeds and capacity, as compared with the original Memory Stick line of products, as well as
built-in MagicGate copyright protection. All products in the SanDisk Memory Stick PRO product line meet
the minimum standard performance of 15Mb/s for high-resolution recording of moving images.

Cruzer USB Flash Drive Product Line. Released in July 2003, the Cruzer Mini replaced our original
Cruzer product and combines our high-density memory with hi-speed USB 2.0 Flash Drive connectivity,
allowing the transfer of large data files from PC to PC. Available in 128 megabytes to | gigabyte capacities,
Cruzer Mini allows the user to transfer data files between any devices with a USB port. The Cruzer Mini
offers a high-speed replacement for the floppy disk or other removable media. In addition to the Cruzer Mini
family, we have also announced the Cruzer Micro and Cruzer Titanium USB Flash Drive families. Cruzer
Micro is a smaller USB Flash Drive with expandable functionality. For example, the Cruzer Micro can be
connected to the Cruzer Micro MP3 Companion to play MP3 and WMA audio files. The Cruzer Micro will
be available in 128 to 512 megabyte capacities. Cruzer Titanium is an extremely rugged USB Flash Drive
made from titanium and other metals. The Cruzer Titanium is one of the fastest performance USB Flash
Drives on the market and is available in a 512 megabyte capacity.

SmartMedia Cards. Our SmartMedia card is a removable flash memory card that can be used in several
different types of digital devices including digital cameras, digital music players and digital voice recorders.
Our SanDisk brand SmartMedia card is available in capacities of 128 megabytes.

Shoot & Store Card Products. Our recently announced Shoot & Store card products are a new line of
inexpensive and consumable flash memory cards currently offered in approximately 50-picture (32 megabyte)
and approximately 100-picture (64 megabyte) sizes, with the actual number of pictures being related to the
pixel resolution of the camera, the subject complexity and the camera model. Shoot & Store card products will
be initially available in CF card, SD card and SmartMedia card types, with Memory Stick PRO cards
available in the latter part of 2004. This line will be offered primarily through supermarkets, convenience
stores and drug stores.




xD Picture Card. In 2003, we began selling the xD-Picture card format under our arrangements with
Olympus and Fuji for use in cameras from Olympus and Fuji. The xD-Picture card allows for rapid data
transfer, is ultra compact for the most portable device and is compatible with all xD cameras. The xD-Picture
card is available in capacities that range from 64 megabytes to 512 megabytes.

Viewers, Readers and Adapters. 1In January 2003, we announced our Digital Photo Viewer, or DPV.
The DPV supports 6 media formats and allows pictures taken with a digital camera to be quickly and easily
viewed on most televisions. We offer a broad line of memory card readers, which provide a fast, convenient
way to transfer data between our memory card products and a personal computer through a USB connection.
Our premium 8-in-1 USB 2.0 reader supports CF type I and type II, MultiMediaCard, SD card,
MemoryStick, MemoryStick PRO, SmartMedia and xD-Picture card. We also offer a 4-in-1 PC Card adapter
that enables consumers to transfer data from consumer devices to a notebook computer. The 4-in-1 adapter
supports MultiMediaCard, SD card, SmartMedia and MemoryStick formats. We also offer a low priced CF
adapter.

TriFlash. TriFlash is a high capacity, small, embedded flash memory device. TriFlash is designed for
storing audio, video, data and images on small portable systems. These products are targeted at Internet music
players and cell phones. TriFlash will give product manufacturers the option of either using TriFlash and/or
removable flash memory cards in their consumer electronics products. TriFlash is available in 16, 32 and
64 megabyte capacities.

T-Flash. Our recently announced T-Flash is a very small transportable memory module used in mobile
phones to store multimedia content and data. The very small size makes it ideal for inclusion in small mobile
phone designs. T-Flash modules come in 16 megabyte up to 128 megabyte capacities and allow users to
upgrade the memory capacity of their phone or to migrate data between phones. Motorola announced that it
plans to use T-Flash in several of its multimedia camera cell phones to be introduced in the second half of
2004.

Technology

Since our inception, we have focused our research, development and standardization efforts on developing
highly reliable, high-performance and cost-effective flash memory storage products to address a variety of
emerging markets. We have been actively involved in all aspects of this development, including flash memory
process development, chip design, controller development and system-level integration to ensure the creation
of fully-integrated, broadly interoperable products that are compatible with both existing and newly developed
system platforms. In 2000, we entered into a long-term strategic partnership with Toshiba to jointly develop
and manufacture advanced NAND flash memory components to be used in our products. We believe our core
technical competencies are in high-density flash memory process and design, controller design, system-level
integration, compact packaging and low-cost system testing. We have also initiated, defined and developed
new standards such as CF card, MultiMediaCard, SD card, miniSD card, and Memory Stick Pro cards, as
well as new modules such asT-Flash, to meet new market needs and to promote wide acceptance of the
standards through interoperability and ease-of-use.

To achieve compatibility with various electronic platforms regardless of the host processors or operating
systems used, we developed new capabilities in flash memory chip design and created intelligent controllers.
We also developed an architecture that can leverage advances in process technology designed to ensure a
scaleable, high-yielding, cost-effective and highly reliable manufacturing process. We believe that these
technical competencies and our system design approach have enabled us to introduce flash data storage
products that are better suited for our target markets than linear flash cards based on socket flash chips. We
design our products to be compatible with industry-standard IDE, ATA, MultiMediaCard, SD and Memory
Stick interfaces used in all standard operating systems, or OS, Windows XP and Apple OS X compatible
personal computers, and operating systems used in cell phones, PDAs, and other consumer and industrial
products.

QOur patented intelligent controller with its advanced defect management system permits our products to
achieve a high level of reliability and longevity. Latent bit failure can occur several years into the life of a flash
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card product and can be difficult to detect with traditional flash technology. Our system is designed to allow
the automatic substitution of major blocks of the memory chip in case of any latent flash memory failures.
Additionally, our controller generates an error correcting code that is stored simultaneously with the data and
is used to detect and dynamically correct any errors when the data is read. This design permits our products to
maintain error-free operation for hundreds of thousands of erase and write cycles and reduces manufacturing
costs by allowing us to incorporate partial die with less than 100% of the physical bits on each chip into the
products without loss of functionality.

Strategic Manufacturing Relationships

An important element of our strategy has been to establish strategic relationships with leading technology
companies that can provide us with access to leading edge semiconductor manufacturing capacity and
participate in the development of some of our products. This enables us to concentrate our resources on the
product design and development areas where we believe we have competitive advantages. We have developed
strategic relationships with UMC, in Taiwan, Tower, in Israel, Renesas, formerly known as Hitachi, Ltd. in
Japan and Toshiba in Japan, with whom we have both a joint venture, FlashVision, which manufactures
NAND flash memory, and a foundry relationship. In August 2002, we entered into a seven-year supply
agreement with Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., or Samsung, which allows us to purchase NAND flash
memory products from Samsung’s fabrication facilities in South Korea. We may establish relationships with
other foundries in the future.

Al of our flash memory card products require silicon wafers for the memory components and the
controller components, which are included in our flash cards. The-substantial majority of our memory wafers
are currently supplied by Toshiba’s wafer facility at Yokkaichi, Japan, and to a lesser extent by Samsung and
Renesas. Our controller wafers are currently manufactured by UMC and Tower. Given the recent increase in
global demand for flash memory wafers and assuming that the markets for our products continue their current
growth rate, demand from customers may outstrip the supply of flash memory wafers available to us from our
current sources. If Toshiba, FlashVision, Samsung, Tower and UMC are uncompetitive or are unable to
satisfy these requirements, our business, financial condition and operating results may suffer. Any disruption in
supply from these sources due to natural disaster, power failure, labor unrest or other causes could significantly
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In April 2002, we and Toshiba consolidated FlashVision’s advanced NAND wafer fabrication manufac-
turing operations at Toshiba’s memory fabrication facility in Yokkaichi, Japan. In February 2004, we
committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund additional 200-millimeter
fabrication capacity through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan is secured by the equipment purchased by
FlashVision using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in several tranches through the
first quarter of 2006. In addition, we are currently in discussions with Toshiba regarding cooperating in the
construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. The
total investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion
through the end of 2006, of which our share is estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial
production currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We and Toshiba have not yet agreed to the terms of this
potential new venture. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks
Related to Our FlashVision Joint Venture — We have contingent indemnification obligations....”

Under the terms of our wafer supply agreements with FlashVision, Renesas, Samsung, Toshiba, Tower
and UMC, we are obligated to provide a six-month rolling forecast of anticipated purchase orders. Generally,
the estimates for the first three months of each rolling forecast are binding commitments and the estimates for
the remaining months of the forecast may only be changed by a certain percentage from the previous month’s
forecast. In addition, we are obligated to purchase 50% of FlashVision's wafer production. See “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Factors That May Affect Future
Results — Risks Related to Vendors and Subcontractors — Our obligation to provide a six month rolling
forecast....”




In July 2000, we entered into a share purchase agreement to make a $75.0 million investment in Fab 2 at
Tower Semiconductor, Ltd., or Tower, in Israel. The investment has provided us with a guaranteed additional
wafer source for our controller components. The investment was payable in five installments, each of which
was subject to the completion of certain milestones, four of which were paid in 2001 and 2002, with the fifth
and final milestone being paid in 2003. Fab 2 is currently producing controller wafers for some of our card
products. In November 2003, we agreed to further amend our foundry investment agreement, paid the final
portion of the fifth milestone payment and, among other things, agreed to defer the usage of the remainder of
our wafer credits available to us until fiscal 2007. We began purchasing controller wafers from Tower in the
third quarter of 2003. See ‘“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of
Operations — Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Our Investment in Tower
Semiconductor Ltd.”

We believe additional foundry capacity will be necessary to meet future demand for our products. Our
ability to increase our revenues and net income in future periods is dependent on establishing additional wafer
supply relationships and on receiving an uninterrupted supply of wafers from our manufacturing partners.

Our reliance on third-party wafer manufacturers involves several material risks, including shortages of
manufacturing capacity, reduced control over delivery schedules, quality assurance, production yields and
costs. This reliance could significantly harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, as a result of our dependence on foreign wafer manufacturers, we are subject to the risks of
conducting business internationally, including political risks and exchange rate fluctuations.

Assembly and Testing

We sort and test our wafers at Toshiba in Yokkaichi, Japan, and United Test Center, Inc. in Taiwan.
Substantially all of the tested wafers are then shipped to our third-party memory assembly subcontractors,
Chip PAC Ltd. in China, Silicon Precision Industries Co., Ltd. and Ficta Technology, Inc., both in Taiwan
and Sharp and Mitsui & Co., Ltd. both in Japan.

A substantial portion of our packaged memory final test, card assembly and card test is performed at
Silicon Precision Industries, United Test Center, Inc. and DataFab Systems, Inc. in Taiwan, and Celestica,
Inc., Chip PAC and Flextronics in China. In the foreseeable future, these subcontractors and others will
continue to assemble and test the vast majority of our products. We believe our use of subcontractors reduces
the cost of our operations and gives us access to increased production capacity. Any significant problems that
occur at our subcontractors, or their failure to perform at the level we expect, could result in a disruption of
production and a shortage of products to meet customer demand.

Our customers have demanding requirements for quality and reliability. To maximize quality and
reliability, we monitor electrical and inspection data from our wafer foundries and assembly and test
subcontractors. We monitor wafer foundry production for consistent overall quality, reliability, yield and defect
levels. Most of our major component suppliers and subcontractors are ISO 9001 or 9002 certified.

Research and Development

We believe that our future success will continue to depend on the development and introduction of new
generations of flash memory chips, controllers and products designed specifically for the flash data storage
market. In 2003, we completed our transition to 0.13 micron NAND flash memory wafers. We are in the final
stages of developing the next generation 90 nanometer NAND flash memory technology and anticipate
processing production wafers using this technology in the second half of 2004.

Our research and development expenses were $84.2 million, $63.2 million and $58.9 million, for the fiscal
vears 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 28, 2003, we had 283 full-time equivalent employees
engaged in research and development activities, primarily located in our Israel, Scotland, Japan and
Sunnyvale, California design centers. In fiscal 2004, we expect to significantly increase our spending on
process and design research and development to support the development and introduction of new generations
of flash data storage products.
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Sales and Distribution

We market our products using a direct sales organization, distributors and manufacturers’ representatives.
We also sell products to certain customers on a private label basis and under the SanDisk brand in the retail
channel. Qur sales efforts are organized as follows:

" Direct Sales Force. Our direct sales offices are located in Havasu City, Arizona; Maitland, Florida;
Herndon, Virginia; Sunnyvale, California; Hannover, Munich and Rantingen, Germany; Kista, Sweden;
Hong Kong, China; and Yokohama and Osaka, Japan. These offices support our major OEM customers
and our distribution and manufacturers’ representative partners. Our retail sales offices are located in
Trabuco Canyon, California; Avon, Ohio; Bedford, Texas; Syracuse, NY; Greenock, Scotland; Haarlem,
the Netherlands; Munich, Germany; Yokohama, Japan; Osaka, Japan and Hong Kong, China.

Distributors. In the United States, our products are sold through Arrow Electronics Inc., Avnet
Inc. and Bell MicroProducts Inc. to OEM customers for a wide variety of industrial applications. In
addition, we have distributors in various regions of the world including Europe, Japan, Australia, New
Zealand, Taiwan, Korea, Singapore and Hong Kong.

Independent Manufacturers’ Representatives. In the United States, Canada and Europe, our direct
sales force is supported in iis sales efforts by more than 50 independent firms. These domestic and
international firms receive a commission for providing support to our direct sales force and distributors in
the industrial distribution, OEM and retail channels. The manufacturers’ representatwe companies sell
our products as well as products from other manufacturers.

OEMs. We provide SanDisk brand name and private label products to OEMs in the United States,
Europe, Japan and the Pacific Rim.

Retail Fulfillment Operations. Our retail distribution channel includes the use of Modus Media
International, Inc., or MM, in the United States and the Netherlands and Nippon Express, or Nippon,
in Japan as third-party fulfillment facilities. MM1I provides worldwide packout services for our retail
business, which include labeling and packaging our raw cards, as well as shipping the finished product
directly to our customers. MMTI’s facilities are located in Raleigh, North Carolina, which for 2003
serviced North America and Asia, and Appledorn, the Netherlands, which services Europe, the Middle
East and Africa. Nippon Express in Japan provides similar services in Japan.

Retail. We ship SanDisk brand name products directly to consumer electronics stores, office
superstores, photo retailers, mass merchants, catalog and mail order companies, Internet and e-commerce
retailers, drug stores, supermarkets and convenience stores and selected retail distributors. Our retail
distributors inctude Ingram Micro, Inc., Tech Data Corporation, BDI-Laguna Corporation, D&H, and
Wrynit, Inc. in the United States, in addition to approximately 50 international distributors. Qur products
are available in approximately 60,000 retail stores worldwide. Approximately 20 independent manufactur-
ers’ representative firms are supporting our sales efforts in the retail channel worldwide. In addition, we
sell our products on the Internet through third parties such as Amazon.com.

Customer Service and Technical Support

We provide customers with comprehensive product service and support. We provide technical support
through our applications engineering group located in the United States, Japan and Hong Kong. We work
closely with our customers to monitor the performance of our product designs, to provide application design
support and assistance, and to gain insight into our customers’ needs to help in the design of future products.

‘Our support package includes technical documentation and application design assistance. In some cases,
we offer additional support that includes training, system-level design, implementation and integration support
and failure analysis. We believe that tailoring the technical support level to our customers’ needs is essential
for the success of product introductions and to achieve a high level of satisfaction among our customers. The
majority of our products are warrantied for periods ranging from one to seven years.
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Patents and Licenses

We rely on a combination of patents, irademarks, copyright and trade secret laws, confidentiality
procedures and licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property rights. We vigorously protect and
defend our intellectual property rights. In the past, we have been involved in significant disputes regarding our
intellectual property rights and we believe we may be involved in similar disputes in the future.

In 1988, we developed the concept of emulation of a hard disk drive with flash solid-state memory. The
first related patents were filed in 1988 by Dr. Eli Harari and exclusively licensed to us. As of December 28,
2003, we own or have exclusive rights to 242 United States and 97 foreign issued patents, and 213 patent
applications pending in the United States, as well as 263 pending in foreign patent offices. We intend to seek
additional international and United States patents on our technology. We believe some of our patents are
fundamental to the implementation of flash data storage systems, as well as the implementation of MLC flash,
independent of the flash technology used. However, we cannot assure you that any patents held by us will not
be invalidated, that patents will be issued for any of our pending applications, or that any claims allowed from
existing or pending patents will be of sufficient scope or strength or be issued in the primary countries where
our products can be sold to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage to us. Additionally,
our competitors may be able to design their products around our patents.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property
rights or positions, which has resulted in significant and often protracted and expensive litigation. To preserve
our intellectual property rights, we believe it may be necessary to initiate litigation against one or more third
parties, including but not limited to those we have already notified of possible patent infringement. In addition,
one or more of these parties may bring suit against us. See “ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.”

From time to time, we have been contacted by various other parties who have alleged that certain of our
products infringe on patents that these parties claim to hold. To date, no legal actions have been filed in
connection with any such infringement, other than as discussed above and “ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings”.

In the event of an adverse result in any such litigation, we could be required to pay substantial damages,
cease the manufacture, use and sale of infringing products, expend significant resources to develop non-
infringing technology, discontinue the use of certain processes or obtain licenses to the infringing technology.
Any litigation, whether as a plaintiff or as a defendant, would likely result in significant expense to us and
divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not such litigation is ultimately
determined in our favor. In addition, the results of any litigation are inherently uncertain.

If we decide to incorporate third-party technology into our products or our products are found to infringe

on the patents or intellectual property rights of others, we may be required to license such patents or
intellectual property rights. We may also need to license some or all of our patent portfolio to be able to obtain
cross-licenses to the patents of others. We currently have patent cross-license agreements with several
companies including Intel, Lexar, Matsushita, Renesas, Samsung, Sharp, SiliconSystems, Inc., Sony, SST,
TDK and Toshiba. From time to time, we have also entered into discussions with other companies regarding
potential cross-license agreements for our patents. We cannot assure you that licenses will be offered or that
the terms of any offered licenses will be acceptable to us, or that these licenses will help our business. If we
obtain licenses from third parties, we may be required to pay license fees or make royalty payments, which
could reduce our gross margins. If we are unable to obtain a license from a third-party for technology, we
could incur substantial liabilities or be required to expend substantial resources redesigning our products to
eliminate the infringement. In addition, we might be required to suspend the manufacture of products or the
. use by our foundries of processes requiring the technology. We cannot assure you that we would be successful
in redesigning our products or that we could obtain licenses under reasonable terms. Furthermore, any
development or license negotiations could require substantial expenditures of time and other resources by us.

As is common in the industry, we agree to indemnify certain of our suppliers and customers for alleged
patent infringement. The scope of such indemnity varies, but may in some instances include indemnification
for damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees. We may from time to time be engaged in litigation as a
result of these indemnification obligations.
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In our efforts to maintain the confidentiality and ownership of our trade secrets and other confidential
information, we require all regular and temporary employees, consultants, foundry partners, certain customers,
suppliers and partners to execute confidentiality and invention assignment agreements upon commencement
of a relationship with us and extending for a period of time beyond termination of the relationship. We cannot
assure you that these agreements will provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets or other confidential
information in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of such information.

Backlog

We manufacture and market primarily standard products. Sales are generally made pursuant to standard
purchase orders. We include in our backlog only those customer orders for which we have accepted purchase
orders and assigned shipment dates within the upcoming twelve months. Since orders constituting our current
backlog are subject to changes in delivery schedules or cancellations, backlog is not necessarily an indication
of future revenue. As of December 28, 2003, our backlog was $78.7 million, compared to $31.7 million at
December 29, 2002. This increase in backlog was primarily due to strong demand in all markets.

Competition

We compete in an industry characterized by intense competition, rapid technological changes, evolving
industry standards, declining average selling prices and rapid product obsolescence. Our competitors include
many large domestic and international companies that have greater access to advanced wafer foundry
capacity, substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources, broader product lines and
longer standing relationships with customers.

Our primary competitors currently include companies that develop and manufacture flash storage chips,
such as Renesas, Samsung and Toshiba. New competitors including, Hynix Semiconductor, Infineon, Micron
Technologies and ST Microelectronics, announced their intentions to become direct competitors in the
NAND market later this year. In addition, we compete with companies that manufacture other forms of flash
memory and companies that purchase flash memory components and assemble memory cards. Companies
that manufacture other forms of flash memory include, among others, Atmel, Hynix Semiconductor, Infineon,
Intel, Macronix, Micron Technologies, Renesas, Sharp Electronics, ST Microelectronics, Samsung, Spansion
and Toshiba. Companies that combine controllers and flash memory chips developed by others into flash
storage cards, or that resell flash cards under their brand name, include, among others, Dane-Elec
Manufacturing, Delkin Devices, Inc., Fuji, Hagiwara, Hama, I/O Data, Infineon, Jessops, Kingston
Technology, Kodak, Lexar Media, M-Systems, Matsushita Battery, Panasonic, Memorex, Micron Technol-
ogy, PNY, PQI, Pretec, Renesas, Silicon Storage Technology, Silicon Tek, Simple Technology, Sony,
Samsung, TDK, Toshiba, Trek, Viking Components and several other resellers primarily located in Taiwan.
The success of our competitors may adversely affect our future sales revenue.

In 2000, we, along with Matsushita and Toshiba, formed the SD Association to jointly develop and
promote the Secure Digital card. Under this arrangement, royalty-bearing Secure Digital card licenses will be
available to other flash memory card manufacturers, resulting in increased competition for our Secure Digital
card and other products. In addition, Matsushita and Toshiba sell Secure Digital cards that compete directly
with our products for which no royalties are payable.

We have entered into patent cross-license agreements with several of our leading competitors, including,
Intel, Matsushita, Renesas, SST, Samsung, Sharp, Sony, Toshiba and TDK. Under these agreements, each
party may manufacture and sell products that incorporate technology covered by the other party’s patent or
patents related to flash memory devices. If we continue to license our patents to our competitors, competition
will increase and may harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. There can be no
assurance that we will be successful in concluding licensing agreements under terms that are favorable to us,
or at all, or that these licenses will help our business.

Each of our products faces competition from large and small suppliers; some introducing differentiated
products that may be more attractive to our customers. For example, Lexar Media’s Jump Drive, M-Systems’
DiskOnKey, Toshiba’s Trans Memory and Trek’s Thumbdrive compete directly with our Cruzer Mini product
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line and the Secure MultiMediaCard from Renesas and Infineon, the RS-MMC from Renesas and Samsung,
and the MultiMediaCard from Samsung all compete with our SD and MMC cards. In addition, in 2002, the
xD-picture card format was introduced as direct competition for our Smart Media card products. We
experienced a decline in sales of Smart Media card products in 2002 and 2003 and expect a continued decline
in sales of these products in 2004 as sales of xD-picture cards increases. We compete with Sony and Lexar in
the market for Memory Stick products. Sony has a very strong brand name which may make their Memory
Stick cards more attractive to some customers than our comparable cards. In 2004, we expect to begin
manufacturing and offering a SanDisk labeled version of the Memory Stick PRO and Memory Stick Pro Duo
product lines. Additionally, Olympus’ and Fuji’s control of the market for digital cameras using the xD-picture
card format gives them a competitive advantage in selling xD-picture cards to retail customers. Rotating disk
drives, including among others, the Microdrive, compete with our larger capacity flash memory cards. In
addition, other companies, such as Matrix Semiconductor, have announced products or technologies that may
potentially compete with our Shoot and Store products. Additionally, new card formats; like the Express Card
are periodically introduced in an effort to compete with the existing standards for memory cards. New
competing standards may not be mechanically and electronically compatible with our products. If a
manufacturer of digital cameras or other consumer electronic devices designs in one of these alternative
competing standards, our products will be eliminated from use in that product.

We also face competition from products based on alternative MLC flash technology from Intel (Strata
Flash), Renesas (AG-AND) and Infineon Flash (Twin bit). These products compete with our NAND MLC
products.

Furthermore, we expect to face competition both from existing competitors and from other companies
that may enter our existing or future markets with similar or alternative data storage solutions, which may be
less costly or provide additional features. Our business is characterized by rapid innovation and many other
companies are pursuing new technologies, which may make our flash memory obsolete or uncompetitive in a
few years. Additionally, if we do not continue to invest in new technologies, our business would likely be
seriously harmed.

We believe that our ability to compete successfully depends on a number of factors, including:

» price, quality, and on-time delivery to our customers; ‘

» product performance, availability and differentiation;

« success in developing new applications and new market segments;

+ adequate manufacturing capacity;

« efficiency of production;

+ timing of new product announcements or introductions by us, our customers and our competitors;

» the ability of our competitors to incorporate their flash data storage systems into their customers’
products;

» the number and nature of our competitors in a given market;
» successful protection of intellectual property rights; and
+ general market and economic conditions.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors
or that competitive pressures faced by us will not materially adversely affect our business, financial condition
or results of operations.

Employees

As of December 28, 2003, we had 751 full-time employees and 54 temporary employees, including 283 in
research and development, 147 in sales and marketing, 165 in general and administration and 210 in
operations. Our success is dependent upon our retention of key technical, sales and marketing employees and
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members of senior management. Qur success is also contingent on our ability to attract and recruit skilled
employees. None of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement and we have never
experienced any work stoppage. We believe that our employee relations are good.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal facilities are located in Sunnyvale, California. We lease two adjacent buildings, a
104,000 square foot building that is dedicated to research and development and operations activities and a
52,000 square foot building which houses our administrative, sales and marketing functions. We occupy this
space under lease agreements that expire in July 2006. Under these agreements, we have the option to renew
the leases on both buildings for one additional five-year term ending on June 30, 2011. In February 2004, we
signed a lease for an additional 50,000 square foot building adjacent to our current corporate headquarters.
This lease runs through November 2005, We believe that our facilities will be adequate to meet our near term
needs and that additional space will be available as required. We also lease sales offices in the United States,
Japan, Germany, the Netherlands, Hong Kong, Scotland and Sweden, operation support offices in Taichung,
Taiwan and Dongguan, China and design centers in Tefen, Israel and East Kilbride, Scotland.

Ttem 3. . Legal Proceedings

From time to time, it has been and may continue to be necessary to initiate or defend litigation against
third parties to preserve and defend our intellectual property rights. These and other parties could bring suit
against us.

Litigation is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially
from our expectations. Factors that could cause litigation results to differ include, but are not limited to, the
discovery of previously unknown facts, changes in the law or in the interpretation of laws, and uncertainties
associated with the judicial decision-making process. We have been subject to, and expect to continue to be
subject to, claims and legal proceedings regarding alleged infringement by us of the patents, trademarks and
other intellectual property rights of third parties. Furthermore, parties that we have sued and that we may sue
for patent infringement may counter-sue us for infringing their patents. Litigation involving intellectual
property can become complex and extend for a protracted time, and is often very expensive. Such claims,
whether or not meritorious, may result in the expenditure of significant financial resources, injunctions against
us or the imposition of damages that we must pay and would also divert the efforts and attention of some of
our key management and technical personnel. We may need to obtain licenses from third parties who allege
that we have infringed their rights, but such licenses may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.
Moreover, if we are required to pay significant monetary damages, are enjoined from selling any of our
products or are required to make substantial royalty payments, our business would be harmed.

On or about August 3, 2001, the Lemelson Medical, Education & Research Foundation, or Lemelson
Foundation, filed a complaint for patent infringement against us and four other defendants. The suit, captioned
Lemeélson Medical, Education, & Research Foundation, Limited Partnership vs. Broadcom Corporation,
et al.,, Civil Case No. CIV0! 1440PHX HRH, was filed in the United States District Court, District of
Arizona. On November 13, 2001, the Lemelson Foundation filed an Amended Complaint, which made the
same substantive allegations against us but named more than twenty-five additional defendants. The Amended
Complaint alleges that we, and the other defendants, have infringed certain patents held by the Lemelson
Foundation pertaining to bar code scanning technology. By its complaint, the Lemelson Foundation requests
that we be enjoined from our allegedly infringing activities and seeks unspecified damages. On February 4,
2002, we filed an answer to the Amended Complaint, wherein we alleged that we do not infringe the asserted
patents, and further that the patents are not valid or enforceable.

On October 31, 2001, we filed a complaint for patent infringement in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of California against Memorex Products, Inc., Pretec Electronics Corporation, Ritek
Corporation, and Power Quotient International Co., Ltd. In the suit, captioned SanDisk Corp. v. Memorex
Products, Inc., et al., Civil No. CV 01-4063 VRW, we secek damages and injunctions against these companies
from making, selling, importing or using flash memory cards that infringe our U.S. Patent No. 5,602,987, or
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the '987 patent. Defendants have filed answers denying the allegations. We filed a motion for a preliminary
injunction in the suit to enjoin Memorex, Pretec and Ritek from making, selling, importing or using flash
memory cards that infringe our '987 patent prior to the trial on the merits. On May 17, 2002, the Court denied
our motion. Discovery has commenced. Ritek filed a motion for summary judgment of non-infringement on
October 31, 2002. We filed a cross-motion for summary judgment of Ritek’s infringement. The Court granted
Ritek’s motion on September 30, 2003. Discovery is continuing with respect to the Pretec and Memorex
portion of the case. We intend to appeal the Court’s grant of Ritek’s motion. On January 29, 2004, Pretec filed
a motion for summary judgment of non-infringement. Memorex filed a motion to join in Pretec’s summary
judgment motion on January 30, 2004. The Court has taken these motions under submission.

On or about June 9, 2003, we received written notice from Infineon Technologies AG, or Infineon, that it
believes we have infringed Infineon’s U.S. Patent No. 5,726,601, or the 601 patent. We contend that we have
not infringed any valid claim of the *601 patent. On June 24, 2003, we filed a complaint against Infineon for a
declaratory judgment of patent non-infringement and invalidity in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California. In the suit, captioned SanDisk Corporation v. Infineon Technologies AG, a
German corporation, and Does I to X, Civil No. C 03 02931 BZ, we are seeking a declaration that we have not
infringed the ’601 patent and that the patent is invalid. On October 6, 2003, Infineon filed an answer to our
complaint and counterclaim for alleged patent infringement. By its answer and counterclaim, Infineon:
(i) denied that we are entitled to the declaration sought by our complaint; (ii) requested that we be adjudged
to have infringed, actively induced and/or contributed to the infringement of the '601 patent and another
patent — U.S. Patent No. 4,841,222, or the 222 patent, willfully and deliberately; and (iii) sought damages,
attorneys’ fees, and an injunction againstus from making, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing any
product that infringes upon the rights secured by the *601 and *222 patents. Later on October 6, 2003, Infineon
filed an amended answer and counterclaim, which includes the same substantive allegations of infringement
that are found in its original answer and counterclaim. On October 27, 2003, we filed a reply to Infineon’s
counterclaims, wherein we denied that we infringe the asserted patents, and denied that Infineon is entitled to
any relief in the action. Discovery has commenced. On January 13, 2004, Infineon informed us that it desires
to file an amended counterclaim that would omit claims under the "222 patent, leaving only the 601 patent in
the suit. Infineon has requested that we consent to allow it to file the proposed amendment. We have informed
Infineon that we will consider its request for consent.

On July 3, 2003, a purported shareholder class action lawsuit was filed on behalf of United States holders
of ordinary shares of Tower as of the close of business on April 1, 2002 in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. The suit, captioned Philippe de Vries, Julia Frances Dunbar De Vries
Trust, et al.,, v. Tower Semiconductor Ltd., et al., Civil Case No. 03 CV 4999, was filed against Tower and
certain of its shareholders and directors, including us and Eli Harari, our President and CEO and a Tower
board member, and asserts claims arising under Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder. The lawsuit alleges that Tower and certain of its
directors made false and misleading statements in a proxy solicitation to Tower shareholders regarding a
proposed amendment to a contract between Tower and certain of its shareholders, including us. The plaintiffs
are seeking unspecified damages and attorneys’ and experts’ fees and expenses.

On February 20, 2004 we and a number of other manufacturers of flash memory products were sued in
the Superior Court of the State of California for the City and County of San Francisco in a purported
consumer class action captioned Willem Vroegh et al. v. Dane Electric Corp. USA, et al. alleging false
advertising, unfair business practices, breach of contract, fraud, deceit, misrepresentation and violation of the
California Consumers Legal Remedy Act. The lawsuit purports to be on behalf of a class of purchasers of flash
memory products and claims that the defendants overstated the size of the memory storage capabilities of
such products. The lawsuit seeks restitution, injunction and damages in an unspecified amount.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers, who are elected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors, are as
follows (all ages are as of March 1, 2004):

Name Age Position

Dr.EiHarari ..................... 58  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Sanjay Mehrotra ................... 45 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer

Nelson Chan ...................... 42  Senior Vice President and General Manager,
Retail Business Unit

Michael Gray ..................... 47  Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vice President

Finance and Administration

Dr. Eli Harari, the founder of SanDisk, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a
director of SanDisk since June 1988. Dr. Harari founded Wafer Scale Integration, a privately held
semiconductor company, in 1983 and was its President and Chief Executive Officer from 1983 to 1986, and
Chairman and Chief Technical Officer from 1986 to 1988. From 1973 to 1983, Dr. Harari held various
management positions with Honeywell Inc., Intel Corporation and Hughes Aircraft Microelectronics.
Dr. Harari holds a Ph.D, in Solid State Sciences from Princeton University and has more than 70 patents
issued in the field of non-volatile memories and storage systems. Dr. Harari is a board member of Tower
Semiconductor, a public company in which we hold a minority investment.

Mr. Sanjay Mehrotra co-founded SanDisk in 1988 and has served as our Vice President of Engineering,
Vice President of Product Development, Director of Memory Design, and Product Engineering. He is
currently Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. He has more than 24 years of experience in
the non-volatile semiconductor memory industry including engineering and engineering management positions
at Intel Corporation, Seeq Technology, Integrated Device Technology and Atmel Corporation. Mr. Mehrotra
earned B.S. and M.S. degrees in electrical engineering and computer sciences from the University of
California, Berkeley. He also holds several patents and has published articles in the area of non-volatile
memory design and flash memory systems.

Mr. Nelson Chan brings more than 20 years of high-technology marketing and engineering experience
and has served as our Vice President of Marketing and Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales and
Marketing. He is currently Senior Vice President and General Manager, Retail Business Unit. Prior to joining
us in 1992, Mr. Chan held marketing and engineering positions at Chips and Technologies, Signetics, and
Delco Electronics. Mr. Chan was one of the principal organizers of the CompactFlash Association (CFA) and
the MultiMediaCard Association (MMCA). He is an officer and board member of the CFA and a board
member of the MMCA. He holds a B.S. in Electrical and Computer Engineering from the University of
California, Santa Barbara and an M.B.A. from Santa Clara University.

Mr. Michael Gray joined us in 1995 as Director of Finance, was promoted to Vice President of Finance in
1999 and to Senior Vice President Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer in 2002. During
his tenure with us, his responsibilities have included managing the financial planning and analysis, treasury,
SEC reporting, corporate accounting services, investor relations, cost accounting, insurance and tax functions.
Mr. Gray was also actively involved in our initial public offering, three secondary offerings and our convertible
note offering. Mr. Gray has more than 25 vears of financial management experience with high technology
companies and previously worked at Consilium, Inc., ASK Computer Systems, Inc., and Signetics Corp.
Mr. Gray holds an M.B.A. from the University of Santa Clara and a B.S. in finance from the University of
[lhinois.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market Price of Our Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “SNDK”. Qur initial
public offering of common stock occurred on November 8, 1995 at an initial price to the public of $10.00 per
share. On January 26, 2000, our board of directors approved a 2-for-1 stock split, in the form of a 100% stock
dividend, payable to stockholders of record as of February 8, 2000. The dividend was paid and the split was
effected on February 22, 2000. On January 20, 2004, our board of directors approved a 2-for-1 stock split, in
the form of a 100% stock dividend, payable to stockholders of record as of February 3, 2004. The dividend was
paid and the split was effected on February 18, 2004. The following table lists the high and low sales prices for
each quarter during the last two fiscal years. Shares, share price, per share amounts, common stock at par
value and capital in excess of par value have been restated to reflect the effect of these stock splits for all
periods presented.

_High _Llow

Fiscal year 2002

First quarter .. ... $11.11 § 622

Second QUATTET . . .o\ttt $11.70  $ 4.80

Third qUATTEr . ..o $905 § 553

Fourth quarter . ... ... .. e $14.60 $ 6.00
Fiscal year 2003 _

FIrst QUATtET . .o e $12.20 $ 7.39

Second QUAITET . .. it i i e e $20.73 § 8.21

Third QUATtEr . ..........coooieiniiii., e . $3408 - $19.00

Fourth quarter ... . $43.15  $26.60

As of March 1, 2004, we had approximately 336 stockholders of record. We have never declared or paid
any cash dividends on our common stock and do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, for use in our business.

On December 24, 2001, we sold to two qualified institutional buyers, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated
and ABN AMRO Rothschild LLC, $125.0 million principal amount of 4'4% Convertible Subordinated Notes
due 2006, or the Notes, and on January 10, 2002, the initial purchasers completed the exercise of their option
to purchase an additional $25.0 million of Notes. These initial purchasers received a commission from the sale
of the Notes of an aggregate of $3.8 million. The Notes were resold by the initial purchasers to “qualified
institutional buyers” pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and were not, when
issued, of the same class as securities listed on a national securities exchange or quoted on Nasdaq. The Notes
are convertible at the option of the holders into our common stock at a conversion rate of approximately
$9.22 per share, which is equal to a conversion rate of approximately 108.5070 shares of common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of Notes. The Notes are redeemable by us at any time on or after November 17, 2004
at specified prices. While the Notes are outstanding, we will have debt service obligations on the Notes of
approximately $6.8 million per year in interest payments.

On September 30, 2003, we closed the sale and issuance of 15,992,000 shares of our common stock at a
price to the public of $32.63 per share, yielding net proceeds to us of approximately $504.8 million. In
addition, on October 8, 2003, we closed the issuance and sale of 532,162 shares of our common stock pursuant
to the underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option related to the offering, yielding net proceeds
to us of approximately $16.8 million.
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Item 6: Sandisk Corporation Selected Financial Data

Year Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 2,
2003(1) 2002(2) 2001(3) 2000(4) 2000
- (In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues’

Product ....................... $ 982,341 $492,900 $ 316,867 $526,359 $205,770

License and royalty ............. 97,460 48,373 49,434 75,453 41,220
Total revenues ................... 1,079,801 541,273 366,301 601,812 246,990
Costof revenues.................. 641,189 352,452 392,293 357,017 152,143
Gross profits (losses) .............. 438,612 188,821 (25,992) 244,795 94,847
Operating income (loss) ........... 257,038 58,151 (152,990) 124,666 30,085
Net income (loss) ................ $ 168,859 $ 36,240 $(297,944)  $298,672 $ 26,550
Net income (loss) per share

Basic ....... . i $ 1.17 $ 027 $ (2.19) § 224 § 0.24

Diluted. ............. $ 1.02 $ 026 $§ (219) $ 206 § 0.22
Shares used in per share calculations

Basic ........ ... 144,781 137,610 136,296 133,722 111,668

Diluted........................ 171,616 142,460 136,296 145,302 122,866

At
December 28, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 2,
2003 2002 2001 2000 2000

Working capital .................. $1,378,070 $584,450 $419,289 $ 525,950  $482,793
Totalassets ..............cconn.n. 2,023,514 973,579 934,261 1,107,907 657,724
Long-term convertible subordinated

NOES v viv e 150,000 150,000 125,000 — —
Total stockholders’ equity .......... 1,500,688 627,720 675,379 863,058 572,127
(1) Includes a loss of approximately $18.3 million, or $12.8 million net of tax, as a result of the fraudulent

(2)

3)

(4

sale of approximately 127.8 million shares of UMC stock and the misappropriation of the proceeds, by an
employee of our law firm in Taiwan, a gain of approximately $7.0 million, or $4.9 million net of tax,
related to the sale of 35 million shares of our UMC investment, write-downs related to the recoverability
of wafer credits of $3.9 million, or $2.7 million net of tax, and an adjustment to the fair value of the Tower
warrant of $0.6 million, or $0.5 million net of tax.

Includes other-than-temporary impairment charges of $14.4 million, or $8.7 million net of tax, write-
downs related to the recoverability of wafer credits of $2.8 million, or $1.8 million net of tax, and an
adjustment to the fair value of the warrant of $0.7 million, or $0.5 million net of tax.

Includes other-than-temporary impairment charges of $302.3 million, or $188.1 million net of tax and
restructuring charges of $8.5 million or $6.7 million net of tax.

Includes gain on investment of UMC of $344.2 million, or $203.9 million net of tax.

See the Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations.

19




SANDISK CORPORATION

SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY DATA
(Unaudited. In thousands, except per share data)

Quarters Ended

March 30 June 29 September 28 December 28
2003 '
Revenues
Product............. P $155,448  $214,044 $259,446 $353,403
License and royalty .......... ... ... ... .. 19,032 20,582 21,954 35,892
Total Tevenues . .......o v 174,480 234,626 281,400 389,295
Gross profits . . ... .. oo 71,591 88,772 113,635 164,614
Operating income .. ..o, 34,686 46,659 66,803 108,890
Net income® ... . 24,925 41,326 14,770 87,838
Net income per share
Basict oo v e s $ 018 § 030 $ 0.1 $ 055
Dilutedt ... .. . $ 017 $§ 0.26 $ 0.09 $ 047
Quarters Ended
March 31 June 30 September 29 December 29
2002
Revenues
Product .. ... e $ 86,459  $115,677 $132,050 $158,714
Licenseand royalty . ................. S 6,160 12,021 9,078 21,114
Total revenues ..........cco ... 92,619 127,698 141,128 179,828
Gross profits . . ... oo e 11,220 43,314 54,341 79,946
Operating income (loss) ........... ... oo, (17,044) 10,633 21,912 42,650
Netincome (loss)** ... ... ... ... ... . oo, (3,734) 9,040 11,324 19,610
Net income (loss) per share
Basict .o $ (003) $ 007 $ 0.08 $ 014
Dilutedy ...... ... ... $ (003) $ 007 $ 008 $§ 013

* In the first quarter of 2003, we recognized a loss of $4.5 million on the other-than-temporary decline in the
fair value of our investment in Divio. In the third quarter of 2003, we recognized a gain of $4.3 million on
the sale of our investment in Divio. In the first, second and third quarters of 2003, we recognized losses
totaling $3.9 million for write-downs related to the recoverability of our Tower prepaid wafer credits and.
adjustments in the fair value of our Tower warrant. In the third quarter of 2003, we suffered a loss of
approximately $18.3 million as a result of the fraudulent sale of approximately 127.8 million shares of
UMC stock owned by us and misappropriation of the proceeds, by an employee of our law firm in Taiwan.
Also, during the third quarter of 2003, we sold 35 million shares of our UMC investment for a realized gain
of approximately $7.0 million.

** In the third and fourth quarters of 2002, we recognized losses of $0.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively,
on other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of our investment in Divio. In the third and fourth
quarters of 2002, we recognized losses totaling $15.2 million on the other-than-temporary decline in the
market value of our foundry investment in Tower, write-downs related to the recoverability of our prepaid
wafer credits and an adjustment in the fair value of our Tower warrant.

+ Quarterly earnings per share figures may not total to yearly earnings per share, due to rounding and
fluctuations in the number of options included or omitted from diluted calculations based on the stock
price or option strike prices.

See the Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
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Item 7: Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Statements in this report, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws. These statements may contain words such as “expects,” “anticipates,”
“intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or other wording indicating future results or expectations.
Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results may differ materially
from the results discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our actual results to
differ materially include, but are not limited to, those discussed under “Factors That May Affect Future
Results” below, and elsewhere in this report. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially affected by any of these factors. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any
forward-looking statements 1o reflect any event or circumstance that may arise after the date of this report.

1w

Overview

SanDisk was founded in 1988 to develop and market flash data storage systems. We sell our products to
the consumer electronics and industrial/communications markets. In 2003, approximately 92% of our product
sales were attributable to the consumer electronics market, particularly sales of our CompactFlash, or CF
card, Secure Digital, or SD card, miniSD, Memory Stick, SmartMedia and xD-Picture card products
primarily in digital camera applications and cell phones. Substantial portions of our products are sold into the
retail channel, which usually has shorter customer order lead-times than our other channels. A majority of our
sales to the retail channel have immediate request dates, with orders received and fulfilled in the same quarter,
thereby decreasing our ability to accurately forecast future production needs and sales levels. We believe sales
to the consumer market will continue to represent a substantial majority of our sales, and may even increase as
a percentage of our sales in future years. There is an increasing popularity of consumer applications with flash
memory, including digital cameras, portable digital music players, cell phones, cell phones that incorporate
digital cameras, USB flash drives and PDAs.

Our operating results are affected by a number of factors including the volume of product sales,
competitive pricing pressures, availability of foundry capacity from both captive and non-captive sources, the
timing: and volume of sell-through by our distributors and retail customers to their customers, variations in
manufacturing cycle times, fluctuations in manufacturing yields and manufacturing capacity utilization, the
timing of significant orders, our ability to match supply with demand, changes in product and customer mix,
market acceptance of new or enhanced versions of our products, changes in the channels through which our
products are distributed, timing of new product announcements and introductions by us and our competitors,
the timing of license and royalty revenues, fluctuations in product costs, increased research and development
expenses, and exchange rate fluctuations. In the event we are required to increase purchases of flash memory
products from non-captive sources due to supply constraints on our captive sources, our product gross margins
may be adversely impacted. We have experienced seasonality in the past, and as the proportion of our products
sold for use in consumer ¢lectronics applications increases, our revenues may become increasingly subject to
seasonal increases in the fourth quarter of each year with declines in the first quarter of the following year. See
“Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Our Business — Our operating results may
fluctuate significantly...” and “— Risks Related to Sales of Our Products — There is seasonality in our
business...”

Beginning in late 1995, we adopted a strategy of licensing our flash technology, including our patent
portfolio, to third-party manufacturers of flash products. To date, we have entered into patent cross-license
agreements with several companies, and intend to pursue opportunities to enter into additional licenses. Under
our current license agreements, licensees pay license fees, royalties, or a combination thereof. In some cases,
the compensation to us may be partially in the form of guaranteed access to flash memory manufacturing
capacity from the licensee company. The timing and amount of royalty payments and the recognition of
license fees can vary substantially from quarter to quarter depending on the terms of each agreement and, in
some cases, the timing of sales of products by the other parties. As a result, our license and royalty revenues
have fluctuated significantly in the past and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future. Given the
relatively high gross margins associated with license and royalty revenues, gross margins and net income are
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likely to fluctuate more with changes in license and royaity revenues than with changes in product revenues.
Our license and royalty revenues may decline in the future as certain of our existing license agreements expire
or our licensees reach their royalty payment caps.

We market our products using our direct sales organization, distributors, manufacturers’ representatives,
private label partners, OEMs and retailers. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, retail sales accounted for 64%, 64% and
54% of total product revenues, respectively. We expect that sales through the retail channel will continue to
comprise a significant portion of our product revenues in the future, and that a substantial portion of our sales
into the retail channel will be made to participants that will have the right to return unsold products. Our
policy is to defer recognition of revenues from these sales until the products are sold to the end customers. In
2003 and 2002, sales to the OEM and Industrial channels accounted for 36% of total product revenues,
compared to 46% in 2001. However, total revenue dollars from our OEM and Industrial channels increased
99% in 2003, compared to 2002.

Historically, a majority of our sales have been to a limited number of customers. Sales to our top 10
customers accounted for approximately 50%, 48% and 49%, of our product revenues for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, no single customer accounted for greater than 10% of our total revenues.
However, seven of the top ten customers for 2003 were also part of our top ten customers in 2002 and 2001.
We expect that sales of our products to a limited number of customers will continue to account for a
substantial portion of our product revenues for the foreseeable future. The loss of, or a significant reduction in
purchases by, any of our major customers, could harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations. See “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Sales of Our Products — Sales
to a small number of customers represent a significant portion of our revenues....”

All of our flash memory products require silicon wafers for the memory components and the controller
components, which are included in our flash card products. The substantial majority of our memory wafers are
currently manufactured for us by Toshiba Corporation’s, or Toshiba’s, wafer facility at Yokkaichi, Japan,
under our joint venture agreement. Additionally, in August 2002, we entered into a seven-year supply
agreement with Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., or Samsung, which extended our existing relationship and
allows us to purchase NAND flash memory products from Samsung’s fabrication facilities in South Korea.
Our controller wafers are currently manufactured by UMC and Tower. Our business is subject to cyclical
patterns as the demand versus supply equation is rarely in balance. In times where supply outpaces demand,
we have experienced significant declines in our average selling-prices, as was the case in 2001. In times where
demand outpaces supply, average selling prices decline more modestly, as was the case in the latter part of
2002 and throughout 2003. While the changes in average selling prices significantly impact our gross margins,
we believe that declines in average selling prices allow for new markets or new applications for flash memory
to be created. It is our challenge to reduce our costs through greater efficiencies and in lower technology
geometries, whereby our reduction in costs exceed the declines in average selling prices. We anticipate in this
environment that our gross margins may still be negatively impacted, however, the new markets and
applications may allow for us to increase our revenue levels which in turn will increase our net income. [f
industry-wide demand for our products is below the industry-wide available supply for prolonged periods, our
product prices could decrease faster than our ability to reduce costs resulting in operating losses in the future.

Under our wafer supply agreements with Toshiba, FlashVision, Samsung, Tower Semiconductor Ltd., or
Tower, and UMC, we are obligated to provide a six-month rolling forecast of anticipated purchase orders.
Generally, the estimates for the first three months of each rolling forecast are binding commitments. The
estimates for the remaining three months of the forecast may only be changed by a certain percentage from
the previous month’s forecast. In addition, we are obligated to purchase 50% of ail of FlashVision’s wafer
production. This limits our ability to react to significant fluctuations in demand for our products. If customer
demand falls below our forecast and we are unable to reschedule or cancel our orders, we may end up with
excess inventories, which could result in higher operating expenses. Conversely, if customer demand exceeds
our forecasts, we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of wafers and flash memory products to fill
customer orders, which could result in lost sales and lower revenues. If we are unable to obtain scheduled
quantities of wafers or flash memory products with acceptable prices and/or yields from any foundry, our
business, financial condition and resulits of operations could be harmed.
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Excess inventory not only ties up our cash, but also can result in substantial losses if such inventory, or
large portions thereof, has to be written down due to lower market pricing or product obsolescence. We have
from time to time taken write-downs for excess or obsolete inventories and lower of cest or market price
adjustments. In 2001 for example, such write-downs and lower of cost or market adjustments were
approximately $85.0 million. We may be forced to take additional write-downs for excess or obsolete inventory
in future quarters if market demand for our products deteriorates and our inventory levels exceed customer
orders. In addition, we may record additional lower of cost or market price adjustments to our inventories if
pricing pressure results in a net realizable value that is lower than our cost. These inventory adjustments
decrease gross margins and in 2001 resulted in, and could in the future result in, fluctuations in gross margins
and net earnings in the quarter in which they occur. See “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks
Related to Our Business — Our operating results may fluctuate significantly....”

Export sales are an important part of our business, representing 58%, 51% and 55% of our total revenues
in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Our sales may be impacted by changes in economic or political
conditions in our international markets. Economic conditions in our international markets, including Japan,
Asia and the European Union, may adversely affect our revenues to the extent that demand for our products in
these regions declines. While most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, we invoice certain Japanese
customers in Japanese Yen and are subject to exchange rate fluctuations on these transactions, which could
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. See “Factors That May Affect Future
Results — Risks Related to Our International Operations and Changes in Securities Laws and Regulations —
Because of our international operations, we must comply with numerous international laws and regulations...”

For the foreseeable future, we expect to realize a significant portion of our revenues from recently
introduced and new products. Typically, new products initially have lower gross margins than more mature
products because the manufacturing yields are lower at the start of manufacturing each successive product
generation. In addition, manufacturing yields are generally lower at the start of manufacturing any product at a
new foundry or at a new line width geometry. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, we experienced start-up costs of
approximately $3.3 million, $6.5 million and $22.0 million, respectively, associated with transition from one
technology to another and with the ramping up NAND wafer production at FlashVision in 2002 and 2001.
During the start-up phase, the fabrication equipment and operating expenses are applied to a relatively small
output of production wafers, making this output very expensive. In the next two to three years, we expect to
make substantial new investments in additional fabrication capacity at FlashVision. In February 2004, we
committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund additional 200-millimeter
fabrication capacity through the end of 2004. This loan is secured by the equipment purchased by FlashVision
using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in several tranches through the first quarter
of 2006. Because our funding obligation is denominated in Japanese Yen, the amount of our obligation on a
given date when converted to U.S. dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date.

In December 2003, we and Toshiba announced our intention to, and are currently in discussions
regarding, cooperating in the construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at
Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. As under the current FlashVision joint venture, we would be obligated to
purchase half of Fab 3’s NAND wafer production output. Toshiba would construct the Fab 3 building,
depreciation of the Fab 3 building would be a component of the cost to each party of wafers produced by
Fab 3, and both parties would provide funds for the manufacturing equipment. Toshiba currently plans to
begin construction of the building in the first half of 2004. We may agree that in the event that we and Toshiba
do not execute definitive agreements with respect to Fab 3, we will reimburse Toshiba for 50% of certain
start-up costs and Fab 3 Co. formation costs incurred by Toshiba and for cancellation fees due under
authorized contractor and vendor invoices for orders placed by Toshiba for certain equipment and construction
materials for Fab 3 that Toshiba cannot otherwise use, which amounts would be substantial. The total
investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion through
the end of 2006, of which our share is estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production
currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We and Toshiba have not yet agreed to the terms of this potential new
venture. We and Toshiba would share equally in the investment, and we may need to raise additional capital
for our portion of the investment. In addition to our initial investment in expansion at Yokkaichi and in Fab 3,
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if a final agreement for Fab 3 is reached between us and Toshiba, for several quarters we will incur substantial
start-up expenses related to the hiring and training of manufacturing personnel, facilitizing the clean room and
installing equipment at the expanded fabrication facility and at Fab 3. Should customer demand for NAND
flash products be less than our available supply, we may experience reduced revenues and increased expenses
as well as increased inventory of unsold NAND flash wafers, which. could harm our operating results. In
addition we have not yet, and may never, enter into definitive agreements with Toshiba with respect to the
construction and operation of Fab 3 and even if we do not do so, we may remain obligated to reimburse
Toshiba for 50% of the cancellation fees described above, which would be substantial.

To remain competitive, we are focusing on a number of programs to lower manufacturing costs, including
the development of future generations of NAND flash memory. There can be no assurance that we will
successfully develop such products or processes or that development of such processes will lower manufactur-
ing costs. Moreover in the event of an over supply of flash memory products, we may be unable to efficiently
utilize the NAND flash wafer production from FlashVision, which would force us to amortize the fixed costs
of the fabrication facility over a reduced wafer output, making these wafers significantly more expensive. See
“Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Vendors and Subcontractors — We and our
manufacturing partners must achieve acceptable wafer manufacturing yields...

Critical Accounting Policies & Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those
related to customer programs and incentives, product returns, bad debts, inventories, investments, income
taxes, warranty obligations, restructuring, and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under dxﬁerent
assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition, Sales Returns and Allowances and Sales Incentive Programs. We recognize net
revenues when the earnings process is complete, as evidenced by an agreement with the customer, transfer of
title and acceptance, if applicable, fixed pricing and reasonable assurance of realization. Because of frequent
sales price reductions and rapid technology obsolescence in the industry, sales made to distributors and
retailers are generally under agreements allowing price protection and/or right of return and, therefore, the
income on these sales is deferred until the retailers or distributors sell the merchandise to the their end
customer, or the rights of return expire. At December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, deferred income,
from sales to distributors and retailers was $90.1 million and $34.8 million, respectively. Estimated product
returns are provided for and were not material for any period presented in the condensed consolidated financial
statements.

We earn patent license revenue under patent cross-license agreements with several companies including
Lexar Media, Inc., or Lexar, Renesas, Samsung, Sharp Electronics Corporation, or Sharp, Silicon Storage
Technology, Inc., or SST, SmartDisk Corporation, Sony Corporation, or Sony, Olympus, and TDK. Our
current license agreements provide for the payment of license fees or royalties, or a combination thereof, to us.
The timing and amount of these payments can vary substantially from quarter to quarter, depending on the
terms of each agreement and, in some cases, the timing of sales of products by the other parties.

Revenue from patent licensing arrangements is recognized when earned. The timing of revenue
recognition is dependent on the terms of each contract and on the timing of product shipments by third parties.
For certain of our licensees, we estimate royalty revenues earned based on our licensees’ preliminary reports,
and align actual reported royalty revenues when we receive the final reports. We have received payments
under our cross-license agreements, portions of which were recognized as revenue and portions of which were
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recorded as deferred revenue. Qur cross license arrangements, that include a guarantee of access to flash
memory supply, were recorded based upon the cash received for the arrangement as we do not have vendor
specific objective evidence for the fair value of the intellectual property exchanged or supply guarantees
received. Under these arrangements we have recorded the cash received as the total value of goods received
and are recognizing the associated revenues over the life of the agreement, which corresponds to the life of the
supply arrangement as well. Recognition of deferred revenue is expected to occur in future periods over the life
of the agreements, as we meet certain obligations as provided in the various agreements. At December 28,
2003 and December 29, 2002, deferred revenue from patent license agreements was $34.5 million and
$32.1 million, respectively. The cost of revenues associated with patent license and royaity revenues was
insignificant for the three years ended December 28, 2003.

We record reductions to revenue and trade-accounts receivable for customer programs and incentive
offerings, including promotions and other volume-based incentives, when revenue is recorded based on
estimated requirements. Marketing development programs, when granted, are either recorded as a reduction
to revenue or as an addition to marketing expense depending on the contractual nature of the program. These
incentives generally apply only to our retail customers, which represented which represented 64%, 64% and
54% of our product revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. If market conditions were to decline, we
may take actions to increase customer incentive offerings to our retail customers, possibly resulting in an
incremental reduction of revenue at the time the incentive is offered.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable based on a
combination of factors. In circumstances where we are aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its
financial obligations to us (e.g., bankruptcy filings, substantial down-grading of credit ratings), we record a
specific reserve for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount we
reasonably believe will be collected. For all other customers, we recognize reserves for bad debts based on the
length of time the receivables are past due based on our historical experience. All accounts or portions thereof
that are deemed to be uncollectible are written off through a charge to the allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. If circumstances change (i.e., higher than expected defaults or an unexpected material adverse
change in a major customer’s ability to meet its financial obligations to us), our estimates of the recoverability
of amounts due us could be reduced by a material amount.

Warranty Costs. The majority of our products are warrantied for periods ranging from one to seven
years. A provision for the estimated future cost related to warranty expense is recorded and included in the
cost of revenue when revenue is recognized. Our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and
repair or replacement costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual preduct failure rates, repair
or replacement costs differ adversely from our estimates, increases to our warranty liability would be required.

Valuation of Financial Instruments. Our short-term investments include investments in marketable
equity and debt securities. We also have equity investments in, UMC of $17.5 million and Tower of
$58.7 million, as of December 28, 2003. In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized
cost of these investments is other-than-temporary, we evaluate the market conditions, offering prices, trends of
earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for our investments in marketable equity securities and debt
instruments. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, we recognize an impairment
loss in the current period operating results to the extent of the decline. In 2003, no declines of an other-than-
temporary nature were recorded for these marketable equity investments and a gain was recorded as an
adjustment to the fair value of the Tower warrant of approximately $0.6 million as determined using a Black-
Scholes option-pricing model at December 28, 2003. No adjustment was recorded related to an other-than-
temporary decline of our equity investment, as there was an unrealized pre-tax gain of approximately
$31.4 million recorded as a component of our accumulated other comprehensive income on our consolidated
balance sheet. In 2002, the market value of our investment in Tower declined significantly. As a result, we
recognized losses totaling $11.6 million related to the other-than-temporary decline of our equity investment,
and an adjustment to the fair value of the warrant purchased during 2002 of $0.7 million as determined using a
Black-Scholes option pricing model. If the fair value of the Tower and UMC investments decline further, it
may be necessary to record additional losses. See Note 8 in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Inventories and Inventory Valuation. We write down our inventory to a new basis for estimated
obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of the inventory and the
estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions, including
assumptions about changes in average selling prices. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Deferred Tax Assets. At December 28, 2003, based on the weight of all available evidence, we carried
no remaining valuation allowance on the net deferred tax assets. During 2003 we reversed a portion of the
valuation allowance that benefited the current year’s tax provision. The remaining portion of the valuation
allowance, primarily associated with unrealized capital loss on our investment and prior year stock option
deductions, was recognized into the current year’s accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and
stockholders’ equity. At December 29, 2002, we had provided a full valuation allowance against the net
deferred tax assets of approximately $66.4 million. We provide a valuation allowance against deferred tax
assets if it is more likely than not that such an amount will not be realized.

Results of Operations

We operate in one business segment, flash memory products. Qur products are sold worldwide. In the
United States and foreign countries our products are sold through direct, OEM, reseller, and distributor
channels. Our chief decision-maker, our President and Chief Executive Officer, evaluates our performance
based on total results. Revenue is evaluated based on geographic region and product category. Separate
financial information is not available by product category with respect to asset allocation, expense allocation,
or profitability.

Product Revenues. In 2003, our product revenues were $982.3 million up from $492.9 in 2002. The
increase was primarily the result of higher unit volumes and higher average card capacities within our target
markets. The largest revenue generators for 2003 included SD card, CF card, Memory Stick and miniSD card,
which collectively represented an increase of 152% in units sold. While demand outpaced supply in the
industry during fiscal 2003, our average-selling price per megabyte decreased approximately 40% when
compared to 2002. In the fourth quarter of 2003 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2002, our average selling
prices per megabyte declined 36%.

In 2002, our product revenues were $492.9 million, up $176.0 million or 56% from $316.9 million in 2001.
The increase in product revenues was primarily due of higher unit volumes and higher average card capacities
within our target markets. In fiscal 2002, the largest unit volume and revenue increases came from our
CF card, SD card, Memory Stick, and FlashDisk products, compared to the prior year. In 2002, total flash
memory units sold increased approximately 73% compared to 2001. In 2002, due to competitive pricing
pressures, our average selling price per megabyte declined by approximately 50% when compared to 2001. In
the fourth quarter of 2002, compared to the fourth quarter of 2001, our average selling prices per megabyte
declined 31%.

Our backlog as of December 28, 2003 was $78.7 million, compared to $31.7 million in 2002. This increase
in backlog was primarily due to higher bookings in all markets. Since orders constituting our current backlog
are subject to changes in delivery schedules or cancellations, backlog is not necessarily an accurate indication
of future revenue. See “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Qur Business — Our
operating results may fluctuate significantly....” and “— Risks Related to Sales of Qur Products — There is
seasonality in our business....”

In fiscal 2003 and 2002, OEM/industrial distribution sales represented 36% of our product revenues,
compared to 46% in 2001. Retail revenues, which are typically booked and shipped in the same quarter, were
64% of our product revenues in both 2003 and 2002, compared to 54% in 2001. We expect sales to the retail
channel to continue to represent a significant portion of our revenues in 2004 and beyond.

License and Royalty Revenues. We currently earn patent license fees and royalties under several cross-
license agreements. License and royalty revenues from patent cross-license agreements were $97.5 million in
2003 compared to $48.4 million in 2002 and $49.4 million in 2001. The increase in license and royalty
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revenues between 2003 and 2002 was primarily the result of increased royalty bearing sales during the year.
The decrease in license and royalty revenues between 2002 and 2001 was primarily due to lower patent
royalties from lower royalty bearing sales by some of our licensees resulting in decreased patent license
revenues recognized. Revenues from licenses and royalties were 9% of total revenues in 2003 and 2002, and
13% in 2001. Our revenue from patent licenses and royalties can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter.
A substantial portion of this revenue comes from royalties based on the actual sales by our licensees.

Gross Profits (Losses). In fiscal 2003, gross profits increased $249.8 million or 132% representing an
overall gross margin of 41% for the year. Product gross margins were 35% in 2003 up from 29% in fiscal 2002.
The increase in product gross margins and product gross profits was the result of the fairly stable pricing
environment particularly in the second half of 2003 resulting from constrained supply and lower manufactur-
ing costs, coupled with higher unit sales volumes which were partiaily offset by FlashVision start-up and tool
relocation costs. In addition, margins and profits were favorably impacted by the increase in units and
megabytes sold in 2003 resulting in improved economies of scale. Our higher mix of more cost effective multi
level cell, or MLC, chips along with our transition to .13 micron technology in the second half of 2003 also
favorably impactied our margins and gross profits. In addition, during fiscal 2003, we sold approximately
$16.2 million of inventory that had been fully written off in prior periods, which favorably impacted gross
margins by less than 2% for fiscal 2003.

In fiscal 2002, gross profits were $188.8 million, or 35% of total revenues compared to negative
$26.0 million, or negative 7% of total revenues in 2001. Product gross margins were 29% in 2002 compared to a
negative 24% in 2001. The increase in product gross margin and gross profits in 2002 was due to a combination
of factors, including relatively more stable pricing conditions within our industry in 2002 than in 2001, lower
production costs due to a higher mix of more cost effective MLC chips, significantly lower overhead expenses
due to our restructuring activities in 2001 and improved economies of scale due to the growth in unit volumes
across our major product lines. In addition, we sold approximately $11.9 million worth of NOR inventory that
had been fully written off as excess or obsolete in previous periods.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist principally of salaries and
payroll-related expenses for design and development engineers, prototype supplies and contract services.
Research and development expenses increased to $84.2 million in 2003 up from $63.2 million in 2002 and up
from $58.9 million in 2001. As a percentage of revenues, research and development expenses were 8% in 2003,
12% in 2002 and 16% in 2001. In 2003, our absolute dollar increase in research and development was primarily
due to $12.0 million increase in salaries and payroll related expenses as overall headcount in this area
increased from 204 to 283 for continuing product introductions and enhancements. In 2002, the absolute
dollar increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to a $2.7 million increase in salaries
and payroll-related expenses associated with increased personnel.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include salaries, sales commissions, benefits and
travel expenses for our sales, marketing, customer service and applications engineering personnel. These
expenses also include other selling and marketing expenses such as independent manufacturer’s representative
commissions, advertising and tradeshow expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased to $66.3 miilion in
2003 from $40.4 million and $42.6 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The increase in sales and marketing
expenses for 2003 was primarily due to increased salary and commission expenses as a result of increased
revenues during the year. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses in 2002 from 2001, was due primarily
to decreased co-op advertising expenses of $7.0 million, which as of the beginning of fiscal 2002 were offset
against revenue per applicable accounting literature, partially offset by an increase in commissions of
$4.3 million related to higher product revenues. If we had been required to retroactively apply the same
accounting treatment of recording these co-op advertising expenses as offsets to revenue per new accounting
literature prior to our fiscal year 2002, we estimate that selling and marketing expenses would have been
reduced by approximately $5.2 million for 2001. We expect sales and marketing expenses to increase in
absolute dollars as sales of our products grow and as we continue to develop the retail channel and brand
awareness for our products.
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General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses include the cost of our finance,
information systems, human resources, sharcholder relations, legal and other administrative functions. General
and administrative expenses were $31.1 million in 2003 compared to $27.1 million in 2002 and $17.0 million in
2001. The increase in general and administration expenses is primarily the result of increased headcount
resulting in higher total salaries and payroll related expenses of $7.6 million, partially offset by lower legal and
IP related expenses during the year of $2.3 million. The increase in 2002 from 2001 was due primarily to an
increase in legal fees of $6.6 million, increased payroll-related expenses of $5.0 million and an increase of
$1.3 million in allowance for doubtful accounts associated with higher trade accounts receivable balances from
increased revenues. General and administrative expenses represented 3% of total revenues in 2003 and 5% of
total revenues in 2002 and 2001. General and administrative expenses could increase in the future if we pursue
litigation to defend our patent portfolio and grow our infrastructure to support our growth. General and
administrative expense may also increase as a result of on-going efforts to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. See “Factors That May Affect Future Results — Risks Related to Our Intellectnal Property —
We may be unable to license intellectual property to or from third parties....”

Restructuring Charges. In the third quarter of 2001, we adopted a plan to transfer all of our card
assembly and test manufacturing operations from our Sunnyvale location to offshore subcontractors. As a
result we recorded a restructuring charge of $8.5 million in the third quarter of 2001. The charge included
$1.4 million of severance and employee related costs for a reduction in workforce of approximately 193
personnel, equipment write-off charges of $6.0 million and lease commitments of $1.1 million on a vacated
warchouse facility.

As of January 2003, we have subleased a portion of our warehouse building in San Jose, California. Given
the current real estate market conditions in the San Jose area, we do not expect to be able to sublease the
remainder of this building before the end of 2004. Any sublease income will be offset against the balance of
the lease commitment restructuring charge recorded in the third quarter of 2001.

Of the $8.5 million restructuring charge, cash payments of $0.8 million and $1.1 million were paid in
2001 and 2002 respectively. After writing off certain non-cash charges related to abandoned excess equipment,
accruals of $0.2 million remain as of December 28, 2003, related to amounts to be paid out for excess facility
lease charges, net of facility sub-lease income, over the respective lease terms.

The following table summarizes our restructuring activities from the inception of our plan through the
end of 2002:

Workforce Lease
Equipment Reduction Commitments Total
(In thousands)
Restructuring Charge . ..........oovveeannn. $ 6,383 $1,094 $1,033 $ 8,510
Non-cash charges.......................... (6,027) — — (6,027)
Cash payments . ........covvieneeerenennn.. — (805) — (805)
Accrual balance, December 30, 2001.......... 356 289 1,033 1,678
Non-cash charges . ........... ... (17 — — (17
Adjustments . ...... ... (339) 321 18 —
Cashpayments .......... .o ... — (610) (471) {1,081)
Accrual balance, December 29, 2002.......... — —_ 580 580
Non-cash charges................ ... ...... — — — —
Adjustments ........... . —_ — 223 223
Cash payments . ... ... coiiiivnnierennnn — — (615) - . (615)
Accrual balance, December 28, 2003.......... $§ - $ — $ 188 § 188

Equity in Income of Joint Venture. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, equity in income of joint ventures was
$0.2 million, $0.9 million and $2.1 million and included our share of net income from our FlashVision joint
venture and losses from our Digital Portal Inc., or DPI, joint venture. Under the equity method of accounting,
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our share of losses were deducted from our DPI investment account and therefore, as of December 29, 2002
there was no value related to DPI on our consolidated balance sheet. OQur DPI investment was sold in
December 2003 with minimal gain realized.

Interest Income/Expense. Interest income was $8.9 million in 2003, compared to $3.7 million in 2002
and $12.4 million in 2001. The slight increase in interest income was due to higher average cash balances
during 2003 over 2002. In September, we completed a follow-on public offering raising over $500 million in
cash. In addition, during 2003 we generated over $270 million in cash from operating activities. Lower average
interest rates over the course of the year offset our higher average cash balances. The decrease in interest
income in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to reductions in market interest rates. In 2004, we expect
interest expense to be consistent with 2003 and interest income to increase slightly as compared to 2003 as a
result of a full year of increased cash balances related to our secondary offering and cash from operating
activities.

Gain (Lossj on Investment in Foundries. 1In 2003, we sold 35 million shares of UMC stock, recognized
a gain of approximately $7.0 million and recorded a $0.6 million increase in fair value our Tower warrant as
determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. During 2003, we recognized a write-down of
$3.9 million related to the recoverability of our Tower prepaid wafer credits, which at December 28, 2003 were
vatued at $1.3 million. We periodically assess the value of the warrant, our Tower ordinary shares and our
prepaid wafer credits and adjust the value as necessary. In future periods, if we sell shares that we own in
either UMC or Tower, we may recognize a gain or loss due to fluctuations in the market value of these stocks.
During 2002, the value of our Tower investment and wafer credits had declined to $27.3 million. Losses
totaling $15.2 million, or $9.4 million net of tax, were recorded in 2002, comprised of a $11.6 million related to
the other-than-temporary decline of our equity investment, a $0.7 million adjustment to the fair value of the
warrant purchased during 2002 as determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model, and a $2.8 million
write down in the value of wafer credits. At December 30, 2001, the value of our Tower investment and wafer
credits had declined to $16.6 million. We recorded an other-than-temporary loss of $20.6 million, which
included the write-off of wafer credits received in 2001. In addition, we recorded a loss of $5.5 million on our
exchange of 75% of our Tower wafer credits for 1,284,007 Tower ordinary shares at $12.75 per share. These
losses totaled $26.1 million, or $15.8 million net of tax benefit in 2001. In both 2002 and 2001, Tower losses
were recorded in loss on investment in foundry. If the fair vatue of our Tower investment declines further, it
may be necessary to record additional losses.

In 2001, we determined that our investment in UMC had sustained a substantial decline in its value as
defined by generally accepted accounting principles. The value of our investment in UMC had declined to
$194.9 million at December 30, 2001. We recorded a loss of $275.8 million on our UMC investment in 2001,
or $166.9 million net of taxes. At December 29, 2002, the market value of the available-for-sale portion of our
UMC investment had declined $6.6 million, before tax, below its adjusted cost of $112.0 million, and this
unrealized loss of approximately $6.6 million was included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
on our consolidated balance sheet as this unrealized loss was deemed to be temporary. If the fair value of our
UMC investment declines further, it may be necessary to record additional losses. In addition, in future
periods, if our UMC shares are sold, there may be a gain or loss, due to fluctuations in the market value of
UMC’s stock.

Loss on Unauthorized Sale of UMC Shares. On October 14, 2003, we were advised by our Taiwan law
firm that UMC shares owned by us and held in custody by our Taiwan law firm, Lee and Li, had been
embezzled by an employee of Lee and Li. Based on information provided by Lee and Li, a total of
approximately 127.8 million of our UMC shares were sold in unauthorized transactions starting on August 6,
2003 and ending on September 15, 2003.

As a result of the unauthorized sales of UMC shares and our sale of 35 million UMC shares, our current
holdings in UMC decreased to approximately 20.6 million shares. Accordingly, we recognized a loss of
approximately $18.3 million in accordance with SFAS No. 5 related to the stolen shares and recognized a gain
of $7.0 million related to the sale of the 35 million shares in our consolidated statements of income for 2003.
Pursuant to a Settlement and General Release Agreement, or Settlement Agreement, entered into between us,
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Lee and Li and certain- Lee and Li personnel, the cash payment received by us of $20.0 million on
November 14, 2003, as well as, promises to pay, exclusive of interest, of $45.0 million over four years have
been classified on our consolidated balance sheet as a short-term other receivable of $11.3 million and a long-
term other receivable of $33.7 million at December 28, 2003. The promises to pay are secured by irrevocable
standby letters of credit. We believe the credit for future professional services and payments of future
charitable contributions on our behalf in the amount of $18.3 million payable over 18 years, which are an
element of our Settlement Agreement, have no value, as there is no reasonable assurance of realization.
Accordingly, we have charged to earnings these amounts as a loss on unauthorized sale of UMC shares.
Related to the recorded loss, we recognized a tax benefit in the third quarter of approximately $7.0 million,
and we also recognized a charge to our tax provision of approximately $24.4 million resulting from the reversal
of a tax benefit recognized in prior periods associated with the stolen UMC shares. If we realize any additional
recovery, a gain will be realized in the period of recovery.

Gain (Loss) on Equity Investment. During 2003, our investment in Divio was sold to ESS Technology.
The net result of this sale was a net realized loss of approximately $0.2 million. In 2002, we recognized an
impairment charge on the decline in the value of our investment in Divio of $2.7 million, or $1.7 million net of
tax, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No..115.

Other Income (Loss), Net. Other income (loss), net was ($2.7) million in 2003 compared to
($3.1) million in 2002 and ($1.0) million in 2001. The losses in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were primarily due to
foreign currency transaction losses on our Yen denominated assets.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes. Qur 2003 effective tax provision rate was approximately
30%, while our 2002 and 2001 effective tax provision (benefit) rates were approximately 9% and (33%),
respectively. Qur 2003 tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily due to state taxes, a non-cash reversal
of the tax benefit we recognized in 2001 and 2002 related to the unrealized gain in our UMC shares that were
subsequently both voluntarily and fraudulently sold in 2003, and to the benefit provided by our reversal of
approximately $47 million of the valuation allowance we carried against certain net deferred tax assets at the
end of fiscal 2002, Our 2002 tax rate was significantly lower than the statutory rate due to the utilization of
previously unbenefited net operating losses and a reduction of the valuation allowance due to the increase in
the unrealized gain on our investment in UMC. Our future tax rate may be impacted by state taxes, and our
ability to realize certain capital losses and tax credit carryforwards.

Liguidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

At December 28, 2003, we had working capital of $1.4 billion, which included $734.5 million in cash and
cash equivalents and $528.1 million in unrestricted short-term investments, excluding our investments in
UMC and Tower.

Operating activities for 2003 provided $270.4 million of cash, primarily due to net income of $168.9 mil-
lion; plus non-cash charges, primarily depreciation and amortization of $23.0 million, loss on unauthorized sale
of UMC shares of $18.3 million, a $51.3 million increase in accounts payable, a $57.7 million increase in
deferred income on shipments to distributors and retailers and deferred revenue, a $29.1 million increase in
liabilities due to related parties, a $26.2 million increase in income taxes payable and an increase in accrued
payroll and related expenses of $16.5 million. These were partially offset by increases of $104.6 million in
accounts receivable, $28.3 million in inventory, $4.1 million in deposits and other current assets and an
increase of $1.6 million in our investment in FlashVision. Cash provided by operations was $105.6 million in
2002, and cash used by operations was $72.1 million in 2001.

Net cash used in investing activities was $333.6 million in 2003. Purchases, net of proceeds from short
term investments of $293.0 million, $54.0 million of capital equipment and technology license purchases and
$11.0 million paid to Tower for the fifth milestone payment during fiscal 2003 were partially offset by
$4.4 million in net proceeds from the sale of our 1.8 million Divio, Inc. shares, and proceeds of $21.6 million
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from the sale of 35 million of our UMC shares. Net cash used in investing activities was $104.3 million in
2002 and net cash provided in investing activities was $25.1 million in 2001.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $576.9 million 2003, which included $521.6 million in net
proceeds from the issuance of common stock in our September 2003 follow-on offering, and $55.3 million
from the sale of common stock through our stock option and employee stock purchase plans. Financing
activities provided cash of $29.9 million in 2002 and $130.2 million in 2001.

Depending on the demand for our products, we may decide to make additional investments, which could
be substantial, in assembly and test manufacturing equipment or wafer fabrication foundry capacity to support
our business in the future. We may also invest in or acquire other companies’ product lines or assets. Our
operating expenses may increase as a result of the need to hire additional personnel to support our sales and
marketing efforts and research and development activities, including our collaboration with Toshiba for the
joint development of 90 nanometer and 70 nanometer NAND flash memory. We plan to fund our short-term
operations from our current cash and short-term investment balances and cash generated from operations. We
believe our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments will be sufficient to meet our
currently anticipated working capital and capital expenditure requirements for the next twelve months. We are
currently in discussions with Toshiba regarding cooperating in the construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer
fabrication facility, Fab 3, at Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. The total investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost
of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion through the end of 2006, of which our share is
estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We
and Toshiba have not yet agreed to the terms of this potential new venture. We and Toshiba will share equally
in the investment, and we may need to raise additional capital for our portion of the investment. However, if
demand for our products declines and we are required to purchase more wafers than we need due to our
FlashVison joint venture commitments and our other supply arrangements, we may not be able to generate
enough cash from our operations and will have to rely solely on our current cash and short~-term investment
balances to fund our operating activities. '

Convertible Subordinated Notes

'On December 24, 2001, we completed a private placement of $125.0 million of 4'2% Convertible
Subordinated Notes due 2006, or Notes, and on January 10, 2002, the initial purchasers completed the
exercise of their option to purchase an additional $25.0 million of Notes, for which we received net proceeds of
approximately $145.9 miliion. Based on the aggregate principal amount at maturity of $150.0 million, the
Notes provide for semi-annual interest payments of $3.4 million each on May 15 and November 15, The
Notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to the close of business on the
maturity date, unless previously redeemed or repurchased, at a conversion rate of 108.507 shares per $1,000
principal amount of the Notes, subject to adjustment in certain events. At anytime on or after November 17,
2004, we may redeem the notes in whole or in part at a specified percentage of the principal amount plus
accrued interest. The debt issuance costs are being amortized over the term of the Notes using the interest
method. We intend to fulfill our debt service obligations from cash generated by our operations, if any, and
from our existing cash and investments. If necessary, among other alternatives, we may add lease lines of
credit to finance capital expenditures and obtain other long-term debt and lines of credit. We may incur
substantial additional indebtedness in the future. There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet our
debt service obligations, including our obligations under the Notes.

Investment in UMC

In January 2000, the USIC foundry was merged into its UMC parent company. In exchange for our
USIC shares, we received 111 million UMC shares. All of the UMC shares we received as a result of the
merger were subject to trading restrictions imposed by UMC and the Taiwan Stock Exchange. As of January
2004, all trading restrictions have been released on the shares currently held by us. We also received
7.1 million, 23.0 million, 20.0 million and 22.2 million shares as stock dividends from UMC in 2003, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. During the third quarter of 2003, we sold 35 million of our UMC shares for gross
proceeds of approximately $30 million. Also during the third quarter, we suffered a loss of $18.3 million as a
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result of the fraudulent sale and misappropriation of proceeds of 127.8 million UMC shares owned by us. As a
result of the unauthorized sales of UMC shares and our sale of 35 million UMC shares, our current holdings
in UMC decreased to approximately 20.6 million shares. Accordingly, we have reduced our UMC investment
in foundries as shown in the consolidated balance sheet to $17.5 million at December 28, 2003. In addition, we
recognized a loss of approximately $18.3 million in accordance with SFAS No. 5 related to the stolen shares
and recognized a gain of $7.0 million related to the sale of the 35 million shares in our consolidated statements
of income for the year ended December 28, 2003. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement entered into between
us, Lee and Li and certain Lee and Li personnel, we received a cash payment of $20.0 million on
November 14, 2003, as well as, promises to pay, exclusive of interest, of $45.0 million over four vears. The
promises to pay have been classified on our consolidated balance sheet as a short-term other current asset of
$11.3 million and a long-term other asset of $33.7 million at December 28, 2003. The promises to pay are
secured by irrevocable standby letters of credit. We believe the credit for future professional services and
payments of future charitable contributions on our behalf in the amount of $18.3 million payable over
18 years, which are an element of our Settlement Agreement, have no value, as there is no reasonable
assurance of realization. Accordingly, we have charged to earnings these amounts as a loss on unauthorized
sale of UMC shares. Related to the recorded loss, we recognized a tax benefit in the third quarter of
approximately $7.0 million, and we also recognized a charge to our tax provision of approximately
$24.4 million resulting from the reversal of a tax benefit recognized in prior periods associated with the stolen
UMC shares. If we realize any additional recovery, a gain will be realized in the period of recovery. UMC’s
share price increased to New Taiwan dollars, or NT$, of NT$29.00 at December 28, 2003, from a stock
dividend adjusted price of NT$21.34 at December 29, 2002. As a result, our remaining investment, which is
classified as available-for-sale in accordance with SFAS No. 115 includes an unrealized gain of approximately
$4.7 million, inclusive of related tax expense of $0.6 million, recorded as a component of accumulated
comprehensive income on our consolidated balance sheet. If the fair value of the remaining 20.6 million UMC
shares declines in the future and such declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary, it may be necessary to
record losses on these declines. In addition, in future periods, there may be a gain or loss if the UMC shares
are sold, due to fluctuations in the market value of UMC’s stock.

Investment in FlashVision Joint Venture

In June 2000, we closed a transaction with Toshiba providing for the joint development and manufacture
of 512 megabit, 1 gigabit and 2 gigabit flash memory chips and Secure Digital Card controllers. As part of this
transaction, we and Toshiba formed FlashVision, a joint venture, to equip and operate a silicon wafer
manufacturing line at Toshiba’s Dominion Semiconductor facility in Manassas, Virginia. In April 2002, we
and Toshiba consolidated FlashVision’s advanced NAND wafer fabrication manufacturing operations at
Toshiba’s memory fabrication facility in Yokkaichi, Japan. In March 2002, FlashVision exercised its right of
early termination under its lease facility with ABN AMRO Bank, N.V. and in April 2002 repaid all amounts
outstanding. FlashVision secured an equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion Japanese Yen
(or approximately $305 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the agreement was executed)
in May 2002 with Mizuho and other financial institutions. Under the terms of this lease, Toshiba guaranteed
these commitments on behalf of FlashVision. We have agreed to indemnify Toshiba in certain circumstances
for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease
arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease commitments and Toshiba fulfills these commitments under
the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, then we will be obligated to reimburse. Toshiba for 49.9% of any claims
under the lease, unless such claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its obligations to FlashVision or its
covenants to the lenders. Because FlashVision’s equipment lease arrangement is denominated in Japanese
Yen, the maximum amount of our contingent indemnification obligation on a given date when converted to
U.S. Dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. As of December 28, 2003, the
maximum amount of our contingent indemnification obligation, which reflects payments and any lease
adjustments, was approximately $125.5 million.

The terms of the FlashVision joint venture contractually obligate us to purchase half of FlashVision’s
NAND wafer production output. We also have the ability to purchase additional capacity under a foundry
arrangement with Toshiba. Under the terms of our foundry agreement with Toshiba, we must provide Toshiba
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with a purchase order commitment based on a six-month rolling forecast. The purchase orders placed under
this arrangement relating to the first three months of the six-month forecast are binding, at market prices and
cannot be cancelled. At December 28, 2003, approximately $36.0 million of non-cancelable purchase orders
for flash memory wafers from Toshiba and FlashVision were outstanding. In addition, as a part of the joint
venture agreement, we are required to fund certain research and development expenses related to the
development of advanced NAND flash memory technologies. As of December 28, 2003, we had accrued
liabilities related to those expenses of $11.8 million. The common research and development amount is a
variable computation with certain payment caps. Future obligations are to be paid in installments using a
percentage of our revenue from NAND flash products built with flash memory supplied by Toshiba or
FlashVision. The direct research and development is a pre-determined amount that extends through the third
quarter of 2004. Subsequent to the third quarter of 2004, direct research and development liabilities will be
computed using a variable percentage of actual research and development expenses incurred.

Given the current apparent acceleration in global demand for flash memory wafers and assuming that the
markets for our products continue their current growth, new anticipated demand from customers may outstrip
the supply of flash memory wafers available to us from all of our current sources. In that case, we may need to
secure substantial additional flash memory wafer fabrication capacity at .09 micron and finer line lithography.
Accordingly, we and Toshiba are currently discussing various fabrication and test capacity expansion plans for
the FlashVision operation in Yokkaichi, Japan. We and Toshiba plan to substantiaily expand and increase
Yokkaichi’s 200 mm Flash memory wafer output in 2004 and 2005. The capacity expansion will be partially
funded through FlashVision internally generated funds, as well as through substantial additional investments
by Toshiba and SanDisk. In February 2004, we committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately
$150:4 million to fund additional 200-millimeter fabrication capacity through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan

-is secured by.the equipment purchased by FlashVision using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected
to be made in several tranches through the first- quarter of 2006. Because our funding obligation is
denominated in Japanese Yen, the amount of our obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. dollars
will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. '

In December 2003, we and Toshiba announced our intention to, and are currently in discussions
regarding, cooperating in the construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at
Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. As under the current FlashVision joint venture, we would be obligated to
purchase half of Fab 3's NAND wafer production output. Toshiba would construct the Fab 3 building,
depreciation of the Fab 3 building would be a component of the cost to each party of wafers produced by
Fab 3, and both parties would provide funds for the manufacturing equipment. Toshiba currently plans to
begin construction of the building in the first half of 2004. We may agree that in the event that we and Toshiba
do not execute definitive agreements with respect to Fab 3, we will reimburse Toshiba for 50% of certain
start-up costs and Fab 3 Co. formation costs incurred by Toshiba and for cancellation fees due under
authorized contractor and vendor invoices for orders placed by Toshiba for certain equipment and construction
materials for Fab 3 that Toshiba cannot otherwise use, which amounts would be substantial. The total
investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion through
the end of 2006, of which our share is estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production
currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We and Toshiba would share equally in the investment, and we may
need to raise additional capital for our portion of the investment. In addition to our initial investment in
expansion at Yokkaichi and in Fab 3, if a final agreement for Fab 3 is reached between us and Toshiba, for
several quarters we will incur substantial start-up expenses related to the hiring and training of manufacturing
personnel, facilitizing the clean room and installing equipment at the expanded fabrication facility and at
Fab 3.

Investment in Tower

In July 2000, we entered into a share purchase agreement to make an aggregate $75.0 million investment
in Tower Semiconductor for Tower’s new foundry facility, Fab 2, in five installments upon Tower’s completion
of specific milestones. As of December 28, 2003, we had invested $79.0 miilion in Tower and obtained
8,313,638 Tower ordinary shares, $14.3 million of prepaid wafer credits, and a warrant to purchase 360,313
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Tower ordinary shares at an exercise price of $7.50 per share. The warrant expires on October 31, 2006. The
8,313,638 Tower ordinary shares represented an approximate 16% equity ownership position in Tower as of
December 28, 2003. In fiscal 2003 we recorded write-downs to the value of the wafer credits of $3.9 million
and utilized approximately $0.7 million of these wafer credits to purchase controller wafers from Tower. Also
in 2003, we recorded a $0.6 million gain to adjust the book value of the warrant and as of December 28, 2003,
we had recognized cumulative losses of approximately $32.2 million as a result of the other-than-temporary
decline in the value of our investment in Tower ordinary shares, $12.2 miilion as a result of the impairment in
value on our prepaid wafer credits and $0.1 million of losses on our warrant to purchase Tower ordinary shares.

- As of December 28, 2003, our Tower ordinary shares were valued at $58.8 million and included an unrealized
gain of $34.0 million, inclusive of related tax expense impact of $2.7 million, recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, our Tower prepaid wafer credits were valued at $1.4 million and
the warrant to purchase Tower ordinary shares was valued at $1.2 million.

In February 2003, we agreed to amend our foundry investment agreements with Tower and advance the
payment of $11.0 million for the fifth and final milestone in two installments, a first installment of
approximately $6.6 million and a second installment of approximately $4.4 million, regardless of whether the
milestone was met. Tower’s shareholders approved the amendment in May 2003. In November 2003, we
agreed to further amend the foundry investment agreements, referred to as the November Amendment, to,
among other things, (a) advance the entirety of the remaining fifth milestone payment of $6,718,950, or
Payment, (b) defer our use of wafer credits, and (¢) extend the lock-up period on our Tower ordinary shares.
The November Amendment was approved by Tower’s sharcholders in December 2003, following which
approval we made the Payment. We received 777,294 Tower ordinary shares at the time we made the
Payment and 628,611 Tower ordinary shares in January 2004 upon the closing of Tower’s follow-on public
offering, which generated net cash to Tower of approximately $75.2 million and correspondingly reduced our
equity ownership position.

Also under the November Amendment, we agreed not to use wafer credits until January 1, 2007, except
with respect to purchase orders issued before the date of the November Amendment utilizing wafer credits;
however, wé will have the option to convert credits we would have otherwise been able to utilize per quarter
into Tower ordinary shares. at the 15 day average trading price of Tower shares, or ATP, preceding the last day
of the relevant quarter. Unconverted credits shall accrue interest at a rate per annum equal to three-month
LIBOR plus 2.5% through December 31, 2007. Interest payments will be made quarterly and the aggregate
principal amount of the unconverted credits will be repaid in one lump sum on December 31, 2007. Effective
as of December 31, 2005, we may convert all of the then remaining Series A-4 Credits into Tower ordinary
shares at the 15 day ATP preceding December 31, 2005. If the number of Tower ordinary shares received by
us and the other wafer partners as a result of this conversion is greater than or equal to an aggregate of 5% of
Tower’s issued and outstanding share capital on January 31, 2006, Tower will transact a rights offering for the
distribution of rights to all of Tower’s shareholders, other than us and the other wafer partners but including
Israel Corporation Technologies, at the same 15 day ATP.

The November Amendment also provides that we will not sell our Tower ordinary shares until
January 29, 2006, except we may sell 30% of the Tower shares held as of January 29, 2004. In addition, we
have extended the date on which we may exercise our demand registration rights until the earlier of
(i) December 31, 2005 and (ii) such date that Tower has fulfilled ali of its obligations to raise any additional
financing pursuant to its facility agreement.

Other Equity Investments

In November 2000, we made a strategic investment of $7.2 million in Divio, Inc., or Divio. In 2002, we
accounted for this investment under. the cost method, and we recorded a decline in the fair value of the
investment of $2.7 million. At December 29, 2002, the value of our Divie investment had declined to
$4.5 million. During fiscal 2003, Divio was sold to ESS Technology resulting in a net loss from this sale for
fiscal 2003 of $0.2 million.
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On August 9, 2000, we entered into a joint venture, Digital Portal Inc., or DPI, with Photo-Me Inc., or
PMI, for the manufacture, installation, marketing, and maintenance of self-service, digital photo printing labs,
or kiosks, bearing the SanDisk brand name in locations in the United States and Canada. Under the
agreement, we invested $2.0 million. In an agreement effective September 30, 2002, we and PMI agreed that
we would scale down our kiosk activities and PMI would assume responsibility to finance and direct the future
growth of DPIL. Under the agreement, we converted approximately $400,000 in receivables due from DPI to
equity in DPI, reduced our ownership percentage below 20% and gave up our seat on the DPI board of
directors. Under the new agreement, we discontinued our kiosk related activities, are no longer required to
make additional equity investments in DPI, guarantee DPI’s equipment leases or otherwise pay any of DPI’s
expenses, and furthermore, DPI will no longer use the SanDisk brand name. We have accounted for this
investment under the equity method, and in 2002 we recorded a $1.1 million loss as our share of DPI’s losses,
which was deducted from the investment account. As of December 28, 2003, this investment had been sold
and the related gain on the sale was minimal.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arvangements

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and off balance sheet arrangements at Decem-
ber 28, 2003, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow over the next
five years (in thousands).

Less than 5 Years
Total 1 Year 2 -~ 3 Years 4 -5 Years and Beyond

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS:
Convertible subordinated notes

payable ........... ... . ... ..., $150,000(1) $ — $150,000 $ - $—
Interest payable on convertible

subordinated notes .. .. ........... 20,250 6,750 13,500 —_— —_
Operating leases. .................. 6,816 3,132 3,684 — —
FlashVision research and

development, fabrication capacity

expansion and start-up costs....... 320,516(3)(4) 197,344 69,172 54,000
Non-cancelable purchase

commitments ................... 141,723(2) 141,723 — — =
Total contractual cash obligations .... $639,305 $348,949 $236,356 $54,000 $—

(1) On January 10, 2002, the initial purchasers completed the exercise of their option to purchase an
additional $25.0 million of the Notes.

(2) FlashVision binding three-month purchase commitments for flash memory wafers are denominated in
Japanese Yen, and are subject to fluctuation in exchange rates prior to payment.

(3) Includes a loan to FlashVision entered into in February 2004.
(4) Excludes potential Fab 3 FlashVision agreement, as agreement is not final.

Less than ‘ 5 Years
Total 1 Year 2 -3 Years 4 -5 Years and Beyond
CONTRACTUAL SUBLEASE
INCOME: .
Non-cancelable operating sublease. .. ... $336 $212 $124 $— $—
Total contractual cash income ......... $336  $212 $124 $— $—

|

As of December 28, 2003

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Indemnification of FlashVision foundry equipment lease ............... $125,530
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In June 2000, we closed a transaction with Toshiba providing for the joint development and manufacture
of 512 megabit, 1 gigabit and 2 gigabit flash memory chips and Secure Digital Card controllers. As part of this
transaction, we and Toshiba formed FlashVision, a joint venture, to equip and operate a silicon wafer
manufacturing line at Toshiba’s Dominion Semiconductor facility in Manassas, Virginia. In April 2002, we
and Toshiba restructured our FlashVision joint venture by consolidating FlashVision’s advanced NAND wafer
fabrication manufacturing operations at Toshiba's memory fabrication facility in Yokkaichi, Japan. Under the
terms of the agreement, Toshiba transferred the FlashVision owned and leased NAND production tool-set
from Dominion to Yokkaichi and undertook full responsibility for the equipment transfer and production set
up. The FlashVision operation at Yokkaichi continues the joint venture on essentially the same terms as the
parties had at Toshiba’s facility in Virginia. In March 2002, FlashVision exercised its right of early termination
under its lease facility with ABN AMRO Bank, N.V. and in April 2002 repaid all amounts outstanding.
FlashVision secured an equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion Japanese Yen (or
approximately $305 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the agreement was executed) in
May 2002 with Mizuho and other financial institutions, Under the terms of this lease, Toshiba guaranteed
these commitments on behalf of FlashVision. We have agreed to indemnify Toshiba in certain circumstances
for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease
arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease commitments and Toshiba fulfills these commitments under
the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, then we"will be obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any claims
under the lease, unless such claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its obligations to FlashVision or its
covenants to the lenders. Because FlashVision’s equipment lease arrangement is denominated in Japanese
Yen, the maximum amount of our contingent indemnification obligation on a given date when converted to
U.S. Dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. In February 2004, we committed
to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund additional 200-millimeter fabrication capacity
through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan is secured by the equipment purchased by FlashVision using the loan
proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in several tranches through the first quarter of 2006.
Because our funding obligation is denominated in Japanese Yen, the amount of our obligation on a given date
when converted to U.S. dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date.

Impact of Currency Exchange Rates

A portion of our revenues is denominated in Japanese Yen. We enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge against changes in foreign currency exchange rates. At December 28, 2003, there were no
forward contracts outstanding. Future exchange rate fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a revision to Interpreta-
tion No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51”7 (“FIN 46R”).
FIN 46R clarifies the application of ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain entities in
which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
provided by any parties, including the equity holders. FIN 46R requires the consolidation of these entities,
known as variable interest entities (“VIEs”), by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary
is the entity, if any, that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receive a majority of the entity’s
expected residual returns, or both.

Among other changes, the revisions of FIN 46R (a) clarified some requirements of the original FIN 486,
which had been issued in January 2003, (b) eased some implementation problems, and (c¢) added new scope
exceptions. FIN 46R deferred the effective date of the Interpretation for public companies to the end of the
first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004, except that all public companies must at a minimum apply
the unmodified provisions of the Interpretation to entities that were previously considered “special-purpose
entities” in practice and under the FASB literature prior to the issuance of FIN 46R by the end of the first
reporting period ending after December 15, 2003.
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Among the scope exceptions, companies are not required to apply FIN 46R to an entity that meets the
criteria to be considered a “business” as defined in the Interpretation unless one or more of four named
conditions exist. FIN 46R applies immediately to a VIE created or acquired after January 31, 2003.

We have reviewed our investment portfolio to determine whether any of our equity investments are
considered variable interest entities. We did not identify any variable interest entities that must be
consolidated, but have made any required additional disclosures. The maximum exposure of any investment
that may be determined to be in a variable interest entity is limited to the amount invested.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Emerging Issues Task Force
(referred to as EITF) Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF Issue
No. 00-21 addresses certain aspects of the accounting by a company for arrangements under which it will
perform multiple revenue-generating activities. EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses when and how an arrange-
ment involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting. EITF Issue
No. 00-21 provides guidance with respect to the effect of. certain customer rights due to company
nonperformance on the recognition of revenue allocated to delivered units of accounting. EITF Issue
No. 00-21 also addresses the impact on the measurement and/or allocation of arrangement consideration of
customer cancellation provisions and consideration that varies as a result of future actions of the customer or
the company. Finally, EITF Issue No. 00-21 provides guidance with respect to the recognition of the cost of
certain deliverables that are excluded from the revenue accounting for an arrangement. The provisions of
EITF Issue No. 00-21 applied to revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15,
2003. The effect that the adoption of EITF Issue No. 00-21 did not have a material effect on our Consoclidated
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Risks Related to Our Business

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which may adversely affect our operations and our stock
price.

‘Qur quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and we expect that
they will continue to fluctuate in the future. This fluctuation is a result of a variety of factors, including the
following:

» unpredictable or changing demand for our products;

+ decline in the average selling prices of our products due to competitive pricing pressures;
« timing of sell through by our distributors and retail customers;
« seasonality in sales of our products;

» natural disasters affecting the countries in which we conduct our business, particularly Japan, where
our principal source of flash memory wafers is located, as well as Taiwan, South Korea, China and the
United States; »

“» reduced sales to our customers or interruption to our manufacturing processes in the Pacific Rim that
may arise from regional issues in Asia;

« availability of sufficient flash memory wafer foundry capacity to meet customer demand;
« increased purchases of flash memory products from non-captive sources;

« difficulty of forecasting and managing inventory levels; particularly, building a large inventory of unsold
product due to non-cancelable contractual obligations to purchase materials such as flash memory
wafers, controllers, printed circuit boards and discrete components;

» write-offs related to obsolescence or devaluation of unsold inventory;
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» write-downs of our investments in fabrication capacity, other fixed assets, equity investments and
prepaid wafer credits;

» adverse changes in product and customer mix;

» slower than anticipated market acceptance of new or enhanced versions of our products, such as the
miniSD card targeted at advanced cell phones and the Cruzer Mini, 2 USB 2.0 hi-speed flash drive;

» increased sales by our competitors;

» competing flash memory device standards, which displace the standards used in our products;
* changes in our distribution channels;

« fluctuations in our license and royalty revenue;

» fluctuations in product costs, particularly due to fluctuations in manufacturing yields and utilization of
new technologies; ’

» excess capacity of flash memory from our competitors and our own flash wafer capacity, which may
cause a rapid decline in our average selling prices;

« shortages of components such as capacitors, lids and printed circuit boards required for the manufac-
ture of our products;

» significant or unexpected yield losses, which could affect our ability to fulfill customer orders and could
increase our costs;

« manufacturing flaws affecting the reliability, functionality or performance of our products, which could
increase our product costs, reduce demand for our products or require costly product recalls;

« increased research and development expenses;

» exchange rate fluctuations, particularly between the U.S. dollar and Japanese Yen;
+ changes in general economic conditions; and

» reduced sales to our retail customers if consumer confidence declines.

We depend on third-party foundries for silicon wafers and any shortage or disruption in our supply from
these sources will veduce our revenues, earnings and gross margins.

All of our flash memory card products require silicon wafers for the memory components and the
controller components, which are included in our flash cards. The substantial majority of our memory wafers
are currently supplied by Toshiba’s wafer facility at Yokkaichi, Japan, as well as by UMC in Taiwan and to a
lesser extent by Renesas and Samsung. Our controller wafers are currently manufactured by UMC and Tower.
Given the recent increase in global demand for flash memory wafers and assuming that the markets for our
products continue their current growth rate, new anticipated demand from customers may outstrip the supply
of flash memory wafers available to us from our current sources. If Toshiba, FlashVision, Samsung, Tower and
UMC are uncompetitive or are unable to satisfy these requirements, our business, financial condition and
operating results may suffer. Any disruption in supply from these sources due to natural disaster, power failure,
labor unrest or other causes could significantly harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Difficulty of estimating future wafer requirements may cause us to overestimate our requirements and
build excess inventories, or underestimate our vequirements and have a shortage of wafers, either of which will
harm our financial results.

Under the terms of our wafer supply agreements with FlashVision, Renesas, Samsung, Toshiba, Tower
and UMC, we are obligated to provide a six-month rolling forecast of anticipated purchase orders. Generally,
the estimates for the first three months of each rolling forecast are binding commitments and the estimates for
the remaining months of the forecast may only be changed by a certain percentage from the previous month’s
forecast. In addition, we are obligated to purchase 50% of FlashVision’s wafer production. This limits our
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ability to react to fluctuations in demand for our products. For example, if customer demand falls below our
forecast and we are unable to reschedule or cancel our orders, we may end up with excess inventories, which
could result in higher operating expenses and reduced gross margins. Conversely, if customer demand exceeds
our forecasts, we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of silicon wafers and other flash memory
products to fill customer orders, which could result in dissatisfied customers, lost sales and lower revenues. If
we are unable to obtain scheduled quantities of silicon wafers or other flash memory products with acceptable
price and/or yields from any foundry, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
harmed. Because the majority of our products are sold into emerging consumer markets, it has been, and likely
will continue to be, difficult to accurately forecast future sales, In addition, bookings visibility remains limited
because a substantial majority of our quarterly sales are currently, have historically been, and we expect will
continue to be, from orders received and fulfilled in the same quarter, which makes accurate forecasting very
difficult. Our product order backlog may fluctuate substantially from quarter to quarter.

Variability of expense levels and significant fixed costs will harm our business if our revenues do not
exceed our operating expenses.

We may need to hire additional personnel or otherwise increase our operating expenses in the future to
support our sales and marketing efforts, research and development, and general and administrative activities.
We have significant fixed costs and we cannot readily reduce these expenses over the short term. If our
revenues do not increase proportionately to our operating expenses, or if revenues decrease or do not meet
expectations for a particular period, we may not be able to reduce our expenses in the short term, or at all, and
our business, financial condition and results of operations will be harmed.

License fees and royalties from our patent cross license agreements are variable and fluctuate from period
to period making it difficult to predict our royalty revenues.

Our intellectual property strategy consists of cross-licensing our patents to other manufacturers of flash
memory products. Under these arrangements, we earn license fees and royalties on individually negotiated
terms. Our revenue from patent licenses and royalties can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter. A
substantial portion of this revenue comes from royalties based on the actual sales by our licensees. The timing
of revenue recognition from these payments is dependent on the terms of each contract and on the timing of
product shipments by our licensees. As a result, our license and royalty revenues have fluctuated significantly
in the past and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future. Given the relatively high gross margins
associated with license and royalty revenues, gross margins and net income are likely to fluctuate more with
changes in license and royalty revenues than with changes in product revenues. Qur license and royalty
revenues may decline in the future as our existing license agreements expire, caps are reached or rates change.

We may be unable to maintain market share, which would reduce our potential revenues and benefit our
competitors.

During periods of excess supply in the market for our flash memory products, we may lose market share
to competitors who aggressively lower their prices. Conversely, under conditions of tight flash memory supply,
we may be unable to increase our production volumes at a sufficiently rapid rate so as to maintain our market
share. The market for flash memory products is currently undergoing a period of tight supply, but we cannot
predict if this condition will continue and, if it does, for how long. Ultimately, our future growth rate depends
on our ability to obtain sufficient flash memory wafers and other components to meet demand. If we are
unable to do so in a timely manner, we may lose market share to our competitors. We have in the past
experienced, and may in the future experience, severe price competition for our products, which adversely
impacts our product gross margins and overall profitability. In addition, we provide many of our retail
customers protection against declines in the selling price of inventory that they have purchased from us but
have not yet sold to end users. In times when prices are falling, this price protection obligation may have a
significant adverse effect on our gross margins. In competing for market share, we face large corporations that
have well established brand identity and significant strengths in our sales channels.

39

-—



Future rapid growth may strain our operations.

We must continue to hire, train, motivate and manage our employees to achieve future growth. In the
past, we have from time to time experienced difficulty hiring the necessary engineering, sales and marketing
personnel to support our growth. In addition, we must make a significant investment in our information
management systems to support increased manufacturing, as well as accounting and other management
related functions. Our systems, procedures and controls may not be adequate to support rapid growth in the
future, which could in turn harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our success depends on key personnel, including our executive officers, the loss of whom could disrupt our
business.

Our success greatly depends on the continued contributions of our senior management and other key
research and development, sales, marketing and operations personnel, including Dr. Eli Harari, our founder,
president and chief executive officer. We do not maintain employment agreements with our executive officers.
Our success will also depend on our ability to recruit additional highly skilled personnel. We cannot assure you
that we will be successful in hiring or retaining such key personnel, or that any of our key personnel will- - ————

remain employed with us. = _ e e S —

" We may make acquisitions that are dilutive to existing stockholders, result in unanticipated accounting
charges or otherwise adversely affect our results of operations, and result in difficulties in assimilating and
integrating the operations, personnel, technologies, products and information systems of acquired companies or
businesses.

We may grow our business through business combinations or other acquisitions of businesses, products or
technologies that allow us to complement our existing product offerings, expand our market coverage, increase
our engineering workforce or enhance our technological capabilities. We continually evaluate and explore
strategic opportunities as they arise, including business combinations, strategic partnerships, capital invest-
ments and the purchase, licensing or sale of assets.

If we issue equity securities in connection with an acquisition, the issuance may be dilutive to our existing
stockholders. Alternatively, acquisitions made entirely or partially for cash would reduce our cash reserves.

Acquisitions may require significant capital infusions, typically entail many risks and could result in
difficulties in assimilating and integrating the operations, personnel, technologies, products and information
systems of acquired companies. We may experience delays in the timing and successful integration of acquired
technologies and product development through volume production, unanticipated costs and expenditures,
changing relationships with customers, suppliers and strategic partners, or contractual, intellectual property or
employment issues. In addition, key personnel of an acquired company may decide not to work for us. The
acquisition of another company or its products and technologies may also result in our entering into a
geographic or business market in which we have little or no prior experience. These challenges could disrupt
our ongoing business, distract our management and employees, harm our reputation and increase our
expenses. These challenges are magnified as the size of the acquisition increases.

Furthermore, acquisitions may require large one-time charges and can result in increased debt or
contingent liabilities, adverse tax consequences, substantial depreciation or deferred compensation charges,
the amortization of identifiable purchased intangible assets or impairment of goodwill, any of which could
negatively impact our results of operations. Any of these events could cause the price of our common stock to
decline.

We may not be able to find suitable acquisition opportunities that are available at attractive valuations, if
at all. Even if we do find suitable acquisition opportunities, we may not be able to consummate the acquisitions
on commercially acceptable terms or realize the anticipated benefits of any acquisitions we do undertake.
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Risks Related to the Development of New Products

In transitioning to new processes and products, we face production and mavket acceptance risks that have
caused, and may in the future cause, significant product delays that could harm our business.

Successive generations of our products have incorporated semiconductor devices with greater memory
capacity per chip. Two important factors have enabled us to decrease the cost per megabyte of our flash data
storage products: the development of higher capacity semiconductor devices and the implementation of
smaller geometry manufacturing processes. The transition to new feature sizes is highly complex and requires
new controllers, new test procedures and modifications of numerous other aspects of manufacturing, as well as
extensive qualification of the new products by both us and our OEM customers. Any material delay in a
qualification schedule could delay deliveries and adversely impact our operating results. In addition, a number
of challenges exist in achieving a lower cost per megabyte, including:

+ lower yields often experienced in the early production of new semiconductor devices;

» manufacturing flaws with new processes including manufacturing processes at our subcontractors
which may be extremely complex;

+ problems with the design and manufacturing of products that will incorporate these devices, which may
result in delays or product recalls; and

 production delays.

Because our products are complex, we periodically experience significant delays in the development and
volume production ramp-up of our products. Similar delays could occur in the future and could harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We cannot assure you that we, along with our flash memory wafer sources, will successfully develop and
bring into full production with acceptable yields and reliability these new products, processes or the underlying
technology, or that any development or production ramp-up will be completed in a timely or cost-effective
manner. If we are not successful or if our cost structure is not competitive, our business, financial condition
and results of operations could suffer.

New products based on NAND MLC flash technology may encounter production delays and problems
impacting production reliability and yields, which may cause our revenues and gross margins to decline.

We have developed new products based on NAND MLC flash technology, a flash architecture designed
to store two bits in each flash memory cell. High-density flash memory, such as NAND MLC flash, is a
complex technology that requires strict manufacturing controls and effective test screens. Problems encoun-
tered in the shift to volume production for new flash products could impact both reliability and vields, and
result in increased manufacturing costs and reduced product availability. We may not be able to manufacture
future generations of NAND MLC products with yields sufficient to result in lower costs per megabyte. If we
are unable to bring future generations of high-density flash memory into full production as quickly as planned
or if we experience unplanned yield or reliability problems, our revenues and gross margins will decline.

We continually seek to develop new products and standards, which may not be widely adopted by
consumers ov, if adopted, may reduce demand by consumers for our older products, which if not offset by
increased demand for the new products could harm our results of operations.

We continually seek to develop new products and standards and enhance existing products and standards
developed solely by us, as well as jointly with our strategic partners such as Toshiba, Matsushita and Sony. For
example, in March 2003, our joint development efforts with Toshiba and Matsushita, together with
contribution by the Secure Digital Association, or SD Association, resulted in the introduction of the miniSD
card, a smaller version of the SD card. In addition, we and Sony have co-developed and co-own the
specifications for the next generation Memory Stick, the MemoryStick Pro, which each of us has the right to
manufacture and sell. As we introduce new standards and new products, such as the miniSD card, the
MemoryStick Pro and the USB Cruzer and Cruzer Mini, it will take time for these new standards and
products to be adopted, for consumers to accept and transition to these new products and for significant sales
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to be generated from them, if this happens at all. Moreover, broad acceptance of new standards or products by
consumers may reduce demand for our older products. If this decreased demand is not offset by increased
demand for our new products, our results of operations could be harmed. We cannot assure you that any new
products or standards we develop will be commercially successful. See “— The success of our business
depends on emerging markets and new products.”

The success of our business depends on emerging markets and new products.

In order for demand for our products to grow, the markets for new devices that use our flash memory
products, such as digital cameras, cellular phones that incorporate digital cameras, portable digital music
players, USB flash drives and PDAs, must develop and grow. if sales of these products do not grow, our
revenues and profit margins could be adversely impacted.

The success of our new product strategy will depend, among other factors, upon the following:

» our ability to successfully develop new products with higher memory capacities and enhanced features
at a lower cost per megabyte;

» the development of new applications or markets for our flash data storage products;

» the extent to which prospective customers design our products into their products and successfully
introduce their products;

« the extent to which our products or technologies become obsolete or noncompetitive due to products or
. technologies developed by others; and

« the adoption by the major content providers of the copy protection features offered by our SD card
products.

Risks Related to Our FlashVision Joint Venture

Qur FlashVision joint venture with Toshiba makes us vulnerable to risks, including potential inventory
write-offs, disruptions or shortages of supply, limited ability to react to fluctuations in product demand, direct
competition with Toshiba, and a significant contingent indemnification obligation, any of which could
substantially harm our business and financial condition.

We and Toshiba plan to continue to expand the wafer fabrication capacity of our FlashVision business in
Japan and as we do so, we will make substantial capital investments and incur substantial start-up and tool
relocation costs, which could adversely impact our operating vesults.

In June 2000, we, along with Toshiba, formed FlashVision for the joint development and manufacture of
several flash memory products, including 512 megabit, 1 gigabit, 2 gigabit and other advanced flash memory
products. We and Toshiba each separately market and sell these products. Accordingly, we compete directly
with Toshiba for sales of products incorporating these jointly developed and manufactured products. In
addition, we and Toshiba plan to make substantial investments in new capital assets from time to time to
expand the wafer fabrication capacity of our FlashVision business in Japan. Each time that we and Toshiba
add substantial new wafer fabrication capacity, we will experience significant start-up costs as a result of the
delay between the time of the investment and the time qualified products are manufactured and sold in
volume quantities. We will incur start-up costs and pay our share of ongoing operating activities even if we do
not utilize our full share of the expanded output. Given the current apparent acceleration in global demand for
flash memory wafers and assuming that the markets for our products continue their current growth, new
anticipated demand from customers may outstrip the supply of flash memory wafers available to us from all of
our current sources. In that case, we may need to secure substantial additional flash memory wafer fabrication
capacity at .09 micron and finer line lithography. Accordingly, we and Toshiba are currently discussing various
fabrication and test capacity expansion plans for the FlashVision operation in Yokkaichi, Japan. We and
Toshiba plan to substantially expand and increase Yokkaichi’s 200 mm flash memory wafer output in 2004
and 2005. The capacity expansion will be partially funded through FlashVision internally generated funds, as
well as through substantial additional investments by Toshiba and SanDisk. In February 2004, we committed
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to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund additional 200-millimeter fabrication capacity
through the end of fiscal 2004, This loan is secured by the equipment purchased by FlashVision using the loan
proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in several tranches through the first quarter of 2006.
Because our funding obligation is denominated in Japanese Yen, the amount of our obligation on a given date
when converted to U.S. dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date.

In December 2003, we and Toshiba announced our intention to, and are currently in discussions
regarding, cooperating in the construction of a new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at
Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. As under the current FlashVision joint venture, we would be obligated to
purchase half of Fab 3’s NAND wafer production output. Toshiba would construct the Fab 3 building,
depreciation of the Fab 3 building would be a component of the cost to each party of wafers produced by
Fab 3, and both parties would provide funds for the manufacturing equipment. Toshiba currently plans to
begin construction of the building in the first half of 2004. We may agree that in the event that we and Toshiba
do not execute definitive agreements with respect to Fab 3, we will reimburse Toshiba for 50% of certain
start-up costs and Fab 3 Co. formation costs incurred by Toshiba and for cancellation fees due under
authorized contractor and vendor invoices for orders placed by Toshiba for certain equipment and construction
materials for Fab 3 that Toshiba cannot otherwise use, which amounts would be substantial. The total
investment in Fab 3, excluding the cost of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion through
the end of 2006, of which our share is estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production
currently scheduled for the end of 2005. We and Toshiba would share equally in the investment, and we may
need to raise additional capital for our portion of the investment. In addition to our initial investment in
expansion af Yokkaichi and in Fab 3, if a final agreement for Fab 3 is reached between us and Toshiba, for
several quarters we will incur substantial start-up expenses related to the hiring and training of manufacturing
personnel, facilitizing the clean room and installing equipment at the expanded fabrication facility and at
Fab 3. In addition, we may not achieve the expected cost benefits of the expansion or a new facility for several
quarters, if at all. We will incur start-up costs and pay ongoing operating activities even if we do not utilize the
new .output. Should customer demand for NAND flash products be less than our available supply, we may
experience reduced revenues and increased expenses as well as increased inventory of unsold NAND flash
wafers, which could harm our operating results. In addition we have not yet, and may never, enter into
definitive agreements with Toshiba with respect to the construction and operation of Fab 3 and even if we do
not do so, we may remain obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 50% of the costs and cancellation fees described
above, which would be substantial.

We face challenges and possible delays relating to the conversion of our production to 0.13 micron and
smaller feature sizes, which could adversely affect our operating results.

" We were using the production capacity at Toshiba’s Yokkaichi fabrication facilities to manufacture
NAND flash memory wafers with minimum lithographic feature size of 0.16 micron and recently converted to
0.13 micron technology. We have not yet completed qualification of some new 0.13 micron product
components. Any material delay in our qualification schedule will delay deliveries and adversely impact our
operating results. In addition, we plan to manufacture flash memory wafers with even smaller lithographic
feature sizes. Our minimum feature sizes are considered today to be among the most advanced for mass
production of flash memory wafers. Therefore, it is difficult to predict how long it will take to achieve adequate
yields, reliable operation, and economically attractive product costs based on our new designs and feature
sizes. We currently rely and will continue to rely on Toshiba to address these challenges. With our investments
in the FlashVision joint venture at Toshiba’s Yokkaichi facilities, we are now and will continue to be exposed
to the adverse financial impact of any delays or manufacturing problems associated with wafer production
lines. Any problems or delays in volume production at the Yokkaichi fabrication facilities could adversely
impact our operating results in 2004 and beyond.

Toshiba’s Yokkaichi fabrication facilities are a significant source of supply of flash memory wafers and
any disruption in this supply will reduce our revenues, gross margins and earnings.

Although we buy flash memory from the FlashVision joint venture, we also rely on Toshiba’s Yokkaichi
fabrication facilities to supply on a foundry basis a portion of our flash memory wafers. Even if FlashVision
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successfully produces quantities at planned levels, the Yokkaichi fabrication facilities may not produce
quantities of wafers with acceptable prices, reliability and yields to satisfy our needs. Any failure in this regard
may harm our business, financial condition and results of operations, as our right to purchase flash memory
products from Samsung and others is limited and may not be sufficient to replace any shortfall in production at
the Yokkaichi facilities. In addition, because a substantial majority of our wafers are produced at the
Yokkaichi facilities, any disruption in supply from the Yokkaichi facilities due to natural disaster, power
failure, labor unrest or other causes could significantly harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations. For example, in the second quarter of 2003, an earthquake in northern Japan disrupted operations
at another Toshiba fabrication line for several weeks. Although no damage or disruption was reported at
Yokkaichi, the occurrence and effects of these events is unpredictable and could materially harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Morcover, we have no experience in operating a wafer
manufacturing line and we rely on the existing manufacturing organizations at the Yokkaichi facilities. If
Toshiba and FlashVision are uncompetitive or are unable to satisfy our wafer supply requirements, our
business, financial condition and results of aperations would be harmed.

QOur obligations under our wafer supply agreements with Toshiba and FlashVision, or decreased demand
Jor our products, may result in excess inventories and lead to inventory write offs, and any technical difficulties
or manufacturing problems may vesult in shortages in supply, either of which would adversely affect our
business. ’

Under the terms of our wafer supply agreements with Toshiba, we are obligated to purchase half of
FlashVision’s wafer production output and we will also purchase wafers from Toshiba’s current Yokkaichi
fabrication facilities on a foundry relationship basis. Under the terms of our foundry relationship-with Toshiba ™
and wafer supply agreements with FlashVision, we are obligated to provide a six-month rolling forecast of
“anticipated purchase orders, which are difficult to estimate. Generally, the estimates for the first three months
of each rolling forecast are binding commitments and cannot be cancelled and the estimates for the remaining
months of the forecast may only be changed by a certain percentage from the previous month’s forecast. This
limits our ability to react to fluctuations in demand for our products. If we are unable for any reason to achieve
customer acceptance of our card products built with these flash chips or if demand decreases, we will
experience a significant increase in our inventory, which may result in inventory write-offs and otherwise harm
our business, results of operations and financial condition. If we place purchase orders with Toshiba and our
business condition deteriorates, we could experience reduced revenues, increased expenses, and increased
inventory of unsold flash wafers, which could adversely affect our operating results.

In addition, in order for us to sell our products, we have been developing, and will continue to develop,
new controllers, printed circuit boards and test algorithms. Any technical difficulties or delays in the
development of these elements could prevent us from taking advantage of the available flash memory output
and could adversely affect our results of operations.

We have a contingent indemunification obligation for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of
Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease arrangement.

FlashVision secured an equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion Japanese Yen (or
approximately $305.0 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the agreement was executed) in
May 2002 with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., and other financial institutions. Under the terms of the lease,
Toshiba has guaranteed those commitments on behalf of FlashVision. We have agreed to indemnify Toshiba
for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease
arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease commitments, and Toshiba fulfills these commitments
under the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, then we will be obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any
claims and associated expenses under the lease, unless the claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its
obligations to FlashVision or its covenants to the lenders. Because FlashVision’s equipment lease arrangement
is denominated in Japanese Yen, the maximum amount of our contingent indemnification obligation on a
given date when converted to U.S. dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. As
of December 28, 2003, the maximum amount of our contingent indemnification obligation, which reflects
payments and any lease adjustments, was approximately $125.5 million.
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We operate in the highly cyclical semiconductor industry, which is subject to significant downturns, and if
we and Toshiba enter into definitive agreements to, and actually do, build, equip and operate Fab 3, the impact
of these downturns on us may be greater than they would otherwise be.

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical and is characterized by constant and rapid technological
change, rapid product obsolescence and price erosion, evolving standards, short product life-cycles and wide
fluctuations in product supply and demand. The industry has experienced significant downturns, often in
connection with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles of both semiconductor companies’ and their
customers’ products and declines in general economic conditions. These downturns have been characterized
by diminished product demand, production overcapacity, high inventory levels and accelerated erosion of
average selling prices. We have experienced these conditions in our business in the past and may experience
such downturns in the future. If we and Toshiba enter into definitive agreements to build, equip and operate
Fab 3, and actually do so, the effect on us of significant downturns, price erosion or declines in customer
demand may be greater as we will have made significant investments in Fab 3 and will have excess supply that
we are obligated to take and pay for, regardless of current market conditions. We may not be able to manage
these downturns. Any future downturns of this nature could have a material adverse effect on our business,
“financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Investment in Tower Semiconductor Ltd.

Our investment in Tower Semiconductor Ltd. is subject to inherent risks, including those associated
with certain Israeli regulatory requirements, political unvest and financing difficulties, which could harm our
business and financial condition.

In July 2000, we entered into a share purchase agreement to make an aggregate $75.0 million investment
in Tower Semiconductor for Tower’s new foundry facility, Fab 2, in five installments upon Tower’s completion
of specific milestones. As of December 28, 2003, we had invested $79.0 million in Tower and obtained
8,313,638 Tower ordinary shares, $14.3 million of prepaid wafer credits, and a warrant to purchase 360,313
Tower ordinary shares at an exercise price of $7.50 per share. The warrant expires on October 31, 2006. The
8,313,638 Tower ordinary shares represented an approximate 16% equity ownership position in Tower as of
December 28, 2003. In fiscal 2003 we recorded write-downs to the value of the wafer credits of $3.9 million
and utilized approximately $0.6 million of these wafer credits to purchase controller wafers from Tower. Also
in 2003, we recorded a $0.6 million gain to adjust the book value of the warrant and as of December 28, 2003,
we had recognized cumulative losses of approximately $32.2 million as a result of the other-than-temporary
decline in the value of our investment in Tower ordinary shares, $12.2 million as a result of the impairment in
value on our prepaid wafer credits and $0.1 million of losses on our warrant to purchase Tower ordinary shares.
As of December 28, 2003, our Tower ordinary shares were valued at $58.8 million and included an unrealized
gain of $34.0 million, inclusive of related tax expense impact of $2.7 million, recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, our Tower prepaid wafer credits were valued at $1.4 million and
the warrant to purchase Tower ordinary shares was valued at $1.2 million.

In February 2003, we agreed to amend our foundry investment agreements with Tower and advance the
payment of $11.0 million for the fifth and final milestone in two installments, a first installment of
approximately $6.6 million and a second installment of approximately $4.4 million, regardless of whether the
milestone was met. Tower’s shareholders approved the amendment in May 2003. In November 2003, we
agreed to further amend the foundry investment agreements, referred to as the November Amendment, to,
among other things, (a) advance the entirety of the remaining fifth milestone payment of $6,718,950, or
Payment, (b) defer our use of wafer credits, and (¢) extend the lock-up period on our Tower ordinary shares.
The November Amendment was approved by Tower’s shareholders in December 2003, following which
approval we made the Payment. We received 777,294 Tower ordinary shares at the time we made the
Payment and 628,611 Tower ordinary shares in January 2004 upon the closing of Tower’s follow-on public
offering, which generated net cash to Tower of approximately $75.2 million and correspondingly reduced our
equity ownership position.
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Also under the November Amendment, we agreed not to use wafer credits until January 1, 2007, except
with respect to purchase orders issued before the date of the November Amendment utilizing wafer credits;
however, we will have the option to convert credits we would have otherwise been able to utilize per quarter
into Tower ordinary shares at the 15 day ATP preceding the last day of the relevant quarter. Unconverted
credits shall accrue interest at a rate per annum equal to three-month LIBOR plus 2.5% through
December 31, 2007. Interest payments will be made quarterly and the aggregate principal amount of the
unconverted credits will be repaid in one lump sum on December 31, 2007. Effective as of December 31, 2005,
we may convert all of the then remaining Series A-4 Credits into Tower ordinary shares at the 15 day ATP
preceding December 31, 2005. If the number of Tower ordinary shares received by us and the other wafer
partners as a result of this conversion is greater than or equal to an aggregate of 5% of Tower's issued and
outstanding share capital on January 31, 2006, Tower will transact a rights offering for the distribution of
rights to all of Tower’s sharcholders, other than us and the other wafer partners but including Israel
Corporation Technologies, at the same 15 day ATP.

The November Amendment also provides that we will not sell Tower ordinary shares until January 29,
2006, except we may sell 30% of the Tower shares held as of January 29, 2004. In addition, we have extended
the date on which we may exercise our demand registration rights until the earlier of (i) December 31, 2005
and (ii) such date that Tower has fulfilled all of its obligations to raise any additional financing pursuant to its
facility agreement. '

- Full completion of Tower's wafer foundry facility, Fab 2 and timely production ramp at Fab 2,are
dependent on several factors and may never occur, which may harm our business and results of operations.

Tower’s full completion of Fab 2 is dependent on its ability to obtain additional financing for the foundry
construction from equity and other sources and the release of grants and approvals for changes in grant
programs from the Israeli government’s Investment Center. The current political uncertainty and security
situation in the region may adversely impact Tower’s business prospects and may discourage investments in
Tower from outside sources. If Tower is unable to obtain additional financing, complete foundry equipment
purchases in a timely manner or is unable to successfully complete the development and transfer of advanced
CMOS process technologies and ramp-up of production, the value of our equity investment in Tower and
wafer credits will decline significantly or possibly become worthless. In addition, we may be unable to obtain
sufficient supply of controller wafers from Tower to manufacture our products, which would harm our
business. Further deterioration of market conditions for foundry manufacturing services and the market for
semiconductor products may also adversely affect the value of our equity investment in Tower. If the fair value
of our Tower investment declines, we may record additional losses, which potentially could amount to the
remaining recorded value of our Tower investment. Moreover, if Tower is unable to satisfy its financial
covenants and comply with the conditions in its credit facility agreement, and therefore is not able to obtain
additional bank financing, or if its current bank obligations are accelerated, or it fails to secure customers for
its foundry capacity to help offset its fixed costs, that failure could jeopardize the completion of Fab 2, the
production ramp at Fab 2 and Tower’s ability to continue operations.

Tower is currently a sole source of supply for one of our new high volume controllers. Any interruption in
Tower’s manufacturing operations resulting in delivery delays will adversely affect our ability to make timely
shipments of some of our higher capacity products. If this occurs, our operating results will be adversely
affected until we can qualify an alternate source of supply, which could take a quarter or more to complete.

We cannot assure you that the Fab 2 facility will be fully completed or will continue its production ramp
as scheduled. Moreover, we cannot assure you that this new facility will be able to sustain acceptable vields or
deliver sufficient quantities of wafers on a timely basis at a competitive price. If Tower is unable to operate
Fab 2 at an optimum capacity utilization, it may operate at a loss or have to discontinue operations.

Political unrest and violence in Israel may hinder Tower’s ability to obtain investment in and complete its
Sabrication facility, which would harm our business.

Political unrest and violence in Israel could cause and could result in delays in the completion of Fab 2
and interruption or delay of manufacturing schedules once Fab 2 is completed, and could result in potential
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investors -and foundry customers avoiding doing business with Tower. Moreover, if U.S. military actions in
Iraq, or elsewhere, result in retaliation against Israel, Tower’s fabrication facility may be adversely impacted,
causing a decline in the value of our investment.

A purported sharcholder class action lawsuit was filed against Tower and certain of its shareholders and
directors, including us and our President and CEO, a Tower board member, which may be costly and could
divert the attention of our management personnel.

On July 3, 2003, a purported shareholder class action lawsuit was filed on behalf of United States holders
of ordinary shares of Tower as of the close of business on April 1, 2002 in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. The lawsuit was filed against Tower and certain of its shareholders and
directors, including us and Dr. Eli Harari, our President and CEQ and a Tower board member, and asserts
claims arising under Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 14a-9. The lawsuit alleges that Tower and certain of its directors
made false and misleading statements in a proxy solicitation to Tower shareholders regarding a proposed
amendment to a contract between Tower and certain of its shareholders, including us. The plaintiffs are
seeking unspecified damages and attorneys’ and experts’ fees and expenses. Pursuant to our indemnification
agreement with Dr. Harari, we have agreed to indemnify him for any expenses he may incur or liability he
may face in connection with this litigation. Litigation is inherently uncertain, can be costly and may divert the
attention of our management personnel, and if we are required to pay significant monetary or other damages,
our biisiness, financial conditions and results of operations may be seriously harmed. For additional
information regarding this lawsuit, see item 3 “Legal Proceedings” in Part I of this annual report.

Risk Related to Our Investment in UMC

Fluctuations in the market value of our UMC foundry investment affect our financial vesults and in the
past we recorded a loss on investment in foundry on our UMC investment and we may record additional losses
in the future.

In 1997, we invested $51.2 million in United Silicon, Inc., or USIC, a semiconductor manufacturing
subsidiary of United Microelectronics Corporation, or UMC, which was merged into the UMC parent
company on January 3, 2000. In exchange for our USIC shares, we received 111 million UMC shares. In
2000, 2001, 2002,and 2003 we received additional shares as stock dividends totaling approximately 22 million,
20 million, 23 million and 7.1 million shares, respectively. We currently own 20.6 million shares of UMC
stock. Our current equity investment in UMC was valued at $17.5 million at December 28, 2003 and included
an unrealized gain of $4.7 million, inclusive of related tax expense of $0.6 million, which is included in
accumulated other comprehensive income. If the fair value of our UMC investment declines in future periods
and the related loss is deemed to be other than temporary, we may record additional losses for those periods.
In addition, in future periods, we may recognize a gain or a loss upon the sale of our UMC shares, which
would impact our financial results.

Risks Related to Vendors and Subcontractors

We depend on our suppliers and third-party subcontractors for several critical components and our
products and our business could be harmed if we ave unable to obtain a sufficient supply of these components on
a timely basis.

We rely on our vendors, some of which are a principal source of supply, for several of our critical
components. We do not have long-term supply agreements with most of these vendors. Our business, financial
condition and operating results could be significantly harmed by delays or reductions in shipments if we are
unable to develop alternative sources or obtain sufficient quantities of these components.

We also rely on third-party subcontractors for our wafer testing, packaged memory final testing, card
assembly and card testing, including Silicon Precision Industries Co., Ltd. and United Test Center, Inc. in
Taiwan and Celestica, Inc. and Flextronics in China. In addition to our existing subcontract suppliers, we are
qualifying other subcontract suppliers for wafer testing, packaged memory final testing, card assembly, card
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testing and other products and services. We have no long-term contracts with our existing subcontractors nor
do we expect to have long-term contracts with any new subcontract suppliers. As such, we cannot, and will
not, be able to directly control product delivery schedules. Any significant problems that occur at our
subcontractors, or their failure to perform at the level we expect, could lead to product shortages or quality

assurance problems, either of which could increase the manufacturing costs of our products and have adverse

effects on our operating results. Furthermore, we manufacture on a turnkey basis with some of our subcontract
suppliers, which may reduce our visibility and control of their inventories of purchased parts necessary to build
our products.

We and our manufacturing partners must achieve acceptable wafer manufacturing yields or our costs will
increase and production output will decrease, which could negatively impact our business.

- The fabrication of our products requires wafers to be produced in a highly controlled and ultra clean
environment. Semiconductor companies that supply our wafers sometimes have experienced problems
achieving acceptable wafer manufacturing yields. Semiconductor manufacturing yields are a function of both
our design technology and the foundry’s manufacturing process technology. Low yields may result from design
errors or manufacturing failures. Yield problems may not be determined or improved until an actual product is
made and can be tested. As a result, vield problems may not be identified until the wafers are well into the

“production process. The risks associated with yields are even greater because we rely exclusively on offshore

foundries that we do not control for our wafers, which increases the effort and time required to identify,
communicate and resolve manufacturing yield problems. If the foundries cannot achieve planned yields, we
will experience higher costs and reduced product availability, which could harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Competition

We face competition from flash memory manufacturers and memory card assemblers and if we cannot
compete effectively, our business will be harmed.

We compete in an industry characterized by intense competition, rapid technological changes, evolving
industry standards, declining average selling prices and rapid product obsolescence. Our competitors include
many large domestic and infernational companies that have greater access to advanced wafer foundry
capacity, substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources, broader product lines and
longer standing relationships with customers.

Our primary competitors currently include companies that develop and manufacture flash storage chips,
such as Renesas, Samsung and Toshiba. New competitors including, Hynix Semiconductor, Infineon, Micron
Technologies, and ST Microelectronics, announced their intentions to become direct competitors in the
NAND market later this year. In addition, we compete with companies that manufacture other forms of flash
memory and companies that purchase flash memory components and assemble memory cards. Companies
that manufacture other forms of flash memory include, among others, Atmel, Hynix Semiconductor, Infineon,
Intel, Macronix, Micron Technologies, Renesas, Sharp Electronics, ST Microelectronics, Samsung, Spansion
and Toshiba. Companies that combine controllers and flash memory chips developed by others into flash
storage cards, or that resell flash cards under their brand name, include, among others, Dane-Elec
Manufacturing, Delkin Devices, Inc., Fuji, Hagiwara, Hama, I/0 Data, Infineon, Jessops, Kingston Technol-
ogy, Kodak, Lexar Media, M-Systems, Matsushita Battery, Panasonic, Memorex, Micron Technology, PNY,
PQI, Pretec, Renesas, Silicon Storage Technology, Silicon Tek, Simple Technology, Sony, Samsung, TDK,
Toshiba, Trek, Viking Components and several other resellers primarily located in Taiwan. The success of our
competitors may adversely affect our future sales revenue.

We have enteved into agreements with, and face direct competition from, Toshiba, Samsung and other
competitors.

In 2000, we, along with Matsushita and Toshiba, formed the SD Association to jointly develop and
promote the Secure Digital card. Under this arrangement, royalty-bearing Secure Digital card licenses will be
available to other flash memory card manufacturers, resulting in increased competition for our Secure Digital
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card and other products. In addition, Matsushita and Toshiba sell Secure Digital cards that compete directly
with our products for which no royalties are payable.

We have entered into patent cross-license agreements with several of our leading competitors, including,
Intel, Matsushita, Renesas, SST, Samsung, Sharp, Sony, Toshiba and TDK. Under these agreements, cach
party may manufacture and sell products that incorporate technology covered by the other party’s patent or
patents related to flash memory devices. If we continue to license our patents to our competitors, competition
will increase and may harm our business, financial condition and resuits of operations. There can be no
assurance that we will be successful in concluding licensing agreements under terms that are favorable to us,
or at all, or that these licenses will heip our business.

Our products compete against new products that promote different industry standards from ours, and if
these new industry standards gain market acceptance, our business will be harmed.

Each of our products faces competition from large and small suppliers; some introducing differentiated
products that may be more attractive to our customers. For example, Lexar Media’s Jump Drive, M-Systems’
DiskOnKey, Toshiba’s Trans Memory and Trek’s Thumbdrive compete directly with our Cruzer Mini product
line and the Secure MultiMediaCard from Renesas and Infineon, the RS-MMC from Renesas and Samsung,
and the MultiMediaCard from Samsung all compete with our SD and MMC cards. In addition, in 2002, the
xD-picture card format was introduced as direct competition for our Smart Media card products. We
experienced a decline in sales of Smart Media card products in 2002 and 2003 and expect a continued decline
in sales of these products in 2004 as sales of xD-picture cards increases. We compete with Sony and Lexar in
the market for Memory Stick products. Sony has a very strong brand name which may make their Memory
Stick cards more attractive to some customers than our comparable cards. In 2004, we expect to begin
manufacturing and offering a SanDisk labeled version of the Memory Stick PRO and Memory Stick Pro Duo
product lines. Additionally, Olympus’ and Fuji’s control of the market for digital cameras using the xD-picture
card format gives them a competitive advantage in selling xD-picture cards to retail customers. Rotating disk
drives, including among others, the Microdrive, compete with our larger capacity flash memory cards. In
addition, other companies, such as Matrix Semiconductor, have announced products or technologies that may
potentially compete with our Shoot and Store products. Additionally, new card formats, like the Express Card
are periodically introduced in an effort to compete with the existing standards for memory cards. New
competing standards may not be mechanically and electronically compatible with our products. If a
manufacturer of digital cameras or other consumer electronic devices designs in one of these alternative
competing standards, our products will be eliminated from use in that product.

"We face competition from products based on alternative flash technologies and if we cannot compete
effectively, our business will be harmed.

We also face competition from products based on alternative MLC flash technology from Intel (Strata
Flash), Renesas (AG-AND) and Infineon flash (Twin bit). These products compete with our NAND MLC
products.

Furthermore, we expect to face competition both from existing competitors and from other companies
that may enter our existing or future markets with similar or alternative data storage solutions, which may be
less costly or provide additional features. Our business is characterized by rapid innovation and many other
companies are pursuing new technologies, which may make our flash memory obsolete or uncompetitive in a
few years. Additionally, if we do not continue to invest in new technologies, our business would likely be
seriously harmed.

Risks Related to Sales of Our Products

Sales to a small number of customers represent a significant portion of our revenues and if we were to lose

. one of our major customers or experience any material reduction in orvders from any of these customers, our

revenues and operating results would suffer.

Approximately one-half of our revenues come from a small number of customers. For example, sales to
our top 10 customers accounted for approximately 50% of our product revenues during fiscal 2003, 2002 and
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2001. If we were to lose one of our major customers or experience any material reduction in orders from any of
these customers, our revenues and operating results would suffer. Our sales are generally made by standard
purchase orders rather than long-term contracts. In addition, the composition of our major customer base can
change from year to year as the market demand for our customers’ products changes.

Variability of average selling prices and gross margins resulting from changes in our product mix and
price reductions for certain of our products may cause our gross mavgins and net profitability to suffer.

Our product mix varies guarterly, which affects our overall average selling prices and gross margins. Our
CF card, SD card, miniSD card and Memory Stick card products, which currently account for a majority of
our product revenues, have lower gross margins and average selling prices when sold as bundled cards in OEM
devices, such as digital cameras, compared to sales through retail channels. In addition, we realize higher gross
margins on flash memory products manufactured from wafers provided by our captive sources of supply than
we do for flash-packaged components supplied by non-captive sources. Accordingly, if we are unable to meet
our wafer needs through our captive suppliers and are forced to increase our purchases from non-captive
sources, we expect our gross margins to decline. Flash data storage markets are intensely competitive, and
price reductions for our products are necessary to meet consumer price points and may be significant. If we
cannot reduce our product manufacturing costs in future periods to offset further price reductions, our gross
margins and net profitability will suffer.

Our selling prices may decline due to excess capacity in the market for flash memory products and if we
cannot reduce our manufacturing costs to offset these price declines, our gross margins and net profitability
will be haymed.

In the past, worldwide flash memory supply has exceeded customer demand, causing excess supply in the
markets for our products and significant declines in average selling prices. If this situation were to occur again,
price declines for our products could be significant. If we are unable to reduce our product manufacturing
costs to offset these reduced prices, our gross margins and profitability would be adversely impacted.

Our business depends significantly upon sales of products in the highly competitive consumer market, a
significant portion of which are made to vetailers and through distributors, and if our distributors and retailers
are not successful in this market, we could experience substantial product returns, which would negatively
impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In 2003, we continued to receive more product revenue and ship more units of products for consumer
electronics applications, including digital cameras and PDAs, compared to other applications. The consumer
market is intensely competitive and is more price sensitive than our other target markets. In addition, we must
spend more on marketing and promotion in consumer markets to establish brand name recognition, maintain
our competitive position at retailers and increase demand for our products.

A significant portion of our sales to the consumer electronics market is made direct to retailers and
through distributors. Sales through these channels typically include rights to return unsold inventory and
protection against price declines. As a result, we do not recognize revenue until after the product has been sold
through to the end user in the case of sales to retailers, or to distributor customers, in the case of sales to
distributors. If our distributors and retailers are not successful in this market, there could be substantial
product returns or price protection claims, which would harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, availability of sell through data varies throughout the retail channel, which makes it
difficult for us to determine actual retail product revenues until after the end of the fiscal quarter.

Sales of our products through our retail distribution channel include the use of third-party fulfillment
Jfacilities that hold our manufacturing components and finished goods on a consignment basis, and if these
Sulfillment facilities were to experience a loss with respect to our inventory, we may not be able to recoup the
Jull cost of the inventory, which would harm our business.

Our retail distribution channel utilizes third-party fulfillment facilities, such as Modus Media Interna-
tional, Inc. and Nippon Express. These fulfillment houses hold our manufacturing components and finished
goods on a consignment basis, providing packout services for our retail business, which include labeling and
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packaging our raw cards, as well as shipping the finished product directly to our customers. While our third-
party fulfillment houses bear the risk of loss with respect to cur inventory, the amount we are reimbursed by
them or their insurers may be less than our original cost of the inventory, which would harm our business,
financial condition and resulis of operations.

There is seasonality in our business, which may impact our product sales, particularly in the fourth and
Sirst quarters of the fiscal year.

Sales of our products in the consumer electronics market may be subject to seasonality. As a result,
product sales may be impacted by seasonal purchasing patterns with higher sales generally occurring in the
fourth quarter of each year followed by declines in the first quarter of the following year. In addition, in the
past we have experienced a decrease in orders in the first quarter from our Japanese OEM customers primarily
because most customers in Japan operate on a fiscal year ending in March and prefer to delay purchases until
the beginning of their next fiscal year.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights, which would harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyright and trade secret laws, confidentiality
procedures and licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property rights. In the past, we have been
involved in significant disputes regarding our intellectual property rights and claims that we may be infringing
third parties’ intellectual property rights. We expect that we may be involved in similar disputes in the future.
We cannot assure you that:

». any of our existing patents will not be invalidated;
» patents will be issued for any of our pending applications;
» any claims allowed from existing or pending patents will have sufficient scope or strength;

+ our patents will be issued in the primary countries where our products are sold in order to protect our
rights and potential commercial advantage; or

» any of our products do not infringe on the patents of other companies.
In addition, our competitors may be able to design their products around our patents.

We intend to vigorously enforce our patents, but we cannot be sure that our eflorts will be successful. If
we bring a patent infringement action and are not successful, our competitors would be able to use similar
technology to compete with us. Moreover, the defendant in such an action may successfully assert a
counterclaim that our patents are invalid or unenforceable. If we did not prevail as a defendant in a patent
infringement case, we could be required to pay substantial damages, cease the manufacture, use and sale of
infringing products, expend significant resources to develop non-infringing technology, discontinue the use of
specific processes or obtain licenses to the infringing technology. Any litigation is likely to result in significant
expense to us, as well as divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel.

We may be unable to license intellectual property to or from third parties as needed, or renew existing
licenses, and we have agreed to indemnify various suppliers and customers for alleged patent infringement,
which could expose us to liability for damages, increase our costs or limit or prohibit us from selling certain
products. '

If we decide to incorporate third-party technology into our products or if we are found to infringe on
others’ intellectual property, we could be required to license intellectual property from a third party. We may
also need to license some of our intellectual property to others in order to enable us to obtain cross-licenses to
third-party patents. Currently, we have patent cross-license agreements or similar intellectual property
agreements with several companies, including, Intel, Matsushita, Olympus, SST, Renesas, Samsung, Sharp,
Silicon Systems, Smartdisk, Sony, TDK and Toshiba and we are in discussions with other companies
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regarding potential cross-license agreements. We cannot be certain that licenses will be offered when we need
them, or that the terms offered will be acceptable, or that these licenses will help our business. If we do obtain
licenses from third parties, we may be required to pay license fees or royalty payments. In addition, if we are
unable to obtain a license that is necessary to the manufacture of our products, we could be required to
suspend the manufacture of products or stop our wafer suppliers from using processes that may infringe the
rights of third parties. We cannot assure you that we would be successful in redesigning our products or that
the necessary licenses will be available under reasonable terms, or that our existing licensees will renew their
licenses upon expiration, or that we will be successful in signing new licensees in the future.

We have historically agreed to indemnify suppliers and customers for alleged patent infringement. The
scope of such indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages and
expenses, including attorney’s fees. We may periodically engage in litigation as a result of these indemnifica-
tion obligations.

Our insurance policies exclude coverage for third-party claims for patent infringement. Any future obligation
to indemnify our customers or suppliers could harm our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We may be involved in litigation vegarding our intellectual property vights or those of third parties, which
would be costly and would divert the efforts of our key technical and management personnel.

Litigation is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially
from our expectations. Factors that could cause litigation results to differ include, but are not limited to, the
discovery of previously unknown facts, changes in the law or in the interpretation of laws, and uncertainties
associated with the judicial decision-making process. We have been subject to, and expect to continue to be
subject to, claims and legal proceedings regarding alleged infringement by us of the patents, trademarks and
other intellectual property rights of third parties. Furthermore, parties that we have sued and that we may sue
for patent infringement may counter sue us for infringing their patents. Litigation involving intellectual
property can become complex and extend for protracted time and is often very expensive. Intellectual property
claims, whether or not meritorious, may result in the expenditure of significant financial resources, injunctions
against us or the imposition of damages that we must pay and would also divert the efforts and attention of
some of our key management and technical personnel. We may need to obtain licenses from third parties who
allege that we have infringed their rights, but such licenses may not be available on terms acceptable to us or
at all. Moreover, if we are required to pay significant monetary damages, are enjoined from selling any of our
products or are required to make substantial royalty payments, our business would be harmed. For additional
information concerning legal proceedings, see Item 3 “Legal Proceedings” in Part I of this report.

Risks Related to Qur International Operations and Changes in Securities Laws and Regulations

Because of our international operations, we must comply with numerous international laws and
regulations, and we are vulnerable to political instability and currency fluctuations.

Political Risks. Currently, all of our flash memory, controller wafers and flash memory products are
produced overseas by FlashVision, Renesas, Samsung, Toshiba, Tower and UMC. We also use third-party

subcontractors in Taiwan, China and Japan for the assembly and testing of some of our card and component ---

products. We may, therefore, be affected by the political; economic and military conditions in these countries.
Taiwan is currently engaged in various political disputes with China and in the past both countries have
conducted military exercises in or near the other’s territorial waters and airspace. The Taiwanese and Chinese
governments may escalate these disputes, resulting in an economic embargo, disruption in shipping routes or
even military hostilities. This could harm our business by interrupting or delaying the production or shipment
of flash memory wafers or card products by our Taiwanese or Japanese foundries and subcontractors.

Under its current leadership, the Chinese government has been pursuing economic reform policies,
including the encouragement of foreign trade and investment and greater economic decentralization. The
Chinese government may not continue to pursue these policies and, even if it does continue, these policies may
not be successful. The Chinese government may also significantly alter these policies from time to time. In
addition, China does not currently have a comprehensive and highly developed legal system, particularly with
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respect to the protection of intellectual property rights. As a result, enforcement of existing and future laws
and contracts is uncertain, and the implementation and interpretation of such laws may be inconsistent. Such
‘inconsistency could lead to piracy and degradation of our intellectual property protection.

Political unrest and violence in Israel could cause delays in the completion of Tower’s Fab 2 and
interruption or delay of manufacturing schedules once Fab 2 is completed, cither of which could cause
potential foundry customers to go elsewhere for their foundry business and could cause investors and foundry
customers to avoid Tower. Moreover, if U.S. military actions in Afghanistan, Iraq or elsewhere, or current
Israeli military actions, result in retaliation against Israel, Tower’s fabrication facility and our engineering
design center in Israel may be adversely impacted. In addition, while the political unrest has not yet posed a
direct security risk to our engineering design center in Israel, it may cause unforeseen delays in the
development of our products and may in the future pose such a direct security risk.

Economic Risks. We price our products primarily in U.S. dollars. If the Euro, Yen and other currencies
weaken relative to the U.S. dollar, our products may be relatively more expensive in these regions, which could
result in a decrease in our sales. While most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, we invoice certain
Japanese customers in Japanese Yen and are subject to exchange rate fluctuations on these transactions,
which could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

General Risks. Our international business activities could also be limited or disrupted by any of the
following factors:

» the need to comply with foreign government regulation;

« general geopolitical risks such as political and economic instability, potential hostilities and changes in
diplomatic and trade relationships;

» natural disasters affecting the countries in which we conduct our business, particularly Japan, such as
the earthquakes experienced in Taiwan in 1999, in Japan in 2003 and previous years, and in China in
previous years;

+ reduced sales to our customers or interruption to our manufactunng processes in the Pacific Rim that
may arise from regional issues in Asia;

» imposition of regulatory requirements, tariffs, import and export restrictions and other barriers and
restrictions;

« longer payment cycles and greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection, particularly as we
increase our sales through the retail distribution channel and general business conditions deteriorate;

» adverse tax rules and regulations;

» weak protection of our intellectual property rights; and

« delays in product shipments due to local customs restrictions.

Terrvorist attacks and threats, and government responses thereto, the war in Iraq and threats of war
elsewhere, may negatively impact all aspects of our operations, revenues, costs and stock price.

The terrorist attacks in the United States, U.S. military responses to these attacks, the war in Iraq and
threats of war elsewhere and the related decline in consumer confidence and continued economic weakness
have had a negative impact on consumer retail demand, which is the largest channel for our product sales. Any
gscalation in these events or similar future events may disrupt our operations or those of our customers and
suppliers and may affect the availability of materials needed to manufacture our products or the means to
transport those materials to manufacturing facilities and finished products to customers. In addition, these
events have had and may continue to have an adverse impact on the United States and world economy in
general and consumer confidence and spending in particular, which could harm our sales. Any of these events
could increase volatility in the U.S. and world financial markets, which could harm our stock price and may
limit the capital resources available to us and our customers or suppliers or adversely affect consumer
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confidence. This could have a significant impact on our operating results, revenues and costs and may result in
increased volatility in the market price of our common stock.

Recently enacted and proposed changes in securities laws and regulations are likely to increase our costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that became law in July 2002 required changes in our corporate
governance, public disclosure and compliance practices. The act also required the SEC to promulgate new
rules on a variety of subjects. In addition to final rules and rule proposals already made, Nasdaq has proposed
additional revisions to its requirements for companies that are Nasdag-listed. We expect these developments
to increase our legal and financial compliance costs, and to make some activities more difficult, such as
stockholder approval of new option plans. We expect these developments to make it more difficult and more
expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced
coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. These developments could make it more
difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors, particularly to serve on our
audit committee, and qualified executive officers. We are presently evaluating and monitoring regulatory
developments and cannot estimate the timing or magnitude of additional costs we may incur as a result.

Risks Related to Our Charter Documents, Stockholder Rights Plan, Our Stock Price, Our Debt Rating
and the Raising of Additional Financing

- Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents, stockholder vights plan and in Delaware law could
prevent or delay a change in control and, as a result, negatively impact our stockholders.

We have taken a number of actions that could have the effect of discouraging a takeover attempt. For
example, we have a stockholders’ rights plan that would cause substantial dilution to a stockholder, and
substantially increase the cost paid by a stockholder, who attempts to acquire us on terms not approved by our
board of directors. This could prevent us from being acquired. In addition, our certificate of incorporation
- grants our board of directors the authority to fix the rights, preferences and privileges of and issue up to
4,000,000 shares of preferred stock without stockholder action (2,000,000 of which have already been reserved
under our stockholder rights plan). Although we have no present intention to issue shares of preferred stock,
such an issuance could have the effect of making it more difficult and less attractive for a third-party to
acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock. Preferred stock may also have other rights, including
economic rights senior to our common stock that could have a material adverse effect on the market value of
our comumon stock. In addition, we are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware
General Corporation Law. This section provides that a corporation may not engage in any business
combination with any interested stockholder during the three-year period following the time that a stockholder
became an interested stockholder. This provision could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control of SanDisk.

Our stock price has been, and may continue to be, volatile, which could vesult in investors losing all or part
of their investments.

The market price of our stock has fluctuated significantly in the past and is likely to continue to fluctuate
in the future. For example, in the 12 months ended December 28, 2003, our stock price fluctuated significantly
from a low of $7.39 to a high of $43.15. We believe that such fluctuations will continue as a result of future
announcements concerning us, our competitors or principal customers regarding technological innovations,
new product introductions, governmental regulations, litigation or changes in earnings estimates by analysts.
In addition, in recent years the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations and the
market prices of the securities of high technology and semiconductor companies have been especially volatile,
often for reasons outside the control of the particular companies. These fluctuations as well as general
economic, political and market conditions may have an adverse affect on the market price of our common
stock.
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The vatings assigned to us and our notes may fluctuate, which could harm the market price of our common
stock.

We and our notes have been rated by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, and may be rated by other
rating agencies in the future. Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services assigned its “B+” corporate credit rating to
us and its “B—" subordinated debt rating to our notes. If our current ratings are lowered or if other rating
agencies assign us or the notes ratings lower than expected by investors, the market price of our common stock
could be significantly harmed.

We may need additional financing, which could be difficult to obtain, and which if not obtained in
satisfactory amounts may prevent us from increasing our wafer supply, developing or enhancing our products,
taking advantage of future opportunities, growing our business or responding to competitive pressures or
unanticipated industry changes, any of which could harm our business.

We may need to raise additional funds, and we cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain additional
financing on favorable terms, if at all. From time to time, we may decide to raise additional funds through
public or private debt or equity financings to fund our activities. If we issue additional equity securities in the
future, our stockholders will experience dilution and the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or
privileges senior to those of existing holders of common stock or debt securities. In addition, if we raise funds
through debt financing, we will have to pay interest and may be subject to restrictive covenants, which could
harm our business. If we cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, if and when needed, we may not be able to
develop or enhance our products, take advantage of future opportunities, grow our business or respond to
competitive pressures or unanticipated industry changes, any of which could have a negative impact on our
business.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

We have convertible subordinated notes outstanding, which may restrict our cash flow, make it difficult for
us to obtain future financing, divert our resources from other uses, limit our ability to react to changes in the
industry, and place us at a competitive disadvantage.

-—-.. As a result of the sale and issuance of our 4'.% convertible subordinated notes in December 2001 and
January 2002, we incurred $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of additional indebtedness, substantiaily
incredsing our ratio of debt to total capitalization. While the notes are outstanding, we will have debt service
obligations on the notes of approximately $6.8 million per year in interest payments. If we are unable to
generate sufficient cash to meet these obligations and must instead use our existing cash or investments, we
may ‘have to reduce, curtail or terminate other activities of our business.

We intend to fulfill our debt service obligations from cash generated by our operations, if any, and from
our existing cash and investments. If necessary, among other alternatives, we may add lease lines of credit to
finance capital expenditures and obtain other long-term debt and lines of credit. We may incur substantial
additional indebtedness in the future. The level of our indebtedness, among other things, could:

« require the dedication of a substantial portion of any cash flow from our operations to service our
indebtedness, thereby reducing the amount of cash flow available for other purposes, including working
capital, capital expenditures and general carporate purposes;

+ make it difficult for us to obtain any necessary future financing for working capital, capital expendi-
tures, debt service requirements or other purposes;

* cause us to use a significant portion of our cash and cash equivalents or possibly liquidate other assets
to repay the total principal amount due under the notes and our other indebtedness if we were to
default under the notes or our other indebtedness;

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in, our business and the industries in which
we complete;
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« place us at a possible competitive disadvantage with respect to less leveraged competitors and
competitors that have better access to capital resources; and

« make us more vulnerable in the event of a downturn in our business.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet our debt service obligations, including our
obligations under the notes.

In addition, we have agreed to indemnify Toshiba for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of
Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease
commitments, and Toshiba fulfills these commitments under the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, then we will be
obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any claims and associated expenses under the lease, unless such
claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its obligations to FlashVision or its covenants to the lenders.
Because FlashVision’s new equipment lease arrangement is denominated in Japanese Yen, the maximum
amount of our contingent indemnification obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. dollars will
fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. As of December 28, 2003, the maximum amount
of our contingent indemnification obligation, which reflects payments and any lease adjustments, was
approximately $125.5 million.

This contingent indemnification obligation might constitute senior indebtedness under the notes and we
may use a portion of the proceeds from the notes to repay the obligation. This would result in the diversion of
resources from other important areas of our business and could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to satisfy a fundamental change offer under the indenture governing the notes.

The indenture governing the notes contains provisions that apply to a fundamental change, A fundamen-
tal change as defined in the indenture would occur if we were to be acquired for consideration other than
depository receipts or common stock traded on a major U.S. securities market. If someone triggers a
fundamental change, we may be required to offer to purchase the notes with cash. This would result in the
diversion of resources from other important areas of our business and could significantly harm our business,
financial condition and resuits of operations.

If we have to make a fundamental change offer, we cannot be sure that we will have enough funds to pay
for all the notes that the holders could tender. Our failure to redeem tendered notes upon a fundamental
change would constitute a default under the indenture and might constitute a default under the tcrms of our
other indebtedness, which would significantly harm our business and financial condition.

We may not be able to pay our debt and other obligations, which would cause us to be in default under the
terms of our indebtedness, which would result in harm to our business and financial condition.

If our cash flow is inadequate to meet our obligations, we could face substantial liquidity problems. If we
are unable to generate sufficient cash flow or otherwise obtain funds necessary to make required payments on
the notes or our other indebtedness, we would be in default under the terms thereof, which would permit the
holders of the notes to accelerate the maturity of the notes and also could cause defaults under our other
indebtedness. Any such default would harm our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results.
In addition, we cannot assure you that we would be able to repay amounts due in respect of the notes if
payment of the notes were to be accelerated following the occurrence of any other event of default as defined
in the indenture governing the notes. Moreover, we cannot assure that we will have sufficient funds or will be
able to arrange for financing to pay the principal amount due on the notes at maturity.

The notes and other indebtedness have rights senior to those of our current stockholders such that in the
event of our bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization or upon acceleration of the notes due to an event of
default under the indenture and in certain other events, our assets will be available for distribution to our
current stockholders only after all senior indebtedness is repaid.

In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization or upon acceleration of the notes due to an
event of default under the indenture and in certain other events, our assets will be available for distribution to
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our current stockholders only after all senior indebtedness, including our contingent indemnification obliga-
tions to Toshiba and obligations under the notes, have been paid in full. As a result, there may not be sufficient
assets remaining to make any distributions to our stockholders. The notes are also effectively subordinated to
the liabilities of any of our subsidiaries (including trade pavables, which as of December 28, 2003 were
approximately $1.4 million). Neither we, nor our subsidiaries are limited from incurring debt, including senior
indebtedness, under the indenture. If we or our subsidiaries were to incur additional debt or liabilities, our
ability to pay our obligations on the notes could be adversely affected. We anticipate that from time to time we
will incur additional debt, including senior indebtedness. Our subsidiaries are also likely to incur liabilities in
the future.

Ttem 7A. Qualitative and QOuantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates and marketable equity security prices. To mitigate some of these risks, we utilize currency forward
contracts. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. At December 28,
2003, we had a warrant to purchase 360,313 ordinary shares of Tower at a fair value of approximately
$1.2 million.

Interest Rate Risk. Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our
investmént portfolio. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while
maximizing yields without significantly increasing risk. This is accomplished by investing in widely diversified
short-term investments, consisting primarily of investment grade securities, substantially all of which either
mature within the next twelve months or have characteristics of short-term investments. A hypothetical
50 basis point increase in interest rates would result in an approximate $1.4 million decline (less than 0.5%) in
the fair value of our available-for-sale debt securities.

Foreign Currency Risk. A substantial majority of our revenue, expense and capital purchasing activity
are transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we do enter into transactions in other currencies, primarily the
Japanese Yen. To protect against reductions in value and the volatility of future cash flows caused by changes
in foreign exchange rates, we have established a hedging program. Currency forward contracts are utilized in
this hedging program. Our hedging program reduces, but does not always entirely eliminate the impact of
foreign currency exchange rate movements. An adverse change of 10% in exchange rates would result in a
decline in income before taxes in 2003 of approximately $0.3 million.

Market Risk. We also hold available-for-sale equity securities in our short-term investment portfolio
and equity investments in semiconductor wafer manufacturing companies. A reduction in prices of 10% of
these marketable equity securities would result in a decrease in the fair value of our investments in marketable
equity securities of approximately $3.6 million. As of December 28, 2003, we had net unrealized gains on
short-term equity securities totaling $20.8 million, which were included in other comprehensive income. These
unrealized gains include an unrealized gain of $10.7 million on the change in value of our investment in UMC
and $10.1 million on our investment in Tower. The market value of our investments in UMC and Tower have
fluctuated significantly in the past and may decline in the future due to downturns in the semiconductor
industry, declines in demand for UMC’s products or unfavorable economic conditions. If we sell our
remaining UMC shares in future periods, we may recognize a gain or loss due to fluctuations in the market
value of our UMC stock. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recognized losses of $3.9 million, $15.2 million and
$26.1 million, respectively, on the other-than-temporary decline in the value of our Tower investment and the

~impairment in value on our prepaid wafer credits. If the fair value of our Tower investment declines further or

the wafer credits are deemed to have little or no value, it may be necessary to record additional losses.

Al of the potential changes noted above are based on sensitivity analysis performed on our financial
position at December 28, 2003. Actual results may differ materially.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SanDisk Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SanDisk Corporation as of Decem-
ber 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 28, 2003. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of SanDisk Corporation at December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 28, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ Ermst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
January 19, 2004
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SANDISK CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 28,  December 29,
2003 2002

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... et i § 734,479 $220,785
Short-term INVeSTMENTS . .. .. .. i e e e e 528,117 235,706
Investment In foUndries .. ...ttt i i e e e e 36,976 110,069
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,882 in 2003 and
$4,563 I 2002 . . o e 184,236 81,086
| §ITZS 18 Ca 5 1= P 116,896 88,595
Deferred 18X B850 . o . o vttt e e 70,806 —_—
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and tax receivable . ........... ... .. ... ..., 53,394 18,489
Total current assets. .. ... [ 1,724,904 754,730
Property and equipment, NEt ... ...ttt 59,470 30,307
Investment in foundries . ... ... o i e 40,446 24,197
Investment in FlashVision ... ... i e e 144,616 142,825
Deferred tax asset. ... ittt 7,927 6,922
Deposits and other NON-CUITERT ASSELS . . ...\ttt ittt nenees. 46,151 14,598
e - T £ $2,023,514 $973,579

Current Liabilities:

Acoounts payable .. ... .. e $ 88,737 $ 28,294
Accounts payable to related parties ........... . e 45,013 26,349
Accrued payroll and related expenses. ............ .. 28,233 11,690
Income taxes pavable . ... ... . i . 37,254 15,978
Deferred tax Hability ... oot e — 6,922
Research and development liability, related party. ... 11,800 10,507
Othier accrued Habilities . . . ... .. r ettt e 36,661 26,780
Deferred income on shipments to distributors and retailers and deferred revenue ... .. 99,136 43,760
Total current Habilities . . .. ... ... . i 346,834 170,280
Convertible subordinated notes payable ...... ... . i 150,000 150,000
Deferred revenue and other non-current labilities .. ........... ... ... ... ... ..., 25,992 25,579
Total Liabilities . .. ... i 522,826 345,859
Commitments and contingencies ... ......... ... iriiiiiie e, —_ —

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, Authorized shares: 4,000,000, Issued and outstanding:

103 1T A — —_
Common stock, $0.001 par value; Authorized shares: 400,000,000; Issued and
outstanding: 160,914,000 in 2003 and 138,312,000in 2002 ...............cvvin.n, 160 138
Capital in excess of par value ................ e e e 1,207,798 585,830
Retained Samings .. ... ccv it e e 253,624 84,765
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) ........ .o i, 39,106 (43,013)
Total stockholders’ equity ...... .. i i e 1,500,688 627,720
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity . ............ . i, $2,023,514 $973,579

See accompanying notes.
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SANDISK CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

December 28, December 29, December 30,
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues

Product ... e $ 982,341 $492,900 $ 316,867

License and royalty . ... ... o i 97.460 48,373 49,434

TOtal FEVENUE ..\ v vt et ettt 1,079,801 541,273 366,301

Cost of product TEVENUES. . ... .ottt ittt 641,189 352,452 392,293
Gross profits (JoSSes) ... .vii i 438,612 188,821 (25,992)
Operating expenses

Reseaych and development ........... . .. i, 84,200 63,177 58,931

Sales and marketing ....... .. .. i 66,317 40,407 42,576

General and administrative . . .....co it e e 31,057 27,086 16,981

ReStructuring . .....ovii i i i — — 8,510

Total operating exXpenses . .........ccvviviiniereenencn.. 181,574 130,670 126,998

Operating income (loss) ........... .o i 257,038 58,151 (152,950}
Equity in income of joint ventures. ...........c.ooiveievnn.. 178 856 2,082
Interest iNCOME . ...\ttt e 8,865 8,675 12,404
Interest EXpense . ..o vt e e {6,750) (6,700) (138)
Gain (loss) in investment in foundries ...................... 3,746 (15,163) {302,293)
Loss on unauthorized sale of UMC shares................... (18,339) — —
(Loss) in equity investment . ........... ... ciiiirinenann. (148) (2,700) —
Other (Joss), met . ... e (2,709) (3,140) {(1,009)
Income (loss) before taxes. ... v, 241,881 39,979 (441,944)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ................... 73,022 3,739 {144,000)
Netincome (10SS) ..o v it e e $ 168,859 $ 36,240 $(297,944)
Net income (loss) per share

Basic ... $ 1.17 $§ 026 § (219

Diluted ... i $ 1.02 $§ 025 $  (2.19)
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share

Basic .. ... e 144,781 137,610 136,296

Diluted ... 171,616 142,460 136,296

See accompanying notes.
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SANDISK CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Common Comgrt:lfernsive Total
Stock Capital In Excess Retained Income Stockholders’

Shares Amount of Par Value Earnings (Loss) Equity

(In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2000 134,928 $134 $ 566,867 $ 346,469 $(50,412) $ 863,058
Netloss.............oonnn. ~ = — (297,944) (297,944)
Unrealized gain on available for

sale securities ............. —_ — — — 908 908
Unrealized gain on investments 95,927 95,927
Comprehensive loss .......... (201,109)

Exercise of stock options for

cash ..................... 1,662 2 4,765 —_ — 4,767
Issuance of stock pursuant to

employee stock purchase

plan ............... ... 338 — 3,863 . 3,863
Income tax benefit from stock '

options exercised .......... — — 4,800 — — 4,800
Balance at December 30, 2001 136,928 136 580,295 48,525 46,423 675,379
Netincome................. — — — 36,240 36,240
Unrealized gain on available for

sale securities ............. — — _— — 292 292
Unrealized loss on investments (89,728) (89,728)
Comprehensive loss .......... (53,196)

Exercise of stock options for

cash .............. .. 944 1 2,759 — — 2,760
Issuance of stock pursuant to

employee stock purchase

plan ... ... ... oLl 438 1 2,776 2,777
Balance at December 29, 2002 138,310 138 585,830 84,765 (43,013) 627,720
Netincome................. — —_ — 168,859 168,859 . ...
Unrealized (loss) on available - S

for sale securities .......... . _ _ —_ — (622) (622)
UnrealiZzed gain on investments 82,741 82,741
Comprehensive income .. ... .. 250,978

Exercise of stock options for

cash ..................... 5,472 5 51,594 — — 51,599
Issuance of stock pursuant to

employee stock purchase

plan ... 608 1 3,694 3,695
Sale of common stock, net of

1SSUANCe COStS . ... in. .. 16,524 16 521,592 521,608
Income tax benefit from stock

options exercised .......... — — 45,088 — — 45,088
Balance at December 28, 2003 160,914 $160 $1,207,798 $ 253,624 $ 39,106 $1,500,688

See accompanying notes.
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S SANDISK CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net InCOME (J088) . v i vttt ettt et et e e e e e $ 168,859 § 36,240 $(297,944)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
J 3 1=3 y e B T - U 2,152 (7,729)  (134,483)
(Gain) loss in investment in foundries ........ ... . i (3,746) 15,163 302,293
Loss on unauthorized sales of UMUOC shares ........o. et 18,339 — —
Loss int equity IVESIMENT ... .o iu it vttt et i e 148 2,700 —
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ittt i e s 22,952 21,321 20,548
Amortization of bond ISSUANCE COSIS ... ... ottt e 890 880 —
Allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ... .. . i e e 1,400 1,795 829
Equity in income of JoINt VERTUIES . ... ...ttt it iiiin e (178) (856) (2,082)
Non-cash portion of restructuring charge ....... ... oo i il o — 6,383
Loss (gain) on disposal of eqUIPMENt .. ... ...t e e 191 (1,089) 7,013
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNts TeCeIvable .. ... .. e e (104,550) (37,658) 50,353
Income tax refund receivable ... . . . i e 1,563 26,910 (28,473)
L0 0] w7 OO (28,301) (33,314) 39,587
Prepaid expenses and Other current assetsS .. ... ..t i ratiarenneneianns 7,697 (5,217) 6,179
Deposits and other assets. ... ...ttt i i i e (4,116) 1,771 6,964
Investment in FlashVision . ... . it i i e e e e (1,613) 8,128 —_
Accounts payable ... ... e e i i e 51,296 8,356 (39,241)
Accrued payroll and related expenses ....... ... it i e 16,543 6,411 (10,936)
Income taxes payable . . .. .. e e e s 26,157 3,807 (4,266)
Other current liabilities, related parties .. ... ... i it 29,104 (2,408) 31,331
Other accrued Habilities . . ...ttt e e i it e et e it 9,196 6,911 7.397
Deferred income on shipments to distributors and retailers and deferred revenue ........ - 57,682 51,129 (34,934)
Other non-current liabilities, related party. ... i i — — 1,416
Other non-current Habillties ... ... ...t ittt it it e e (1,225) 2,404 —
Total adjustments . ... .. .. e e 101,581 69,415 225,878
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. . ....... ... ..o i 270,440 105,655 (72,066)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments .. ... ..ttt ettt renan (620,488) (376,373) (224,659)
Proceeds from sale of short term investments. . ... i i 327,457 246,417 380,207
Proceeds from sale of shares in investment in foundries . .................. ... o 21,627 — —
Proceeds from sale of equity investment ....... .. ... .o i i i 4,352 — —
Acquisition of property and eqUIPMIENT . ... ...ttt e (52,544) (16,638) (26,223)
Acquisition of technology liCENSe ... ... .t i e (1,500) (606) —_
Investment in FlashVision .. ... . o — 4,199 (14,970)
Investment in FOUNAIIES . .. .. .0ttt ettt e e e e (6,601) (26,005} (44,498)
Deposit for acquisition of fixed @s$€t8 .. ... ..ttt i i e (2,079) —_ —
Deposit for investment in foundries . ... .. .. i i (4,400) — -—
Deposit in escrow for investment in foundries.............. .. ... ... oo ol — 20,004
Proceed from sales of fixed assets.......... ... . i 528 — —
Restricted cash ... ... e e e — 64,734 (64,734)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . .. ... i, (333,648)  (104,272) 25,127
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinated notes . ................... ... — 24,366 121,531
Net proceeds from issnance of common StOCK ... . v i e 521,608 —_ —_
Issuance of common Stock. .. ... e 55,294 5,537 8,630
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ... ... .. . i s 576,902 29,903 130,161
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . ............. ..o o, 513,694 31,286 83,222
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year........... ... ... .. .. o i il 220,785 189,499 106,277
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the year. . ......... . i i, $ 734,479 § 220,785 § 189,499
Supplemental disclosure of cash fow information:
Cash paid fOr INCOME TAXES . . . ..\ ittt ettt ettt een s e eeie e et ciannnarananes $ (44,244) § (10,076) $ (13,962)
Cash refund for IMCOME tAXES . . ..ottt e et e e $ 1,181 § 27,399 —
Cash paid fOr INTErest EXPENSE . . ittt v ettt ettt ictn s aene et eeennn $ (6,750) $ (6,019) —

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Operations

SanDisk Corporatmn (the Company) was incorporated in Delaware on June 1, 1988, to- demgn’-”’”f‘"”"

manufacture, and market mdustry-standard solid-state-mass-storage products using proprietary; high- dep};ty
_flash- memory-technology. The Company operates in one - segment and serves customers in the consumer
electronics, industrial, communications-and highly portable computing markets. Principal geographic markets

““fot the Company’s products include the United States, Japan, Europe and the Far East.

Customer and Supplier Concentrations

A limited number of customers historically have accounted for a substantial portion of the Company’s
revenues. Sales to our top 10 customers accounted for approximately 50%, 48% and 49%, of the Company’s
product revenues for the fiscal years ended December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001,
respectively. However, seven of the top ten customers for 2003, were also a part of the Company’s top ten
customers in 2002 and 2001. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, no single customer accounted for more than 10% of total
revenues. Sales of the Company’s products will vary as a result of fluctuations in market demand. Further, the
flash data storage markets in which the Company competes are characterized by rapid technological change,
evolving industry standards, declining average selling prices and rapid technological obsolescence.

Certain of the raw materials used by the Company in the manufacture of its products are available from a
limited number of suppliers. All of the Company’s flash memory card products require silicon wafers for the
memory components and the controller components, which are included in its flash cards. The substantial
majority of the Company’s memory wafers are currently supplied by Toshiba’s wafer facility at Yokkaichi,
Japan, and to a lesser extent by Samsung and Renesas. The Company’s controller wafers are currently
manufactured by UMC and Tower. Given the recent increase in global demand for flash memory wafers and
assuming that the markets for the Company’s products continue their current growth rate, demand from
customers may outstrip the supply of flash memory wafers available to the Company from its current sources.
If Toshiba, FlashVision, Samsung, Tower and UMC are uncompetitive or are unable to satisfy these
requirements, the Company’s business, financial condition and operating results may suffer, Any disruption in
supply from these sources due to natural disaster, power failure, labor unrest or other causes could significantly
harm the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Under the terms of the Company’s wafer supply agreements, the Company is obligated to provide a six-
month rolling forecast of anticipated purchase orders. Except in limited circumstances and subject to
acceptance by the foundries, the estimates for the first three months of each rolling forecast constitute a
binding commitment and the estimates for the remaining months of the forecast may only be changed by a
certain percentage from the previous month’s forecast. These restrictions limit the Company’s ability to react
to significant fluctuations in demand for its products. As a result, the Company is not able to match its
purchases of wafers to specific customer orders, and therefore the Company may be required to record write
downs for potential excess inventory purchased prior to the receipt of customer orders. These adjustments
decrease gross margins in the quarter reported and may result, in fluctuations in gross margins on a quarter-to-
quarter basis. To the extent the Company inaccurately forecasts the number of wafers required, it may have
either a shortage or an excess supply of wafers, either of which could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, if the Company is unable to
obtain scheduled quantities of wafers from any foundry with acceptable yields, the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted.

In addition, certain key components are purchased from single source vendors for which alternative
sources are currently not available. Shortages could occur in these essential materials due to an interruption of
supply or increased demand in the industry. If the Company were unable to procure certain of such materials,
it would be required to reduce its manufacturing operations, which could have a material adverse effect upon
its results of operations. The Company also relies on third-party subcontractors to assemble and test its
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ (Continued)

products. The Company has no long-term contracts with these subcontractors and cannot directly control
product delivery schedules. This could lead to product shortages or quality assurance problems that could
increase the manufacturing costs of its products and have adverse effects on its operating results.

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to December 31,

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Strategic Equity Investments

From time to time, the Company invests in common stock of other companies. The Company generally
accounts for strategic equity investments under the cost method of accounting if its investment in voting stock
of the investee is less than 20%. The Company accounts for these investments under the equity method of
accounting if its investment in voting stock is greater than 20% but less than 50%. In considering the
accounting method for investments less than 20%, the Company considers other factors such as its ability to
exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies of the investee. If certain factors are present,
the Company could account for investments for which it has less than a 20% ownership, under the equity
method of accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statemeénts and accompanying notes. The estimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, the
Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to customer programs and incentives, product
returns, bad debts, inventories, investments, income taxes, warranty obligations, restructuring, and contingen-
cies and litigation. The Company bases estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions..

Revenue Recognition, Sales Returns and Allowances and Sales Incentive Programs. The Company
recognizes net revenues when the earnings process is complete, as evidenced by an agreement with the
customer, transfer of title and acceptance, if applicable, fixed pricing and reasonable assurance of realization.
Because of frequent sales price reductions and rapid technology obsolescence in the industry, sales made to
distributors and retailers are generally under agreements allowing price protection and/or right of return and,
therefore, the income on these sales is deferred until the retailers or distributors sell the merchandise to their
end customer, or the rights of return expire. At December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, deferred income,
from sales to distributors and retailers was $90.1 million and $34.8 million, respectively. Estimated product
returns related to end-users are provided for and were not material for any period presented in the consolidate
financial statements. ‘

The Company earns patent license and royalty revenue under patent cross-license agreements with
several companies including Renesas, Lexar Media, Inc., Samsung Electronics Company Ltd., Sharp
Electronics Corporation, Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., SmartDisk Corporation, Sony Corporation,
Olympus, and TDK. The Company’s current license agreements provide for the payment of license fees or
royalties, or a combination thereof, to the Company. The timing and amount of these payments can vary
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

substantially from quarter to quarter, depending on the terms of each agreement and, in some cases, the timing
of sales of products by the other parties.

Revenue from patent licensing arrangements is recognized when earned. The timing of revenue
recognition is dependent on the terms of each contract and on the timing of product shipments by third parties.
For certain of the Company’s licensees, the Company e¢stimates royalty revenues earned based on its licensees’
preliminary reports, and aligns actual reported royalty revenues when the final reports are received. The
Company has received payments under its cross-license agreements, portions of which were recognized as
revenue and portions of which were recorded as deferred revenue. The Company’s cross license arrangements,
that include a guaranteed access to flash memory supply, were recorded based upon the cash received for the
arrangement as the Company does not have vendor specific objective evidence for the fair value of the
intellectual property exchanged or supply guarantees received. Under these arrangements the Company
recorded the cash received as the total value of goods received and is recognizing the associated revenues over
the life of the agreement, which corresponds to the life of the supply arrangement as well. Recognition of
deferred revenue is expected to occur in future periods over the life of the agreements, as the Company meets
certain obligations as provided in the various agreements. At December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002,
deferred revenue from patent license agreements was $34.5 million and $32.1 million, respectively. The cost of
revenues associated with patent license and royalty revenues was insignificant for the three years ended
December 28, 2003.

The Company records reductions to revenue and trade-accounts receivable for customer programs and
incentive offerings, including promotions and other volume-based incentives when revenue is recorded based
upon estimated requirements. Marketing development programs, when granted, are either recorded as a
reduction to revenue or as an addition to marketing expense depending on the contractual nature of the
program. These incentives generally apply only to its retail customers, which represented 64% of its product
revenues in both 2003 and 2002, and 54% and 2001. If market conditions were to decline, the Company may
take actions to increase customer incentive offerings to its retail customers, possibly resulting in an
incremental reduction of revenue at the time the incentive is offered.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company evaluates the collectibility of its accounts receivable
based on a combination of factors. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer’s
inability to meet its financial obligations to the Company (e.g., bankruptcy filings, substantial down-grading of
credit ratings), the Company records a specific reserve for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net
recognized receivable to the amount it reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers, the
Company recognizes reserves for bad debts based on the length of time the receivables are past due based on
its historical experience. All accounts or portions thereof that are deemed to be uncollectible are written off
through a charge to the allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. If circumstances change (i.e., higher
than expected defaults or an unexpected material adverse change in a major customer’s ability to meet its
financial obligations to us), the Company’s estimates of the recoverability of amounts due it could be reduced
by a material amount,

Warranty Costs. The majority of the Company’s products are warrantied for one to seven years. A
provision for the estimated future cost related to warranty expense is recorded and included in the cost of
revenue when revenue is recognized. The Company’s warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates
and repair or replacement costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates,
repair or replacement costs differ from the Company’s estimates, increases to its warranty liability would be
required.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The warranty activity is as follows (in thousands):
Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs of End of
For thie Year Ended of Period Revenue (Usage) Period
December 29,2002, . ... ... i $3,139 $3,304 $(2,971) $3472
December 28, 2003. ... .. ... .o $3,472 $5,694 $(5472) $3,694

Valuation of Financial Instruments. The Company’s short-term investments include investments in
marketable equity and debt securities. As of December 28, 2003, the Company also had equity investments in,
UMC of $17.5 million and Tower of $58.7 million. In determining if and when a decline in market value below
cost of these investments is other-than-temporary, the Company evaluates the market conditions, offering
prices, trends of earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for its investments in marketable equity
securities and debt instruments. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss in the current period operating results to the extent of the decline. In
2003, no declines of an other-than-temporary nature were recorded for these marketable equity investments
and a gain was recorded as an adjustment to the fair value of the Tower warrant of approximately $0.6 million
as determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions at December 28,
2003; dividend yield of 0.0%; expected life of 2.75 years; volatility factor of 0.70; and risk free interest rate of
2.32%. In 2002, the market vatue of the Company’s investment in Tower had declined significantly therefore,
the Company recognized losses totaling $11.6 million related to the other-than-temporary decline of its equity
investment, and a loss recorded as an adjustment to the fair value of $0.7 million with the following
assumptions: dividend yield of 0.0%; expected life of 3.75 years; volatility factor of 0.845; and risk free interest
rate of 2.38%. (See Note 8.)

Deferred Tax Assets. Based on the weight of all available evidence, we provided no valuation allowance
against the net deferred tax assets as of December 28, 2003. This determination was based primarily on the
Company’s substantial 2003 operating income and its assessment of the Company’s current and future ability
to utilize certain tax credit carryforwards. The valuation allowance declined $66.4 million in 2003, after
increasing by $30.3 million and $36.1 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. (See Note 7.)

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign operations are measured using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. Accordingly, monetary
accounts (principally cash, accounts receivable and liabilities) are re-measured using the foreign exchange
rate at the balance sheet date. Operating accounts and non-monetary balance sheet accounts are re-measured
at the rate in effect at the date of transaction. The effects of foreign currency re-measurement are reported in
current operations.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year’s amounts to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid financial instruments with insignificant interest rate
risk that are readily convertible to cash and have maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase.
Cash equivalents and short-term investments consist of money market funds, taxable commercial paper,
U.S. government agency obligations, corporate/municipal notes and bonds with high-credit quality, money
market preferred stock and auction rate preferred stock. Short-term investments also include the unrestricted
portion of the Company’s investment in foundries for which trading restrictions expire within one year. The
fair market value, based on quoted market prices, of cash equivalents and short-term investments are

67

e ——EEEE




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

substantially equal to their carrying value, excluding the Company’s short-term investments in foundries, at
December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002.

Management classifies its entire investment portfolio as available-for-sale at the time of purchase and
periodically reevaluates such designation. Debt securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair
value. Unrecognized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities are included in equity until their
disposition. As of December 28, 2003, the amount of unrecognized gain related to the Company’s available-
for-sale investment portfolio was approximately $0.6 million. Realized gains and losses and declines in value
judged to be other than temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in other income (expense). The
cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method.

The Company’s unrestricted investments as of December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002 are as follows
(in thousands):

December 28, December 29,

2003 2002
Cash and Cash equivalents:
Cash . o $ 12,660 $ 18,488
Money market fund ...... ... ... . 501,876 103,418
Commercial paper ...t 157,979 96,879
GOVEernment AZENCIES « . . ottt et et 61,964 2,000
Total cash and cash equivalents ............................ $ 734,479 $220,785
Short term investments:
U.S. government agency obligations.......... e =S 101725 $4T62T T
" Municipal notes/bonds. . .. 335,102 110,491
Corporate notes/bonds . ........ ... oo 42,290 27,738
Commercial Paper .. ...ttt — —
Auction rate preferred stock ......... ... ... Ll 49,000 49,350
Marketable equity securities® ............ .. ... 36,976 110,069
Total. . $ 565,093 $345,775
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. .. ... $1,299,572 $566,560

* Includes Investment in Foundries, short-term, which also includes a warrant to purchase ordinary shares of
Tower Semiconductor Ltd., with an approximate fair value of $1.2 million as of December 28, 2003 and an
approximate value of $537 thousand as of December 29, 2002,

The total net unrealized gain on the available-for-sale securities at December 28, 2003 was $39.1 million
and includes an unrealized gain of $35.5 million on the Company’s investment in UMC of $4.1 million and
Tower of $31.4 million and deferred tax expense of $3.2 million, and a $0.4 million unrealized gain on short-
term investments. The net unrealized (loss) on the available-for-sale securities at December 29, 2002 was
($43.0) million and includes an unrealized (loss) of ($6.6) million on the Company’s investment in UMC
and deferred tax benefit of $37.5 million, offset by a $1.1 million unrealized gain on short-term investments.
Fair value of available-for-sale securities is based upon quoted market prices. Gross realized gains and losses
on sales of available-for-sale securities during the years ended December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002
were immaterial.
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Debt securities at December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers of the securities may have the right
to prepay obligations.

December 28, December 29,
Short-term Investments** 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Short-term investments

Dueinone yearorless ...t $371,276 $176,223
Due after one year through five years .......... ... .. ... 156,841 59,483
TOtal. oo $528,117 $235,706

** Excludes Investment in Foundries, short-term, which also includes a warrant to purchase ordinary shares
of Tower Semiconductor Ltd., with an approximate fair value of $1.2 million as of December 28, 2003 and
an approximate value of $537 thousand as of December 29, 2002.

Long-Term Investments

The Company holds minority equity investments in companies having operations or technology in areas
within SanDisk’s strategic focus. Certain of the investments carry restrictions on immediate disposition.
Investments in public companies with restrictions of less than one year are classified as available-for-sale and
are adjusted to their fair market value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. Investments in non-public companies are reviewed on a quarterly
basis to determine if their value has been impaired and adjustments are recorded as necessary. Upon
disposition of these investments, the specific identification method is used to determine the cost basis in
computing realized gains or losses. Declines in value that are judged to be other than temporary are reported
in other income and expense.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable include amounts owed by geographically dispersed distributors, retailers, and OEM
customers. No collateral is required. Provisions are provided for sales returns, product exchanges and bad
debts.

The activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (in thousands):

Additions
Balance at Charged (o Balance at
Beginning Costs and Deductions End
For the Year Ended of Period Expenses (Write-offs) of Period
December 30, 2001 ........ ... ... ... ... $5,010 $ 829 $ (920) $4,919
-December 29,2002 ....... ... ... . ... ... $4,919 $1,795 $(2,151) $4,563
-December 28,2003 ........... ... ... . ... .. $4,563 $1,400 $(1,081) $4,882
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Inventories and Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed on a currently adjusted standard
basis (which approximates actual costs on a first-in, first-out basis). Market value is based upon an estimated
average selling price reduced by normal gross margins. Inventories are as follows (in thousands):

December 28, December 29,
2003

2002
Raw materials . .. ... ... $ 12,265 $ 7916
WOTK-I0-PIOCESS & v\ ottt ettt ettt e i e 40,246 25,408
Finished goods ........ .. i i 64,385 55,271

$116,896 $88,595

The Company writes: down_its. inventory- to-a new basis for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable
inventory equal to the difference between the cost of the inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions, including assumptions about changes in average
selling prices. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional
inventory write-downs may be required.

In 2003 and 2002, the Company sold approximately $16.3 million and $11.9 million of inventory that had
been fully written off in previous periods. The Company may be forced to take additional write-downs for
excess or obsolete inventory in future quarters if inventory levels exceed forecasted customer orders. In
addition, the Company may record lower of cost or market price adjustments to its inventories if continued
pricing pressure results in a net realizable value that is lower than its manufacturing cost. Although the
Company continuously tries to maintain its inventory in line with the near term forecasted level of business,
the Company is obligated to honor existing purchase orders, which have been placed with its suppliers. In the
case of its FlashVision joint venture, the Company is obligated to purchase 50% of the production output,

which makes it more difficult for the Company to reduce its inventory in times when the demand forecast is

reduced.

Property and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation expense related to plant and equipment totaled $22.7 million, $21.1 million and, $20.5 million, in
fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Amortization expense is related to intangible assets and totaled
$0.3 million and $0.2 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively and zero in 2001. Depreciation and amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the remaining lease
term, whichever is shorter, generally two to seven years.

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
December 28,  December 29,

2003 2002
Machinery and equipment .. ... ... it e $105,999 $ 61,574
SO AT . o et e e 19,193 15,381
Furniture and fixtures........ ... o i i 3,726 3,322
Leasehold Improvements . ... ..o it i 7,495 6,867
Property and equipment, at cost .......... .. . it 136,413 87,144
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . ..................... (76,943) (56,837)
Property and equipment, NEL . ... oo ivtit i e $ 39,470 $ 30,307
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Advertising Expense

Advertising expenses, which are predominantly marketing co-op development programs, which meet
certain conditions, are recorded, when granted, as marketing expense. Any other advertising expenses not
meeting these conditions are expensed as incurred. Prepaid advertising expenses were approximately
$0.9 million and zero at December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, respectively. Advertising expenses were
$5.0 million, $3.4 million and $8.8 million, in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

2003 2002 2001
Numerator:

Numerator for basic net income (loss) per share:

Net income (10S8) . ..ot $168,859  § 36,240  $(297,944)
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding .................. 144,781 137,610 136,296
Basic net income (loss) pershare ....... .. ... ... $ 137 $ 026 $§ (219
Numerator for diluted net income (loss) per share:

Net income (lo8S) ..ottt e $168,859 $ 36,240 §(297,944)

Tax-effected interest and bond amortization expenses attributable

to convertible subordinated notes .......... ... .. .. 5,469 — —
Net income (loss) assuming dilution . ......................... $174,328  § 36,240  $(297,944)

Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per share:
Weighted average common shares ..........c....c . iiiai.... 144,781 137,610 136,296

Incremental common shares attributable to exercise of outstanding
employee stock options and warrants (assuming proceeds would

be used to purchase common stock) ........ . ... ... L.l 10,559 4,850 —
Weighted convertible subordinated debentures .................. 16,276 — —
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per share....... 171,616 142,460 136,296
Diluted net income (loss) pershare.............c.oovieieeann... $ 102 $§ 025 § (219

Basic earnings (loss) per share excludes any dilutive effects of options, warrants, and convertible
securities, Diluted earnings (loss) per share includes the dilutive effects of stock options, warrants, and
convertible securities. Options and warrants to purchase 1,253,457, 8,031,890 and 9,785,824, shares of
common stock were outstanding during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, but have been omitted from the
diluted earnings per share calculation because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market
price of the common shares and, therefore the effect would be antidilutive. All options are antidilutive in fiscal
year 2001 due to the net loss for the year and were omitted from the diluted net loss per share calculation.
Incremental common shares attributable to the assumed conversion of the Company’s convertible subordi-
nated debentures were not included in the per share computation as the effect would be antidilutive for fiscal
years 2002 and 2001.

* Stock-Based Compensation. The Company accounts for employee stock based compensation using the
intrinsic value method and accordingly, no expense has been recognized for options granted to employees
under the plans as the grant price is set at the fair market value of the stock on the day of grant. The Company
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amortizes the deferred stock-based compensation on the straight-line method over the vesting periods of the
applicable options, generally four years. Had compensation expense been determined based on the fair value at
the grant dates for awards, the Company’s pro forma net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share would
have been as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss) asreported ..................... $168,859 $ 36,240 $(297,944)
Fair value method expense, net of related tax ........ $(29,793) $(22,990) $ (30,928)
Pro forma net income (loss) ........... ... ..., $139,066 $ 13,250 $(328,872)
Pro forma basic income (loss) per share ............ § 096 $ 010 $ (242
Pro forma diluted income (loss) per share........... $ 0234 $ 010 $ (242)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model, with the following weighted-average assumptions for grants made in 2003, 2002 and 2001:

December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
Dividend yield ........ .. ... ... . L None None None
Expected volatility . ......... ... ... 0.947 0.972 0.955
Rigk free interest rate .........ooiiiiiiiiiiann. 3.39% 3.84% 4.68%
Expected lives. ......... .. i 5 years 5 years 5 years

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year was $8.71, $4.95 and $7.24 for 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

The effect of applying SFAS 148 on pro forma disclosures is not likely to be representative of the effects
on pro forma disclosures of future years.

The pro forma net income (loss) and net income {loss) per share listed above include expense related to
our Employee Stock Purchase Plans. The fair value of issuance under the employee stock purchase plans is
estimated on the date of issuance using the Black-Scholes model, with the following weighted-average
assumptions for issuances made in 2003, 2002 and 2001:

December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
Dividend yield ............ ... .. .. None None None
Expected volatility . ........ ... .. . L., 0.565 0.857 0.870
Risk free interest rate . ............... ..., 2.94% 3.68% 4.65%
Expected lives. ... ‘2 year ‘> year '/ year

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a revision to Interpreta-
tion No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51”7 (“FIN 46R™).
FIN 46R clarifies the application of ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain entities in
which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
provided by any parties, including the equity holders. FIN 46R requires the consolidation of these entities,
known as variable interest entities (“VIEs"), by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary
is the entity, if any, that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receive a majority of the entity’s
expected residual returns, or both.
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Among other changes, the revisions of FIN 46R (a) clarified some requirements of the original FIN 46,
which had been issued in January 2003, (b) eased some implementation problems, and (c) added new scope
exceptions. FIN 46R deferred the effective date of the Interpretation for public companies to the end of the
first reporting period ending after March 13, 2004, except that all public companies must at a minimum apply
the unmodified provisions of the Interpretation to entities that were previously considered “special-purpose
entities” in practice and under the FASB literature prior to the issuance of FIN 46R by the end of the first
reporting period ending after December 15, 2003.

Among the scope exceptions, companies are not required to apply FIN 46R to an entity that meets the
criteria to be considered a “business” as defined in the Interpretation unless one or more of four named
conditions exist. FIN 46R applies immediately to a VIE created or acquired after January 31, 2003.

The Company has reviewed its investment portfolio to determine whether any of its equity investments
are considered variable interest entities. The Company did not identify any variable interest entities that must
be consolidated, but has made any required additional disclosures. The maximum exposure of any investment
that may be determined to be in a variable interest entity is limited to the amount invested.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Emerging Issues Task Force
(referred to as EITF) Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Muitiple Deliverables.” EITF Issue
No. 00-21 addresses certain aspects of the accounting by a company for arrangements under which it will
perform multiple revenue-generating activities, EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses when and how an arrange-
ment involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting. EITF Issue
No. 00-21 provides guidance with respect to the effect of certain customer rights due to company
nonperformance on the recognition of revenue allocated to delivered units of accounting. EITF Issue
No. 00-21 also addresses the impact on the measurement and/or allocation of arrangement consideration of
customer cancellation provisions and consideration that varies as a result of future actions of the customer or
the company. Finally, EITF Issue No. 00-21 provides guidance with respect to the recognition of the cost of
certain deliverables that are excluded from the revenue accounting for an arrangement. The provisions of
EITF Issue No. 00-21 applied to revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15,
2003. The effect that the adoption of EITF Issue No. 00-21 did not have a material effect on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003.

~Note 2: Financial Instruments
Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s concentration of credit risk consists principally of cash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and trade receivables. The Company’s investment policy restricts investments to high-credit
quality investments and limits the amounts invested with any one issuer. The Company sells to original
equipment manufacturers, retailers and distributors in the United States, Japan, Europe and the Far East,
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition, and generally requires no collateral.
Reserves are maintained for potential credit losses.

Off Balance Sheet Risk

In March 2002, FlashVision exercised its right of early termination under its lease facility with ABN
AMRO Bank, N.V., or ABN AMRO, and in April 2002 repaid all amounts outstanding there under.
FlashVision secured a new equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion Japanese Yen (or
approximately $305 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the agreement was executed) in
May 2002 with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., or Mizuho, and certain other financial institutions, Under the
terms of the new lease, Toshiba is required to provide a guarantee to these financial institutions on behalf of
FlashVision. The Company agreed to indemnify Toshiba in certain circumstances for certain liabilities
Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease arrangement. If
FlashVision fails to meet its lease commitments, and Toshiba fulfills these commitments under the terms of
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the Toshiba’s guarantee, the Company will be obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any claims under
the lease, unless such claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its obligations to FlashVision or its
covenants to the lenders. Because FlashVision’s new equipment lease arrangement is denominated in Japanese
Yen, the maximum amount of the Company’s contingent indemnification obligation on a given date when
converted to U.S. Dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. As of December 28,
2003, the maximum amount of the Company’s contingent indemnification obligation, which reflects payments
and any lease adjustments, was approximately $125.5 million.

Note 3: Commitments, Litigation, Contingencies and Guarantees
Commitments

The terms of the FlashVision joint venture, as described in Note &, contractually obligated the Company
to purchase half of FlashVision’s NAND wafer production output. The Company aiso has the ability to
purchase additional capacity under a foundry arrangement (also discussed more fully at Note 8) with Toshiba.
Under the terms of the Company’s foundry agreement with Toshiba, the Company is required to provide
Toshiba with a purchase order commitment based on a six-month rolling forecast. The purchase orders placed
under this arrangement relating to the first three months of the six-month forecast are binding, are at market
prices and cannot be cancelled. At December 28, 2003, approximately $36.0 million of non-cancelable
purchase orders for flash memory wafers from Toshiba and FlashVision were outstanding. In addition, as a
part of the joint venture agreement, the Company is required to fund certain research and development
expenses related to the development of advanced NAND flash memory technologies. As of December 28,
2003, the Company had accrued liabilities related to those expenses of $11.8 million. The common research
and development amount is a variable computation with certain payment caps. Future obligations are to be
paid in installments using a percentage of the Company’s revenue from NAND flash products buiit with flash
memory supplied by Toshiba or FlashVision. The direct research and development is a pre-determined
amount that extends through the third quarter of 2004. Subsequent to the third quarter of 2004, direct
research and development liabilities will be computed using a variable percentage of actual research and
development expenses incurred.

Given the current apparent acceleration in global demand for flash memory wafers and assuming that the
markets for the Company’s products continue their current growth, new anticipated demand from customers
may outstrip the supply of flash memory wafers available to the Company from all its current sources. In that
case, the Company may need to secure for itself substantial additional flash memory wafer fabricatior capacity
at .09 micron and finer line lithography. Accordingly, the Company and Toshiba are currently discussing
various fabrication and test capacity expansion plans for the FlashVision operation in Yokkaichi, Japan.
Toshiba and the Company plan to substantially expand and increase Yokkaichi’s 200 mm Flash memory wafer
output in 2004 and 2005. The capacity expansion will be partially funded through FlashVision internally
generated funds, as well as through substantial additional investments by Toshiba and SanDisk. In February
2004, the Company committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to fund additional 200-
millimeter fabrication capacity through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan is secured by the equipment
purchased by FlashVision using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in several
tranches through the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Because the Company’s funding obligation is denominated in
Japanese Yen, the amount of the Company’s obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. Dollars will
fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. In December 2003, Toshiba and the Company
announced their intention to, and are currently in discussions regarding, cooperating in the construction of a
new 300-millimeter wafer fabrication facility, Fab 3, at Toshiba’s Yokkaichi operations. As under the current
FlaghVision joint venture, the Company would be obligated to purchase half of Fab 3's NAND wafer
production output. Toshiba would construct the Fab 3 building, depreciation of the Fab 3 building would be a
component of the cost to each party of wafers produced by Fab 3, and both parties would provide funds for the
manufacturing equipment. Toshiba currently plans to begin construction of the building in the first half of
2004. The Company may agree that in the event that the Company and Toshiba do not execute definitive

74




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

agreements with respect to Fab 3, the Company will reimburse Toshiba for 50% of certain start-up costs and
Fab 3 Co. formation costs incurred by Toshiba and for cancellation fees due under authorized contractor and
vendor invoices for orders placed by Toshiba for certain equipment and construction materials for Fab 3 that
Toshiba cannot otherwise use, which amounts would be substantial. The total investment in Fab 3, excluding
the cost of building construction, is currently estimated at $2.5 billion in the period through the end of 2006, of
which our share is estimated to be approximately $1.3 billion, with initial production currently scheduled for
the end of 2005. The Company and Toshiba would share equally in the investment, and the Company may
need to raise additional capital for its portion of the investment. In addition to its initial investment in
expansion at Yokkaichi and in Fab 3, if a final agreement for Fab 3 is reached between the Company and
Toshiba, for several quarters the Company will incur substantial start-up expenses related to the hiring and
training of manufacturing personnel, facilitizing the clean room and installing equipment at the expanded
fabrication facility and at Fab 3.

At December 28, 2003, the Company had approximately $141.2 million of total non-cancelable
outstanding purchase orders from its suppliers and subcontractors. The following summarizes the Company’s
contractual cash obligations, commitments and off balance sheet arrangements at December 28, 2003, and the
effect such obligations are expected to have on its liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thousands).

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Less than 5 Years and

) Total 1 Year 2-3Years 4 -5 Years Beyond
CONTRACTUAL

OBLIGATIONS:
Convertible subordinated notes

payable (See Note 4.) ....... $150,000(1) $ — $150000 § — § —
Interest payable on convertible

subordinated notes . .......... 20,250 6,750 13,500 —_ —
Operating leases............... 6,816 3,132 3,684 — —_
FlashVision research and

development, fabrication

capacity expansion and start-up

COSES oot 320,516(3)(4) 197,344 69,172 54,000
Non-cancelable purchase

commitments ............... 141,723(2) 141,723 —_ —_ —
Total contractual cash obligations $639,3053 $348,949 $236,356  $54,000 $ -

(1) On January 10, 2002, the initial purchasers completed the exercise of their option to purchase an
additional $25.0 million of the Notes.

(2) FlashVision binding three-month purchase commitments for flash memory wafers are denominated in
Japanese Yen, and are subject to fluctuation in exchange rates prior to payment.

(3) Includes a loan to FlashVision entered into in February 2004,
(4) Excludes potential Fab 3 FlashVision agreement, as agreement not final.

Less than 5 Years and
Total 1 Year 2 ~ 3 Years 4 ~ 5 Years beyond
CONTRACTUAL SUBLEASE
INCOME:
Non-cancelable operating sublease. . . . . $336 $212 $124 $— $—
Total contractual cash income ........ $336 $212 $124 $— —
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As of
December 28,
2003
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Indemnification of FlashVision foundry equipment lease . ...................... $125,530

The Company leases its headquarters and sales offices under operating leases that expire at various dates
through 2007. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases at December 28, 2003 are as follows
(in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending

2004 . $3,132
20005 e e 2,528
2006 . 1,156
Thereafter . . —_
dOtal L o $6,316

The Company subleases a building and certain equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Future
minimum lease rentals on non-cancelable operating leases at December 28, 2003 are as follows (in
thousands);

Year Ending December 31, e e s

2004 e e e T T T

2005 R 123
Thereafter ... —
TOMAL ..ot $336

Rent expense under all operating leases was $2.9 million, $3.0 million and $3.6 million for the years
ended December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, respectively.

The Company had foreign exchange contract lines in the amount of $120.0 million at December 28, 2003.
Under these lines, the Company may enter into forward exchange contracts that require the Company to sell
or purchase foreign currencies. There were no foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 28, 2003.

Litigation

The Company relies on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyright and trade secret laws,
confidentiality procedures and licensing arrangements to protect its intellectual property rights. There can be
no assurance that there will not be any disputes regarding the Company’s intellectual property rights.
Specifically, there can be no assurance that any patents held by the Company will not be invalidated, that
patents will be issued for any of the Company’s pending applications or that any claims allowed from existing
or pending patents will be of sufficient scope or strength or be issued in the primary countries where the
Company’s products can be sold to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage to the
Company. Additionally, competitors of the Company may be able to design around the Company’s patents.

To preserve its intellectual property rights, the Company believes it may be necessary to initiate litigation
with one or more third parties, including but not limited to those the Company has notified of possible patent
infringement. In addition, one or more of these parties may bring suit against the Company. Any litigation,
whether as a plaintiff or as a defendant, would likely result in significant expense to the Company and divert
the efforts of the Company’s technical and management personnel, whether or not such litigation is ultimately
determined in favor of the Company.
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From time to time, it has been and may continue to be necessary to initiate or defend litigation against
third parties to preserve and defend our intellectual property rights. These and other parties could bring suit
against us.

Litigation is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materiaity
from the Company’s expectations. Factors that could cause litigation results to differ include, but are not
limited to, the discovery of previously unknown facts, changes in the law or in the interpretation of laws, and
uncertainties associated with the judicial decision-making process. The Company has been subject to, and
¢xpects to continue to be subject to, claims and legal proceedings regarding alleged infringement by it of the
patents, frademarks and other intellectual property rights of third parties. Furthermore, parties that the
Company has sued and that it may sue for patent infringement may counter-sue the Company for infringing
their patents. Litigation involving intellectual property can become complex and extend for a protracted time,
and is often very expensive. Such claims, whether or not meritorious, may result in the expenditure of
significant financial resources, injunctions against the Company or the imposition of damages that it must pay
and would also divert the efforts and attention of some of the Company’s key management and technical
personnel. The Company may need to obtain licenses from third parties who allege that it has infringed their
rights, but such licenses may not be available on terms acceptable to the Company or at all. Moreover, if the
Company is required to pay significant monetary damages, is enjoined from selling any of its products or is
required to make substantial royalty payments, its business would be harmed.

On or about August 3, 2001, the Lemelson Medical, Education & Research Foundation, or Lemelson
Foundation, filed a complaint for patent infringement against the Company and four other defendants. The
suit, captioned Lemelson Medical, Education, & Research Foundation, Limited Partnership vs. Broadcom
Corporation, et al.,, Civil Case No. CIV0! 1440PHX HRH, was filed in the United States District Court,
District of Arizona. On November 13, 2001, the Lemelson Foundation filed an Amended Complaint, which
made the same substantive allegations against the Company but named more than twenty-five additional
defendants. The Amended Complaint alleges that the Company, and the other defendants, had infringed
certain patents held by the Lemeison Foundation pertaining to bar code scanning technology. By its
complaint, the Lemelson Foundation requests that the Company be enjoined from its allegedly infringing
activities and seeks unspecified damages. On February 4, 2002, the Company filed an answer to the Amended
Complaint, wherein the Company alleged that it did not infringe the asserted patents, and further that the
patents are not valid or enforceable.

On October 31, 2001, the Company filed a complaint for patent infringement in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California against Memorex Products, Inc., Pretec Electronics
Corporation, Ritek Corporation, and Power Quotient International Co., Ltd. In the suit, captioned SanDisk
Corp. v. Memorex Products, Inc., et al, Civil No. CV 01-4063 VRW, the Company secks damages and
injunctions against these companies from making, selling, importing or using flash memory cards that infringe
it’s U.S. Patent No. 5,602,987, or the "987 patent. Defendants have filed answers denying the aliegations. The
Company filed a motion for a preliminary injunction in the suit to enjoin Memorex, Pretec and Ritek from
making, selling, importing or using flash memory cards that infringe its "987 patent prior to the trial on the
merits. On May 17, 2002, the Court denied the Company’s motion. Discovery has commenced. Ritek filed a
motion for summary judgment of non-infringement on October 31, 2002. The Company filed a cross-motion
for summary judgment of Ritek’s infringement. The Court granted Ritek’s motion on September 30, 2003.
Discovery is continuing with respect to the Pretec and Memorex portion of the case. The Company intends to
appeal the Court’s grant of Ritek’s motion. On January 29, 2004, Pretec filed a motion for summary judgment
of non-infringement. Memorex filed a motion to join in Pretec’s summary judgment motion on January 30,
2004. The Court has taken these motions under submission.

On or about June 9, 2003, the Company received written notice from Infineon Technologies AG, or
Infineon, that it believes the Company has infringed Infineon’s U.S. Patent No. 5,726,601, or the '601 patent.
The Company contends that it has not infringed any valid claim of the ‘601 patent. On June 24, 2003, the
Company filed a complaint against Infineon for a declaratory judgment of patent non-infringement and
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invalidity in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. In the suit, captioned
SanDisk Corporation v. Infineon Technologies AG, a German corporation, and Does I to X, Civil No. C 03
02931 BZ, the Company is seeking a declaration that it had not infringed the ‘601 patent and that the patent is
invalid. On October 6, 2003, Infineon filed an answer to the Company’s complaint and counterclaim for
alleged patent infringement. By its answer and counterclaim, Infineon: (i) denied that the Company is entitled
to the declaration sought by the Company’s complaint; (ii) requested that the Company be adjudged to have
infringed, actively induced and/or contributed to the infringement of the "601 patent and another patent —
U.S. Patent No. 4,841,222, or the ‘222 patent, willfully and deliberately; and (iii) sought damages, attorneys’
fees, and an injunction against the Company from making, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing
any product that infringes upon the rights secured by the ‘601 and '222 patents. Later on October 6, 2003,
Infineon filed an amended answer and counterclaim, which includes the same substantive allegations of
infringement that are found in its original answer and counterclaim. On October 27, 2003, the Company filed a
reply to Infineon’s counterclaims, wherein it denied that it infringed the asserted patents, and denied that
Infineon is entitled to any relief in the action. Discovery has commenced. On January 13, 2004, Infineon
informed the Company that it desires to file an amended counterclaim that would omit claims under the 222
patent, leaving only the ‘601 patent in the suit. Infineon has requested that the Company consent to allow it to
file the proposed amendment. The Company has informed Infineon that the Company will consider its request
for consent.

On July 3, 2003, a purported shareholder class action lawsuit was filed on behalf of United States holders
of ordinary shares of Tower as of the close of business on April 1, 2002 in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. The suit, captioned Philippe de Vries, Julia Frances Dunbar De Vries
Trust, et al., v. Tower Semiconductor Ltd., et al., Civil Case No. 03 CV 4999, was filed against Tower and
certain of its shareholders and directors, including the Company and Eli Harari, the Company’s President and
CEQ and a Tower board member, and asserts claims arising under Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder. The lawsuit alleges that Tower
and certain of its directors made false and misleading statements in a proxy solicitation to Tower shareholders
regarding a proposed amendment to a contract between Tower and certain of its shareholders, including us.
The plaintiffs are seeking unspecified damages and attorneys’ and experts’ fees and expenses.

Litigation is subject to inherent risks and uncertaintics that may cause actual results to differ materially
from our expectations. Factors that could cause litigation results to differ include, but are not limited to, the
discovery of previously unknown facts, changes in the law or in the interpretation of laws, and uncertainties
associated with the judicial decision-making process.

In the event of an adverse result in any such litigation, the Company could be required to pay substantial
damages, cease the manufacture, use and sale of infringing products, expend significant resources to develop
non-infringing technology or obtain licenses to the infringing technology, or discontinue the use of certain
processes.

From time-to-time the Company agrees to indemnify certain of its suppliers and customers for alleged
patent infringement. The scope of such indemnity varies but may in some instances include indemnification
for damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees. The Company may from time to time be engaged in
litigation as a result of such indemnification obligations. Third party claims for patent infringement are
excluded from coverage under the Company’s insurance policies. There can be no assurance that any future
obligation to indemnify the Company’s customers or suppliers, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Litigation frequently involves substantial expenditures and can require significant management attention,
even if the Company ultimately prevails. In addition, the results of any litigation matters are inherently
uncertain. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that any of the foregoing matters, or any future litigation,
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Contingencies

FlashVision — FlashVision secured an equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion
Japanese Yen (or approximately $305.0 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the
agreement was executed) in May 2002 with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., or Mizuho, and other financial
institutions. Under the terms of the lease, Toshiba guaranteed these commitments on behalf of FlashVision.
The Company agreed to indemnify Toshiba for certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s
guarantee of the FlashVision equipment lease arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease commit-
ments, and Toshiba fulfills these commitments under the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, then the Company will
be obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any claims and associated expenses under the lease, unless the
claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its obligations to FlashVision or its covenants to the lenders.
Because FlashVision’s equipment lease arrangement is denominated in Japanese Yen, the maximum amount
of the Company’s contingent indemnification obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. Dollars will
fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date. As of December 28, 2003, the maximum amount
of the Company’s contingent indemnification obligation, which reflects payments and any lease adjustments,
was approximately $125.5 million,

UMC — Subsequent to the end of the Company’s third quarter ended September 28, 2003, the Company
was advised by its Taiwan law firm that UMC shares owned by the Company and held in custody by its
Taiwan law firm, Lee and Li, had been embezzled by an employee of Lee and Li. Based on information
provided by Lee and Li, a total of approximately 127.8 million of the Company’s UMC shares were sold in
unauthorized transactions. The Company still holds approximately 20.6 million UMC shares.

Effective as of November 14, 2003, the Company and Lee and Li entered into a Settlement and General
Release Agreement, or Settlement Agreement, concerning the embezzled shares. Pursuant to the Settlement
Agreement, the Company was remitted a cash payment of $20.0 million at the time of signing. In addition,
Lee and Li will pay the Company $45.0 million (inclusive of interest $47.9 million) over four years in sixteen
quarterly installments. These amounts are secured by irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by the
International Commercial Bank of China, or ICBC. Further, Lee¢ and Li has extended a credit to the
Company in the amount of $18.3 million to be applied against future legal services provided by Lee and Li and
to be spread equally over 18 years. In the event that the Company does not fully utilize this credit in a given
year, Lee and Li will annually remit one-third of the unused credit amount for that year to the Company and
the Company will donate such amount to its corporate charitable fund. The remaining two-thirds of the
unused credit will be donated by Lee and Li in equal amounts to the Taiwan Red Cross and to a joint
SanDisk/Lee and Li Lecture Program to promote integrated education in business, technology and law in
Taiwan and China. If any of the stolen assets are recovered, the net amount after recovery expenses, will be
split between the Company and Lee and L1, in specified proportions until the Company receives a maximum
amount of $106.6 million, including all amounts described above.

Guarantees

The Company has historically agreed to indemnify suppliers and customers for alleged patent infringe-
ment. The scope of such indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages
and expenses, including attorneys’ fees. The Company may periodically engage in litigation as a result of these
indemnification obligations. The Company’s insurance policies exclude coverage for third-party claims for
patent infringement. The nature of the patent infringement indemnification obligations prevents the Company
from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could be required io pay to its
suppliers and customers. Historically, the Company has not made any significant indemnification payments
under any such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements with respect to these indemnification guarantees.

As permitted under Delaware law, the Company has agreements whereby it indemnifies certain of its
officers and each of its directors for certain events or occurrences while the officer or director is, or was, serving
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at the Company’s request in such capacity. The term of the indemnification period is for the officer’s or
director’s lifetime. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to
make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited; however, the Company has a Director and Officer
insurance policy that may reduce its exposure and enable it to recover all or a portion of any future amounts
paid. As a result of its insurance policy coverage, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these
indemnification agreements is minimal. The Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of
December 28, 2003.

Note 4: Convertible Subordinated Notes Payable

On December 24, 2001, the Company completed a private placement of $125.0 million of 4'2% Converti-
ble Subordinated Notes due 2006 (“Notes™), and on January 10, 2002 the initial purchasers completed the
exercise of their option to purchase an additional $25.0 million of Notes, for which the Company received net
proceeds of approximately $145.9 million. Based on the aggregate principal amount at maturity of $150.0 mil-
lion, the Notes provide for semi-annual interest payments of $3.4 million each on May 15 and November 15.
The Notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to the close of business on the
maturity date, unless previously redeemed or repurchased, at a conversion rate of 108.507 shares per $1,000
principal amount of the Notes, subject to adjustment in certain events. At anytime on or after November 17,
2004, the Company may redeem the notes in whole or in part at a specified percentage of the principal amount
plus accrued interest. The debt issuance costs are being amortized over the term of the Notes using the
interest method. In 2002, the Company recorded $0.9 million of amortization of debt issuance costs as a
component on other income: (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization or upon acceleration of the notes due to an event
of default under the indenture and in certain other events, our assets will be available for distribution to our
current stockholders only after all senior indebtedness, including our contingent indemnification obligations to
Toshiba and obligations under the notes, have been paid in full. The notes are also effectively subordinated to
the liabilities of any of our subsidiaries (including trade payables, which as of December 28, 2003 were
approximately $1.4 million).

Note 5: Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Benefit Plan

The 1989 Stock Benefit Plan, in effect through August 1995, comprised two separate programs, the Stock
Issuance Program and the Option Grant Program. The Stock Issuance Program allowed eligible individuals to
immediately purchase the Company’s common stock at a fair value as determined by the Board of Directors.
Under the Option Grant Program, eligible individuals were granted options to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a fair value, as determined by the Board of Directors, of such shares on the date
of grant. The options generally vest over a four-year period, expiring no later than ten years from the date of
grant. Unexercised options are canceled upon the termination of employment or services. Options that are
canceled under this plan will be available for future grants under the 1995 Stock Option Plan. There were no
shares available for option grants under the 1989 Stock Benefit Plan at December 28, 2003.

1995 Stock Option Plan

The 1995 Stock Option Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock
options. Under this plan, the Board of Directors determines the vesting and exercise provisions of option
grants. The options generally vest over a four-year period, expiring no later than ten years from the date of
grant.

In May 1999, the stockholders increased the shares available for future issuance under the 1995 Stock
Option Plan by 14,000,000 shares and approved an automatic share increase feature pursuant to which the
number of shares available for issuance under the plan will automatically increase on the first trading day in
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January each calendar year, beginning with calendar year 2002 and continuing over the remaining term of the
plan, by an amount equal to approximately 4% of the total number of shares outstanding on the last trading
day in December in the immediately preceding calendar year, but in no event will any such annual increase
exceed 8,000,000 shares. The automatic share increase for 2003 was 6,030,388 shares.

1995 Nen-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan

In August 1995, the Company adopted the 1995 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan. Under this
plan, automatic option grants are made at periodic intervals to eligible non-employee members of the Board of
Directors. Initial option grants vest over a four-year period. Subsequent annual grants vest one year after date
of grant. All options granted under the Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan expire ten years after the
date of grant. In May 1999, the stockholders increased the shares available for future issuance under the 1995
Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan by 800,000 and approved an automatic share increase feature
pursuant to which the number of shares available for issuance under the plan will automatically increase on
the first trading day in January each calendar year, beginning with calendar year 2002 and continuing over the
remaining term of the plan, by an amount equal to 0.2% of the total number of shares outstanding on the last
trading day in December in the immediately preceding calendar year, but in no event will any such annual
increase exceed 400,000 shares. The automatic share increase for 2003 was 276,622 shares. At December 28,
2003, the Company had reserved 2,150,478 shares for issuance under the Non-Employee Directors Stock
Option Plan and a total of 1,568,000 options had been granted. Outstanding shares are at exercise prices
ranging from $6.215 to $35.031 per share.

Special Stock Option Plan

The Special Stock Option Plan provides for the issuance of nonqualified options to newly hired
employees. Under this plan, a committee appointed by the Board of Directors determines the vesting and
exercise provisions of option grants. 4,000,000 shares have been reserved for issuance under the Special Stock
Option Plan, of which no shares are subject to outstanding options.
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A summary of activity under all stock option plans follows (shares in thousands):

Total
Available Weighted
for Future Total Average
Grant/Issuance Outstanding  Exercise Price
Balance at December 31,2000.................... 13,382 17,704 $12.65
Granted ... ... . (2,544) 2,544 $ 9.70
Exercised .......oviiiii — (1,662) $ 2.87
Canceled ............ ... i 1,348 (1,348) $16.05
Balance at December 30,2001 .................... 12,186 17,238 £12.89
Granted ....... ... . . (5.540) 5,540 $ 6.60
Automatic share increase ...................... 6,244 — _
Exercised . ... ... o — (944) $ 294
Canceled ..... ... ... . i 2,572 (2,572) $19.47
Balance at December 29,2002 .................... 15,462 19,262 $10.69
e I (6,088) 6,088 $11.76
Automatic share increase ...................... 6,307 — —
Exercised ............ ... ... . .. . .. — (5,477) $ 9.45
Canceled ......... ... ... i i 481 (481) $17.13
Balance at December 28,2003 .................... 16,162 19,392 $11.21
At December 28, 2003, options ocutstanding were as follows:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Number
Outstanding Weighted Exercisable
as of Average Weighted as of Weighted
Range of December 28, Remaining Average December 28, Average
Exercise Prices 2003 Contractual Life Exercise Price 2003 Exercise Price
$ 0.563 - § 3.125 2,680,330 413 " $ 2.742 2,680,330 $ 2.742
$ 3.281 - $ 6.405 4,540,473 7.71 $ 6.093 1,877,127 $ 5.900
$ 6.445 - § 8.865 5,603,594 8.93 $ 8.666 221,685 $ 7.648
$ 8.925 - $15.000 1,220,898 7.19 $11.724 809,507 $11.728
$15.594 - $22.406 3,874,563 6.56 $17.738 3,257,269 $17.792
$22.438 - $39.485 1,252,776 8.03 $31.892 684,531 $31.803
$40.335 - $69.750 219,270 _6_2 $49.416 159,914 $51.568
$ 0.563 - $69.750 19,391,904 7.32 $11.211 9,690,363 $12.134

The number of exercisable options and the weighted average exercise price as of December 29, 2002 and
December 30, 2001 were 10,967,150 and $10.8125 per share and 9,096,506 and $10.60 per share, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In August 1995, the Company adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan). In May
1999, the stockholders increased the shares available for future issuance under the Purchase Plan by
1,200,000 shares and approved an automatic share increase feature pursuant to which the number of shares
available for issuance under the Purchase Plan will automatically increase on the first trading day in January
each calendar year, beginning with calendar year 2002 and continuing over the remaining term of the Purchase
Plan, by an amount equal to forty-three hundredths of one percent (0.43%) of the total number of shares
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outstanding on the last trading day in December in the immediately preceding calendar year, but in no event
will any such annual increase exceed 800,000 shares. Under the Purchase Plan, qualified employees are
entitled to purchase shares through payroll deductions at 85% of the fair market value at the beginning or end
of the offering period, whichever is lower. As of December 28, 2003, the Company had reserved
5,916,364 shares of common stock for issuance in the aggregate under the Purchase Plan and the Company’s
International Employee Stock Purchase Plan, a comparable stock purchase plan for employees of the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries who are not residing in the U.S., and a total of 3,451,914 shares had been
issued through December 28, 2003.

Shareholder Rights Plan

On September 15, 2003, the Company amended its existing shareholder rights plan to terminate the
rights issued under that rights plan, and the Company adopted a new rights plan. Under the new rights plan,
rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of common stock of the Company
held by stockholders of record as of the close of business on September 25, 2003. The rights will expire on
April 28, 2007 unless redeemed or exchanged. Under the new Rights Agreement and after giving effect to the
Company’s stock dividend effected on February 18, 2004, each right will, under the circumstances described
below, entitle the registered holder to buy one two-hundredths of a share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock for $225.00. The rights will become exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial
ownership of 15 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or commences a tender offer or exchange
offer upon consummation of which such person or group wouid beneficially own 15 percent or more of the
Company’s common stock.

Note 6: Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a tax-deferred savings plan, the SanDisk 401(k) Plan, for the benefit of
qualified employees. The plan is designed to provide employees with an accumulation of funds at retirement.
Qualified employees may elect to make contributions to the plan on a monthly basis. The Company may make
annual contributions to the plan at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company contributed
$1.2 million; $1.0 million and $1.1 million for the plan years ended December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002,
and December 30, 2001, respectively

Note 7: Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):
“ ’ December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
Current:
Federal ....... .. ... i $ 96,399 $(2,717) $ (28,455)
S ate o e e 19,296 432 38
Foreign ... ... i e e 15,025 13,753 6,845
130,720 11,468 (21,572)
Deferred:
Federal ... . ... .. o (50,467) (7,729) (97,388)
SEALE v v, (7,231) — (25,040)
Foreign ....... ... i — — —
(57,698) (7,729) (122,428)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ........... $ 73,022 $ 3,739 $(144,000)
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The tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options reduced taxes payable by $28.1 miltion and
increased the deferred tax asset by $17.0 million in 2003. The tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock
options increased taxes receivable by $4.8 million in 2001. Such benefits are credited to paid-in capital when

realized.

The Company’s provision for (benefit from) income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying

the federal statutory rates to income (loss) before taxes as follows:
December 28,

December 29,

December 30,

2003 2002 2001
Federal statutory rate ............. ... . il 35.0% 35.0% 35.0)%
State taxes, net of federal benefit................... 32 1.1 (5.6)
Utilization of credits and impact of new tax law ... ... (0.5) (6.8) (0.6)
Reversal of tax benefit previously taken on UMC
SHATES . .\t 13.8 — —
Tax exempt interest income .................. e {0.4) (2.5) 0.5)
Utilization of loss carryforward and change in valuation
allowance .......... .. i (19.3) (17.6) 82
Other individually immaterial items ................ _(1.6) _ 02 _ 09
302%  _94%  (26)%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 28, 2003, and December 29,

2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation. ... ... ... ...

Deferred revenue recognized for tax purposes. .........c.ownous

Accruals and reserves not_currently deductible .. ...... ... . ... .
Foreign tax and other credit carryforwards .....................
NOL carryforward . ...... ... . o i
Unrealized loss on investment write down......................

Subtotal: Deferred tax assets. . ... it
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. . .................
Total deferred tax assets ........ ... .. i iiiinrrnnn.s.

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on sale of foundry shares ......................
Fixed assets and other . .......... ... i i

December 28,

December 29,

2003 2002
$ 11,500  $ 13,000
43500 26,500 T
28,500 16,100
12,700 24,700
1,300 1,200
12,300 14,400
1,485 —
111,285 95,900
— " (66,400)
$111,285  $ 29,500
(24,500) (29,500)
(8,052) —
(32,552) (29,500)
$ 78733 §  —

Based on the current year operating income and the Company’s ability to realize certain tax credit
carryforwards, the Company has determined that more likely than not, it does not need any valuation
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allowance against the ending fiscal 2003 net deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance decreased by
$66.4 million in 2003 and increased by $30.3 million and $36.1 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of December 28, 2003, the Company has no federal net operating loss carryforwards and has a state
net operating loss carryforward of approximately $24.4 million. As a result of California legislation, the
utilization of the Company’s NOLs is suspended for 2003. The net operating loss carryforward will expire in
2013 if not utilized. The Company has federal research and development tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $11.7 million, which will expire at various dates from 2019 through 2023. The Company also
has alternative minimum tax carryforwards of $1.0 million, which do not expire.

Utilization of the credit carry-forwards may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the
ownership- change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The annual
limitation is not expected to result in the expiration of credits before utilization.

Note 8: Joint Venture, Strategic Manufacturing Relationships and Investments

FlashVision. "In April 2002, the Company and Toshiba restructured their FlashVision Dominion
Semiconductor business in Virginia and -consolidated FlashVision’s advanced NAND wafer fabrication
manufacturing operations at Toshiba’s memory fabrication facility in Yokkaichi, Japan. In May 2002,
FlashVision secured an equipment lease arrangement of approximately 37.9 billion Japanese Yen (or
approximately $305.0 million based on the exchange rate in effect on the date the agreement was executed)
with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. and other financial institutions. Under the terms of the lease, Toshiba
guaranteed these commitments on behalf of FlashVision. The Company agreed to indemnify Toshiba for
certain liabilities Toshiba incurs as a result of Toshiba’s guaraniee of the FlashVision equipment lease
arrangement. If FlashVision fails to meet its lease commitments, and Toshiba fulfills these commitments
under the terms of Toshiba’s guarantee, the Company will be obligated to reimburse Toshiba for 49.9% of any
claims and associated expenses under the lease, unless such claims result from Toshiba’s failure to meet its
obligations to FlashVision or its covenants to the lenders. Because FlashVision’s equipment lease arrangement
is denominated in Japanese Yen, the maximum amount of the Company’s contingent indemnification
obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. Dollars will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect
on that date. As of December 28, 2003 the maximum amount of the Company’s contingent indemnification
obligation, which reflects payments and any lease adjustments, was approximately $125.5 million. The
Company accounts for its investment in FlashVision under the equity method of accounting.

UMC. The Company maintains its investment position in United Microelectronics, Inc., or UMC, one
of its suppliers of wafers for its controller components, on the cost basis of accounting. During the third quarter
of 2003, the Company sold 35 million of its UMC shares for gross proceeds of approximately $30 million. Also
during the third quarter, the Company suffered a loss of $18.3 million as a result of the fraudulent sale of
127.8 million of UMC shares owned by the Company and misappropriation of the proceeds, by an employee of
Lee and Li, the Company’s law firm in Taiwan. As a result of the unauthorized sales of UMC shares and the
Company’s sale of 35 million UMC shares, the Company’s current holdings in UMC decreased to
approximately 20.6 million shares. Accordingly, the Company has reduced its UMC investment in foundries
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet to $17.5 million at December 28, 2003. In addition, the Company
recognized a loss of approximately $18.3 million in accordance with SFAS No. 5 related to the stolen shares
and recognized a gain of $7.0 million related to the sale of the 35 million shares in its consolidated statements
of income for fiscal 2003, Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement entered into between the Company, Lee and
Li and certain Lee and Li personnel, the cash payment received by the Company of $20.0 million on
November 14, 2003, as well as, promises to pay, exclusive of interest, of $45.0 million over four years have
been classified on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as a short-term other receivable of $11.3 miilion
and a long-term other receivable of $33.7 million at December 28, 2003. The promiises to pay are secured by
irrevocable standby letters of credit. The Company believes the credit for future professional services and
payments of future charitable contributions on the Company’s behalf in the amount of $18.3 million payable
over 18 years, which are an element of the Company’s Settlement Agreement, have no value, as there is no
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reasonable assurance of realization. Accordingly, the Company has charged to earnings these amounts as a
loss on unauthorized sale of UMC shares. Related to the recorded loss, the Company recognized a tax benefit
in the third quarter of approximately $7.0 million, and it also recognized a charge to its tax provision of
approximately $24.4 million resulting from the reversal of a tax benefit recognized in prior periods associated
with the stolen UMC shares. If the Company realizes any additional recovery, a gain will be realized in the
period of recovery. With respect to the remaining 20.6 million shares owned by the Company, UMC’s share
price increased to New Taiwan dollars, or NT$, of NT$29.00 at December 28, 2003, from a stock dividend
adjusted price of NT$21.34 at December 29, 2002. As a result, our investment, which is classified as
available-for-sale in accordance with SFAS No. 115, includes a net unrealized gain of approximately
$4.7 million, inclusive of related tax expense of $0.6 miltion, recorded as a component of accumulated
comprehensive income on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. If the fair value of the UMC shares
declines in the future and such declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary, it may be necessary to record
losses on these declines. In addition, in future periods, there may be a gain or loss, due to fluctuations in the
market value of UMC’s stock, if the UMC shares are sold.

At December 29, 2002, the Company’s equity investment in UMC was valued at $113.0 miltion on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. In 2002, the Company received approximately 23 million additional

shares of UMC stock in the form of stock dividends. These shares were included in the 165 million. shares———

classified as available-for-sale in accordance with SFAS No. 115, were reported at market value of
$105.4 million and included in current assets-on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The Company
also had 11 million shares-that contained trading restrictions that extended beyond one year, which were
valued at their adjusted cost of $7.5 million and were included in non-current assets. UMC’s share price
declined to stock dividend adjusted price NT$21.34 at December 29, 2002 from NT$41.22 at December 30,
2001 resulting in a $81.8 million reduction of the Company’s previously recorded unrealized gain on the
Company’s investment that is classified as available-for-sale. At December 29, 2002, the market value of the
available-for-sale portion of the Company’s UMC investment had declined $6.6 million, before tax, below its
adjusted cost of $112.0 million, and this unrealized loss was included in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. (See Note 12.) The Company accounts for its
investment in UMC under the cost method of accounting.

Tower Semiconductor. In July 2000, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to make an
aggregate $75.0 million investment in Tower Semiconductor for Tower’s new foundry facility, Fab 2, in five
installments upon Tower’s completion of specific milestones. As of December 28, 2003, the Company had
invested $79.0 million in Tower and obtained 8,313,638 Tower ordinary shares, $14.3 million of prepaid wafer
credits, and a warrant to purchase 360,313 Tower ordinary shares at an exercise price of $7.50 per share. The
warrant expires on October 31, 2006. The §,313,638 Tower ordinary shares represented an approximate 16%
equity ownership position in Tower as of December 28, 2003. In fiscal 2003 the Company recorded write-
downs to the value of the wafer credits of $3.9 million and utilized approximately $0.7 million of these wafer
credits to purchase controller wafers from Tower. Also in 2003, the Company recorded a $0.6 million gain to
adjust the book value of the warrant and as of December 28, 2003, the Company had recognized cumulative
losses of approximately $32.2 million as a result of the other-than-temporary decline in the value of its
investment in Tower ordinary shares, $12.2 million as a result of the impairment in value on its prepaid wafer
credits and $0.1 million of losses on its warrant to purchase Tower ordinary shares. As of December 28, 2003,
the Company’s Tower ordinary shares were valued at $58.8 million and included an unrealized gain of
$34.0 million, inclusive of related tax expense impact of $2.7 million, recorded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income, its Tower prepaid wafer credits were valued at $1.4 million and the warrant to
purchase Tower ordinary shares was valued at $1.2 million.

In February 2003, the Company agreed to amend its foundry investment agreements with Tower and
advance the payment of $11.0 million for the fifth and final milestone in two installments, a first installment of
approximately $6.6 million and a second installment of approximately $4.4 million, regardless of whether the
milestone was met. Tower’s shareholders approved the amendment in May 2003. In November 2003, the
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Company agreed to further amend the foundry investment agreements, referred to as the November
Amendment, to, among other things, (a) advance the entirety of the remaining fifth milestone payment of
$6,718,950, or Payment, (b) defer the Company’s use of wafer credits, and (c) extend the lock-up period on
the Company’s Tower ordinary shares. The November Amendment was approved by Tower’s shareholders in
December 2003, following which approval the Company made the Payment. The Company received 777,294
Tower ordinary shares at the time it made the Payment and 628,611 Tower ordinary shares in January 2004
upon the closing of Tower’s follow-on public offering, which generated net cash to Tower of approximately
$75.2 million and correspondingly reduced the Company’s equity ownership position.

Also under the November Amendment, the Company agreed not to use wafer credits until January I,
2007, except with respect to purchase orders issued before the date of the November Amendment utilizing
wafer credits; however, the Company will have the option to convert credits it would have otherwise been able
to utilizé per quarter into Tower ordinary shares at the 15 day average trading price of Tower shares, or ATP,
preceding the iast day of the relevant quarter. Unconverted credits shall accrue interest at a rate per annum
equal to three-month LIBOR plus 2.5% through December 31, 2007. Interest payments will be made
quarterly and the aggregate principal amount of the unconverted credits will be repaid in one lump sum on
December 31, 2007. Effective as of December 31, 2005, the Company may convert all of the then remaining
Series A-4 Credits into Tower ordinary shares at the 15 day ATP preceding December 31, 2005. If the
number of Tower ordinary shares received by the Company and the other wafer partners as a result of this
conversion is greater than or equal to an aggregate of 5% of Tower’s issued and outstanding share capital on
January 31, 2006, Tower will transact a rights offering for the distribution of rights to all of Tower’s
shareholders, other than the Company and the other wafer partners but including Israel Corporation
Technologies, at the same 15 day ATP,

The November Amendment also provides that the Company will not sell its Tower ordinary shares until
January 29, 2006, except the Company may sell 30% of the Tower shares held as of January 29, 2004. In
addition, the Company has extended the date on which it may exercise its demand registration rights until the
earlier of (i) December 31, 2005 and (ii) such date that Tower has fulfilled all of its obligations to raise any
additional financing pursuant to its facility agreement.

As of December 29, 2002, the Company had invested $68.0 million in Tower and obtained 6,100,959
ordinary shares, $14.3 million of prepaid wafer credits, and a warrant to purchase 360,313 ordinary shares at an
exercise price of $7.50 per share. The warrant expires on October 31, 2006. The investment in the ordinary
shares represented an approximate 14% equity ownership position in Tower as of December 29, 2002. In 2002
and 2001, the Company recognized losses of $15.2 million and $26.1 million, respectively, as a result of other-
than-temporary decline in the value of its Tower investment and the impairment in value on its prepaid wafer
credits and approximately $0.7 million in unrealized losses related to the fair value of the warrants purchased
in October of 2002. These warrants were valued at approximately $0.5 million at December 29, 2002. The
Company’s investment in Tower was valued at $21.3 million as of December 29, 2002. At December 29, 2002,
the Company’s prepaid wafer credits were valued at $6.0 million, which was net of $2.8 and $5.5 million in
write-downs recorded in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to the recoverability of these prepaid wafer
credits.

Divio Inc.  In November 2000, the Company made a strategic investment of $7.2 million in Divio, Inc.,
or Divio. During fiscal 2003, Divio was sold to ESS Technology resulting in a net loss from this sale for fiscal
2003 of approximately $0.2 million., The carrying value of the Divio investment on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet at December 29, 2002 was $4.5 million. Prior to Divio’s sale, the Company had
accounted for its investment in Divio using the cost method of accounting. During 2002, in connection with
the Company’s review of equity investments, an impairment loss of $2.7 million on the Company’s investment
in Divio was recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 115.
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Note 9: Derivatives

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in forecasted sales, cost of sales,
and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The Company is also exposed
to interest rate risk inherent in its debt and investment portfolios. The Company’s risk management strategy
provides for the use of derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange forward contracts, to hedge
certain foreign currency exposures. The Company’s intent is to offset gains and losses that occur on the
underlying exposures, with gains and losses on the derivative contracts hedging these exposures. The Company
does not enter into any speculative positions with regard to derivative instruments. The Company enters into
foreign exchange contracts to hedge against exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, only when
natural offsets cannot be achieved. Such contracts are designated at ifiception to the related foreign currency
exposures being hedged, which include sales by subsidiaries, and assets and liabilities that are denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The Company’s foreign currency hedges generally mature within three
months.

All derivatives are recorded at fair market value on the balance sheet, classified in other assets. For
derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or
loss on the derivative instrument is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity and reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedged
transaction affects earnings. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges,
the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, are recognized in earnings in the current period. For derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instruments, changes in their fair values are recognized in earnings in the current
period. Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 133, the Company has only engaged in fair value hedge
accounting pursuant to the methodology described herein.

For foreign currency forward contracts, hedge effectiveness is measured by comparing the cumulative
change in the hedged contract with the cumulative change in the hedged item, both of which are based on
forward rates, To the extent that the critical terms of the hedged item and the derivative are not identical,
hedge ineffectiveness is reported in earnings immediately. The Company estimates the fair values on
derivatives based on quoted market prices or pricing models using current market rates.

The Company reports hedge ineffectiveness from foreign currency derivatives for both options and
forward contracts in other income or expense. Hedge ineffectiveness was not material in fiscal 2003. The
effective portion of all derivatives is reported in the same financial statement line item as the changes in the
hedged item.

The Company had foreign exchange contract lines in the amount of $120.0 million at December 28, 2003.
Under these lines, the Company may enter into forward exchange contracts that require the Company to sell
or purchase foreign currencies. At December 28, 2003, the Company had no forward contracts outstanding.

At December 28, 2003, the Company had $11.7 million in Japanese Yen-denominated accounts payable
designated as cash flow hedges against Japanese Yen-denominated cash holdings and accounts receivable. The
Company had no outstanding hedge contracts. There were no unrealized gains or losses on derivative
instruments as of December 28, 2003. At December 29, 2002, the Company had $20.2 million in Japanese
Yen-denominated accounts payable designated as cash flow hedges against Japanese Yen-denominated cash
holdings and accounts receivable. The Company had no outstanding hedge contracts. There were no
unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments as of December 29, 2002.

The impact of movements in currency exchange rates on foreign exchange contracts substantially
mitigates the related impact on the underlying items hedged. The Company had net transaction gains (losses)
of approximatety ($1,345,000), ($517,000), and ($894,000), for the years ended December 28, 2003,
December 29, 2002, and December 30, 2001, respectively. These amounts are included in other income
(loss), net, in the statement of operations.
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The Company had invested in Tower’s rights offering during 2002 and received a warrant to purchase
Tower ordinary shares. The fair value as of December 28, 2003 was approximately $1.2 million, as determined
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0.0%; expected
life of 2.75 years; volatility factor of 0.70; and risk free interest rate of 2.32%. The fair value of the Tower
warrant was approximately $537 thousand as of December 29, 2002, with the following assumptions: dividend
yield of 0.0%; expected life of 3.75 years; volatility factor of 0.845; and risk free interest rate of 2.38%. The fair
value of the Tower warrant will continue to fluctuate and additional adjustments to the warrant’s fair value will
be recorded in future periods.

Note 10: Restructuring Charge and Related Activities

During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company adopted a plan to transfer all of its card assembly
and test manufacturing operations from its Sunnyvale location to offshore subcontractors. The Company also
adopted a plan to reduce its workforce by a total of 193 employees through involuntary employee separations
from October 2001 through April 2002. In connection with this restructuring, the Company recorded a
restructuring charge of $8.5 million in the third quarter of 2001. The charge included $1.4 million of severance
and employee related-costs for a reduction in workforce, equipment write-off charges of $6.0 million and lease
commitments of $1.1 million related to the abandonment of a warehouse facility. As of December 28, 2003,
with the exception of leases related to the abandoned excess leased facilities, the Company had made all
payment$ associated with the restructuring. Amounts related to the abandonment of excess leased facilities
will be paid as the lease payments are due in 2004 and forward. In the first quarter of 2003, the Company
entered into a sublease for a portion of the abandoned warehouse facility, which will expire in July of 2005.
The applicable sublease income will partially offset the restructuring reserve balance until completely utilized

in 2004.
The following table summarizes the restructuring activity from inception of the plan through the end
of 2003:
Workforce Lease
Equipment Reduction Commitments Total
(In thousands)
Restructuring Charge . .................. ... %6383 $1,094 $1,033 $ 8,510
Non-cash charges . ......... . ... ... . ...... (6,027) —_— — {6,027)
Cash payments . .......ccouriinerinnnn..n, — {805) — {805)
Accrual balance, December 30, 2001.......... 356 289 1,033 1,678
Non-cash charges.......................... (17) — — (17)
Adjustments ......... . ... i (339) 321 18 —
Cash payments .............oovviiiiinn... — (610) (471) (1,081)
Accrual balance, December 29, 2002.......... — —_ 580 580
Cashreceipts. ... ..o, — — 223 223
Cash payments ......... ... . iiinienn.. — — (615) (615)
Accrual balance, December 28, 2003.......... § — $ — $ 188 $ 188

Note 11: Geographic Infermation and Major Customers

The Company operates in one segment, flash memory products. The Company markets and sells its
products in the United States and in foreign countries through its sales personnel, dealers, distributors,
retailers and its subsidiaries. The Company’s chief decision maker, the Chief Executive Officer, evaluates
performance of the Company and makes decisions regarding allocation of resources based on total Company
results. Revenue is evaluated based on geographic region and product category. Since the Company operates
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in one segment, all financial segment and product line information can be found in the consolidated financial
statements.

Sales outside the U.S. are comprised of sales to international customers in Europe, Canada, and Asia
Pacific. Other than sales in U.S., Japan and Europe, international sales were not material individually in any
other international location. Intercompany sales between geographic areas are accounted for at prices
representative of unaffiliated party transactions.

Information regarding geographic areas for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001

Revenues:

North ATETICA. ..o oo e e i $ 417,869 $243,144 $163,516

Japan ... .. 184,195 88,298 105,056

Burope. ... 232,080 116,765 57,386 o

Other foreign countries .......... R R R TR 245,657 - - - 93,066 40,343

- Fotal ... ... PR $1,079.801  $541273  $366,301

Long Lived Assets:

North AmMerica. . ....oovueiie i $ 58,569 $ 22,132 $193,980

Japan .. ... 144,761 143,069 388

Burope . ..o 169 119 23

Israel ... 40,877 16,869 15,745

Other foreign countries ......................... 156 19,639 25,955
Total ... $ 244,532 $201,828 $236,091

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the geographic location of the customers. Long-lived assets
are attributed to the geographic location in which they are located. Long-lived assets in Japan are the
Company’s investment in FlashVision Yokkaichi of $144.6 million and $142.8 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Long lived assets in Isracl are the Company’s investment in Tower of $40.4 million and
$16.7 million and $15.4 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively and other foreign countries includes the
long-term investment in UMC of $7.5 million in 2002 and $25.9 million in 2001. Long-lived assets in the
United States include the investment in FlashVision Dominion Virginia of $153.2 million in 2001, Divio of
$4.5 million in 2002 and $7.2 million in 2001 and DPI of $0.6 million in 2001.

Major Customers

In 2003, 2002 and 2001, there were no customers who accounted for more than 10% of total revenue.

Note 12: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) presented in the accompanying balance sheet consists
of the accumulated unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale marketable securities, including the short-
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term portion of the Company’s investments in UMC and Tower, net of the related tax effects, for all periods
presented (in thousands).

For the Twelve Months Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

Net INCOME . oottt $168,859 $ 36,240 $(297,944)
Unrealized gain (loss) on foundries(l) .......... 82,741 (89,728) 95,927
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale

SECUTIHIES . Lo et e e e {622) 292 508

Comprehensive income (loss) .................... $250,978 $(33,196)  $(201,109)

(1) For fiscal 2003, excludes a reversal of approximately $24.4 million in deferred tax expense included in
prior periods as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income associated with the UMC
shares that were subsequently embezzled and fraudulently sold in the third quarter of 2003 and
approximately $8.9 million in a similar reversal of deferred tax expense previously included in
accumulated other comprehensive income associated with the 35 million UMC shares that the Company
sold in its authorized sale in the third quarter of 2003.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) presented in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet consists of the accumulated gains and losses on available-for-sale marketable securities, net of taxes, for
all periods presented (in thousands):

2003 2002
Accumulated net unrealized gain (loss) on:
Available-for-sale short-term investments.............. ... v... $§ 433 § 1,055
Available-for-sale investments in foundries. ........... ... ... .. ..... 38,673 (44,068)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ................. $39,106  $(43,013)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was $39.1 million and ($43.0) million at
December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, respectively and included gains (losses), net of taxes, on the
Company’s investment in (i) UMC of $4.7 million at December 28, 2003 and ($44.0) million at
December 29, 2002 and (ii) Tower of $34.0 million and approximately ($50,000) at the same dates,
respectively. The amount of income tax expense (benefit) allocated to unrealized gain/loss on investments
was ($3.2) million and $37.4 million at December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, respectively. The amount
of income tax expense allocated to unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities was immaterial at
December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, respectively.

Note 13: Related Parties

The Company has entered into a joint venture agreement with Toshiba, under which they formed
FlashVision, to produce advanced NAND flash memory wafers. (See Note 8.) In addition, the Company and
Toshiba will jointly develop and share the research and development expenses of future generations of
advanced NAND flash memory products. The Company also purchases NAND flash memory card products
from- Toshiba. In 2003, the Company purchased NAND flash memory wafers and card products from
FlashVision and Toshiba and made payments for shared research and development expenses totaling
approximately $223.5 million and $124.7 million in 2002. At December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002, the
Company had accounts payable balances due to FlashVision of $30.4 million and $16.8 million respectively,
and balances due to Toshiba of $14.6 million and $9.5 million, respectively. At December 28, 2003 and
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December 29, 2002, the Company had accrued current liabilities due to Toshlba for joint rcsearch and

development expenses of $11.8 million and $10 5 million, respectively. -

In- July 2000; the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to make & $75 @-million investment

- in Tower, in Israel, at that time, representing approximately 10% ownership of Tower. (See Note 8.)
- SanDisk’s CEO, Dr. Eli Harari, is a member of the Tower board of directors. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the

Company invested $11.0 million, $26.0 million and $42.5 million, respectively in Tower, which included the
Company’s participation in Tower’s October 2002 right’s offering. Additionally, the Company commenced the
purchase of controller wafers from Tower in 2003 and paid Tower approximately $5.3 million for the purchase
of controller wafers. At December 28, 2003 the Company had amounts payable to Tower of approximately
$5.4 million related to the purchase of controller wafers. No additional payments were made to Tower in 2002,
no goods were purchased in 2002 and there were no liabilities due to Tower at December 29, 2002.

In September 2003, the Company announced the appointment of the president and chief executive officer
of Flextronics International Ltd. to its board of directors. Subsequent to this appointment in 2003, the
Company paid Flextronics and its affiliates approximately $8.1 million for wafer testing, packaged memory
final testing, card assembly and card testing. At December 28, 2003 the Company had amounts payable to
Flextronics and its affiliates of approximately $1.5 million related to wafer testing, packaged memory final
testing, card assembly and card testing

Note 14: Investment in Joint Venture

The following summarized the financial information for FlashVision at December 28, 2003 and
December 29, 2002, respectively (in thousands).
December 28, December 29,

2003 2002
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
CurTent ASSES . ..ot $128,774 $192,190
Property, plant and equipment and other assets ................... $374,438 $171,791
TOtAl ASSEIS .« v o vttt e $503,212 $363,981
Current Liabilities ... ... ... . e $148,200 $ 45,906

The following summarizes financial information for FlashVision for the years ended December 28, 2003,
December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, respectively (in thousands).

Twelve Months Ended
December 28, December 29, December 30,

2003 2002 2001
(Unaudited)
Netsales(1) ............ e $272,507 $73,571 $110,706
Gross profit (10s8) ... 1,572 (369) 4,351
Net INCOME . . oottt et $ 296 $ 2,587 $ 5,160

(1) Net sales represent sales to both the Company and Toshiba,

Note 15: Subsequent event (unaudited)

On January 21, 2004 the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a two-for-one
stock split of its common stock to be effected in the form of a stock dividend. The stock split will entitle each
stockholder of record at the close of business on February 3, 2004, record date, to receive one additional share
for every share of SanDisk common stock held on that date. Shares resulting from the split were distributed by
the transfer agent on February 18, 2004, payment date. Shares, share price, per share amounts, common stock
at par value and capital in excess of par value have been restated to reflect the effect of these stock splits for all
periods presented in the Form 10-K.
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In February 2004, the Company committed to loan FlashVision up to approximately $150.4 million to
fund additional 200-millimeter fabrication capacity through the end of fiscal 2004. This loan is secured by the
equipment purchased by FlashVision using the loan proceeds. Additional loans are expected to be made in
several tranches through the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Because the Company’s funding obligation is
denominated in Japanese Yen, the amount of its obligation on a given date when converted to U.S. Dollars
will fluctuate based on the exchange rate in effect on that date.

On February 20, 2004, the Company and a number of other manufacturers of flash memory products

-~ were sued_ in the Superior Court of the State of California for the City and County of San Francisco in a

purported consumer class action captioned Willem Vroegh et al. v. Dane Electric Corp. USA, et al. alleging

false advertising, unfair business practices, breach of contract, fraud, deceit, misrepresentation and violation of

the California Consumers Legal Remedy Act. The lawsuit purports to be on behalf of a class of purchasers of

flash memory products and claims that the defendants overstated the size of the memory storage capabilities
of such products. The lawsuit seeks restitution, injunction and damages in an unspecified amount.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of
our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), as of the end of the period covered by this report (the “Evaluation Date”). Based upon the evaluation,
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded as of the Evaluation Date that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.
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PART II

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Reference is made to the information regarding directors and nominees and disclosure relating to
compliance with Section 16A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 appearing under the captions “Election
of Directors” and “Compliance with Section 16A of the Securities Exchange Act of 19347 in our Proxy
Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 20, 2004, which information is
incorporated in this Form 10-K by reference. Information regarding executive officers is set forth under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part [ of this Form 10-X.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is set forth under “Executive Compensation and Related
Information” in our Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matrters

The information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Information for Plans or Individual
Arrangements with Employees and Non-Employees” in our Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Certain Transactions” in our Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” in our Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this report

(1) All financial statements

Index to Financial Statements Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors ......... . ... ... . ....o... 59
Consolidated Balance Sheets . ... ... ... i e e 60
Consolidated Statements of Operations ............c.. i, 61
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity ......... ... oo 62
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. ... ... ... ... . . .. 63
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... ... ... i i 64

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information is not present or
not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedules, or because the
information required is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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(2) Exhibits required by {tem 601 of Regulation S-K

A. FExhibits - - - -

Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.2

33

34
35

4.1
4.2

43
44
4.5
4.6
4.7
48
9.1

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4

10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8

10.9
10.10

10.11
10.12

Exhibit Title

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. (2)

Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant dated
December 9, 1999.(12)

Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant dated
May 11, 2000.(16)

Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended to date.(15)

Certificate of Designation for the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stbock, as filed with the
Delaware Secretary of State on April 24, 1997.(4)

Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3.(2), (12), (16)

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, among the Registrant and the investors and
founders named therein, dated March 3, 1995.(2)

Series F Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement between Seagate Technology, Inc. and the Registrant
dated January 15, 1993.(2)

Rights Agreement, dated as of April 18, 1997, between the Company and Harris Trust and Savings
Bank.(4)

First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated October 22, 1999, between Harris Trust and the
Registrant.(9) ‘

Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December 17, 1999, between Harris Trust and the
Registrant. (11)

Indenture, dated as of December 24, 2001, between the Registrant and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee, including the form of note set forth in Section 2.2 thereof.(15)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 24, 2001, among the Registrant, as Issuer and
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and ABN AMRO Rothschild LLC, as Initial Purchasers.(15)

Amended and Restated Voting Agreement, among the Registrant and the investors named therein,
dated March 3, 1995.(2)

License Agreement between the Registrant and Dr. Eli Harari, dated September 6, 1988.(2)
1989 Stock Benefit Plan.(2),(¥*)
Lease Agreement between the Registrant and G.F. Properties, dated March 1, 1996.(3)

Amendment to Lease Agreement between the Registrant and G.F. Properties, dated April 3,
1997.(5)

Foundry Venture Agreement between the Registrant and United Microelectronics Corporation,
dated June 27, 1997.(1),(6)

Written Assurances Re: Foundry Venture Agreement between the Registrant and United
Microelectronics Corporation, dated September 13, 1995.(1),(6)

Side Letter between Registrant and United Microelectronics Corporation, dated May 28,
1997.(1),(6)

Clarification letter with regards to Foundry Venture Agreement between the Registrant and United
Microelectronics Corporation dated October 24, 1997.(7)

Lease Agreement between the Registrant and G.F. Properties, dated June 10, 1998.(8)

SanDisk Corporation Special Stock Option Plan, as Amended and Restated through February 23,
2000.(20),(*)

SanDisk Corporation 1995 Stock Option Plan, as Amended and Restated January 2, 2002.(21),(*)

SanDisk Corporation 1995 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan, as Amended and Restated
as of January 2, 2004.(22),(*)
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Exhibit
Number . Exhibit Title

10.13  SanDisk Corporation 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated as of
January 2, 2002. (21), (*)

10.14 SanDisk Corporation International Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated as of
January 2, 2002. (21),(*)

10.15 Common R&D and Participation Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2000, by and between the
Registrant and Toshiba Corporation.(12),(1)

10.16  Product Development Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2000, by and between the Registrant and
Toshiba Corporation.(12),(1)

10.17 Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 4, 2000, by and between the Registrant and Tower
Semiconductor L.td.(13)

10.18 Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 14, 2000, by and between the Registrant, Tower
Semiconductor Ltd. and Union bank of California, N.A.(13)

10.19  Additional Purchase Obligation Agreement, dated as of July 4, 2000, by and between the Registrant
and Tower Semiconductor Ltd.(13)

10.20  Shareholders Agreement, dated as of July 4, 2000, by and between the Registrant and the Israel
Corporation.{13)

10.21  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2001, by and between Registrant, The Israel
Corporation, Alliance Semiconductor Ltd.,, Macronix International Co., Ltd. and Quick Logic
Corporation (14)

10.22  Consolidated Shareholders Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2001, by and among Registrant, The
Israel Corporation, Alliance Semiconductor Ltd. And Macronix International Co., Ltd.(14)

10.23  Memorandum of Understanding, dated as of December 17, 2001 by and between the Registrant and
Toshiba Corporation.(15),(1)

10.24 Amendment to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2002, by and between the
Registrant and Tower Semiconductor Ltd.(17)

10.25 New Master Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between the Registrant and Toshiba
Corporation.(18),(1)

10.26 New Operating Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between the Registrant and Toshiba
Corporation.(18),(1)

10.27 Amendment to Common R&D Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between the

- Registrant and Toshiba Corporation.(18),(1)

10.28 Amendment to Product Development Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between the
Registrant and Toshiba Corporation. (18),(1)

10.29 Indemnification and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between the
Registrant and Toshiba Corporation.(18),(1)

10.30  Amendment to Indemnification and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2002 by and
between the Registrant and Toshiba Corporation. (18)

10.31  Amendment to New Master Agreement, dated and effective as of August 13, 2002 by and between
the Registrant and Toshiba Corporation. (19),(1)

10.32  Series A Preferred Stock Transfer Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2002, by and among the
Registrant, Photo-Me International, Ple., DigitalPortal Inc. and Kevin Donohue. (23)

10.33  Joint Venture Termination Agreement, dated and effective as of September 30, 2002, by and among
the Registrant, Photo-Me International, Plc., DigitalPortal Inc. and Kevin Donohue.(23)

10.34  Amendment to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 21, 2003, by and between the

- Registrant, Tower Semiconductor Ltd. and the other parties thereto.(24)
'10.35 Side Letter to Amendment to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 24, 2003, by and
"~ between the Registrant, Tower Semiconductor Ltd. and the other parties thereto.(24) o -

10.36  Side Letter to Amendment to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of Aprit 14; 2003, by and
between the Registrant, Tower Semiconductor Ltd. and the other parties thereto.(24)
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Exhibit

Numbe

10.37

10.38

21.1
231
311
31.2
321

322

£33

()
(2)
(3)
4
(5)
(6)
(7N
(3)
o)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(13)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(23)
(24)

T Exhibit Title

Amendment No. 3 to Payment Schedule of Series A-5 Additional Purchase Obligations, Waiver of
Series A-5 Conditions, Conversion of Series A-4 Wafer Credits and Other Provisions, dated as of
November 11, 2003, by and between the Registrant, Tower Semiconductor Ltd. and the other parties
thereto. (**)

Settlement Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2003, by and among the Registrant, Lee and Li
and certain Lee and Li partners. (**) ()

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Filed herewith.

Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions hereof.

Confidential treatment granted as to certain portions of these exhibits.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-96298).
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated April 18, 1997.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on form §-K dated October 16, 1997,
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1997,
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 1, 1999.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Schedule 13(d) dated January 26, 2001.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-85686).
Previousty filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-63076).
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-85320).

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(No. 333-112139)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K. .

Previously filed as an. Exhibit.to-the-Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 2003.
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B. Reports on Form 8-K

On October 15, 2003, the Registrant filed a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting under Ttem 5 the
issuance of a press release announcing a theft by an attorney at its Taiwanese law firm. The Registrant filed
under Item 12 the issuance of a press release announcing the Registrant’s financial results for the third quarter
of 2003.

On October 14, 2003, the Registrant filed a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting under Item 5 the
issuance of a press release announcing that the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California had ruled in the SanDisk patent case against Ritek Corporation and granted Ritek’s motion for
summary judgment.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thé
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

SANDISK CORPORATION

By: /s/  MICHAEL GRAY

Michael Gray
Chief Financial Officer, and
Senior Vice President,
Finance and Administration
(On behalf of the Registrant and as Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

Dated: March 12, 2004

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PEOPLE BY THESE PRESENTS, that cach person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Dr. Eli Harari and Michael Gray, jointly and severally, his or her attorneys in fact,
each with the power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said
attorneys in fact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /s/ Dr. EL1 HARARI President, Chief Executive Officer and  March 12, 2004
(Dr. Eli Harari) Director (Principal Executive Officer)
By: /s/ MicHAEL GRAY Chief Financial Officer, and Senior March 12, 2004
(Michae!l Gray) Vice President, Finance and

Administration (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

By: /s/  IRWIN FEDERMAN Chairman of the Board, Director March 12, 2004
(Irwin Federman)

By: /s/ Juby BRUNER Director March 12, 2004
(Judy Bruner) ‘

By: /s/ MicHAEL E. MaRrks Director March 12, 2004
(Michael E. Marks)
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Signature

By:. /s/._ DR James D. MEINDL
(Dr. James D. Meindl)

By: /s/  ALAN F. SHUGART
(Alan F. Shugart)
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Title

Director

Director

Date

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004




